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PART I

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Many of the matters discussed within this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”) contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) on our current expectations and projections about future events. In some cases, you
can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “should,” “potential,” “continue,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,”
“estimates,” and similar expressions. These statements are based on our current beliefs, expectations, and assumptions and are subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties, many of which are difficult to predict and generally beyond our control, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed,
projected or implied in or by the forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include the risks noted under Part 1. “Business”, and Part II, Item 7”,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations”, but are also contained elsewhere. We do not undertake any
obligation to update any forward-looking statements. Unless the context requires otherwise, references to “we,” “us,” “our,” and “Qpagos,” refer to Qpagos and its
subsidiaries. As a result of these factors, we cannot assure you that the forward-looking statements in this Annual Report will prove to be accurate. Furthermore,
if our forward-looking statements prove to be inaccurate, the inaccuracy may be material. In light of the significant uncertainties in these forward-looking
statements, you should not regard these statements as a representation or warranty by us or any other person that we will achieve our objectives and plans in
any specified time frame, or at all. We do not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statements.

Item 1. Business

Company Overview

We are a provider of next generation physical and virtual payment services that we introduced to the Mexican market in the third quarter of 2014. We have a ten-
year renewable exclusive license agreement for the use of technology that can be used to perform services that are similar to services that have been
successfully deployed with this technology in several European, Asian, North and South American countries.

We provide an integrated network of kiosks, terminals and payment channels that enable consumers to deposit cash, convert it into a digital form and remit the
funds to any merchant in our network quickly and securely. We help consumers and merchants connect more efficiently in markets and consumer segments,
such as Mexico, that are largely cash-based and lack convenient alternatives for consumers to pay for goods and services in physical, online and mobile
environments. For example, we license technology that can be used to pay bills, add minutes to mobile phones, purchase transportation tickets, shop online, buy
digital services or send money to a friend or relative.

Our current focus is on Mexico which remains a cash-dominated society for retail consumer payments with approximately 80% of the value of personal
payments exchanged in cash (Bank of Mexico). The penetration of electronic payment services, such as credit and debit cards and point of sale terminals,
significantly lags behind more developed economies. We believe that opportunities for our services in Mexico are vast. With over 109 million mobile subscribers
in Mexico, 85% of which are under prepaid plans, the mobile sector was a $13 billion business in 2017 as reported by the Competitive Intelligence Unit (the
“CIU”). We believe that there is opportunity for growth in the Mexican market and we have expanded to service providers beyond the mobile telephone operators
to service providers of electricity, transportation, utilities, municipal services and taxes, consumer credit installments, insurance premiums, and many more.
Altogether as of the end of the first quarter of 2018 our platform had integrated over 140 such services, including the National Lottery’s; Pronosticos. 

Our primary strategy in Mexico to date has been the attraction of service providers as well as the deployment of kiosks through Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de
C.V., our kiosk management subsidiary and the sale of kiosks to the country’s leading financial institutions and retailers. During the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, we generated net revenues of $3,941,273 and $2,691,896, respectively, an increase of 1,249,397 or 46.4% from our operations in Mexico. Our
primary source of revenue are fees we receive for processing payments made by consumers to service providers. We also generate revenue from non-payment
services such as kiosk sales. We currently have in excess of 140 service providers integrated into our payment gateway, which includes all mobile phone
providers in Mexico as well as most utility companies, and several financial and entertainment services as well as government payments. As of December 31,
2017, QPAGOS had deployed over 216 kiosks and terminals and service an additional 440 kiosks of an independent distributor. QPAGOS kiosks and terminals
can be found at convenience stores, next to metro stations, retail stores, municipalities airport, education centers, shopping malls, in large cities as well as many
small and rural towns. 
 

We believe that QPAGOS platform provides simple and intuitive user interfaces, convenient access and best-in-class services. QPAGOS runs its network and
processes its transactions using a proprietary, advanced technology platform that leverages the latest virtualization, analytics and security technologies to create
a fast, highly reliable, secure and redundant system. We believe that the breadth and reach of this network, along with the proprietary nature of its technology
platform, differentiate us from our competitors and allow us to effectively manage and update our services and realize significant operating leverage with growth
in volumes.
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QPAGOS Corporate History and Background

Our current corporate structure is as follows:

 

QPAGOS was incorporated on September 25, 2013 under the laws of the State of Nevada originally under the name Asiya Pearls, Inc. On May 27, 2016, Asiya
Pearls, Inc. filed a Certificate of Amendment to its Articles of Incorporation to change its name from Asiya Pearls, Inc. to QPAGOS.

Qpagos Corporation was incorporated on May 1, 2015 under the laws of Delaware under the name Qpagos Corporation as the holding company for its two
99.9% owned operating subsidiaries, QPagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de C.V. Each of these entities were incorporated in November
2013 in Mexico.

QPagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. was formed to process payment transactions for service providers it contracts with, and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de C.V. was
formed to deploy and operate kiosks as a distributor.

On August 31, 2015, QPAGOS Corporation entered into various agreements with the shareholders of Qpagos and Redpag to give effect to a reverse merger
transaction (the “Reverse Merger’’). Pursuant to the Reverse Merger, the majority of the shareholders of Qpagos and Redpag effectively received shares in
Qpagos Corporation, through various consulting and management agreements entered into with Qpagos Corporation and sold an effective 99.996% and
99.990% of the outstanding shares in Qpagos and Redpag, respectively to Qpagos Corporation. The series of transactions closed effective August 31, 2015.
Upon the close of the Reverse Merger, Qpagos Corporation became the parent of Qpagos and Redpag and assumed the operations of these two companies as
its sole business.

On May 12, 2016, Qpagos Corporation entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with QPAGOS and QPAGOS Merge, Inc., a
Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of QPAGOS (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on May 12, 2016 Qpagos Corporation and
Merger Sub merged (the “Merger”), and Qpagos Corporation continued as the surviving corporation of the Merger and became a wholly owned subsidiary of
QPAGOS. As a result of the Merger, each outstanding share of Qpagos Corporation common stock was converted into the right to receive two shares of
QPAGOS common stock as set forth in the Merger Agreement. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, we issued, and Qpagos Corporation stockholders
received in a tax-free exchange, shares of our common stock such that Qpagos Corporation stockholders owned approximately 91% of our company
immediately after the Merger. In addition, each outstanding warrant of Qpagos Corporation was assumed by us and converted into a warrant to acquire a number
of shares of our common stock equal to twice the number of shares of common stock of Qpagos Corporation subject to the warrant immediately before the
effective time of the Merger at an exercise price per share of Company common stock equal to 50% of the warrant exercise price for Qpagos Corporation
common stock. There are no outstanding stock options of Qpagos Corporation.

Our principal offices are located at Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH, Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtémoc, Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600, and our telephone number at
that office is +52 (55) 55–110–110. We also have offices in the United States that are located at 1900 Glades Road, Suite 280, Boca Raton, Florida 33431. We
maintain an Internet website at www.qpagos.com. Neither this website nor the information on this website is included or incorporated in, or is a part of, this
prospectus or any supplement to the prospectus.
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Our Strategy

Our mission is to leverage the experience and success of other global companies in our industry, and establish ourselves as the leading developer and supplier
of state-of-the-art electronic payment solutions to Mexican merchants and service providers across all consumer services sectors, such as: fixed and mobile
telephone operators, internet services providers, cable, entertainment, public and municipal services such as electricity, water and gas, financial and travel
services. Our near-term strategy includes:

 • Positioning ourselves as the leading consumer payment solutions provider for all service providers that rely on electronic payments for their collection
needs.

 
 • Establishing a successful distributor network based on a competitive distribution model for entrepreneurs that look at our self-service kiosks as a

profitable business opportunity, as well as retail chains and retail banks that need to expedite electronic payments that are clogging teller lines through
the assistance of self-service kiosks.

 
 • Supporting distributors and franchisees through training, point of sale marketing materials, and an ever-increasing amount of payment services,

many of which are regional in nature.
 
 • Developing a Franchising Model through the creation and expansion of one-stop payment services stores which cater to the vast need for a digital

payment solution in Mexico.
 
 • Developing a motivated and effective management team.

Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”), and therefore we intend to take
advantage of certain exemptions from various public company reporting requirements, including not being required to have our internal controls over financial
reporting audited by our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”),
reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements and exemptions from the requirements of holding
a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and any golden parachute payments. We may take advantage of these exemptions until we are no
longer an “emerging growth company.” In addition, the JOBS Act provides that an “emerging growth company” can delay adopting new or revised accounting
standards until such time as those standards apply to private companies. We have elected to use the extended transition period for complying with new or
revised accounting standards under the JOBS Act. This election allows us to delay the adoption of new or revised accounting standards that have different
effective dates for public and private companies until those standards apply to private companies. As a result of this election, our financial statements may not be
comparable to companies that comply with public company effective dates. We will remain an “emerging growth company” until the earlier of (1) the last day of
the fiscal year: (a) following the fifth anniversary of the completion of this offering; (b) in which we have total annual gross revenue of at least $1.07 billion; or (c)
in which we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer, which means the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeded $700.0 million
as of the prior June 30th , and (2) the date on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt during the prior three-year period. References
herein to “emerging growth company” have the meaning associated with that term in the JOBS Act.

Our Business Model

Our primary source of revenue are fees we receive for processing payments.

During 2017 we processed approximately 2,102,065 payment transactions, compared to 1,624,931 in 2016, an increase of 29.4%.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, these transactions generated $3,941,273 in net revenue, of which approximately $3,343,833 (2016: 2,182,907) is net
revenue derived from the operations of QPagos S.A.P.I. de C.V. and $597,440 (2016: $508,989) is net revenue derived from the operations of Redpag. We earn
a gross profit of approximately 5.9% (2016: 7.5%) on airtime sales on kiosks operated by Redpag and approximately 0.1% gross profit on wholesale operations
by which we provide air time and services to other non-kiosk distributors. We also earn commissions on payment services we provide to end-users through our
kiosks and kiosks operated by third parties. This fee is either a transactional based fee of between USD$0.50 and USD$0.75 per transaction or a percentage of
the transaction value. Certain service providers require that we receive the entire fee solely from the customers.

Our agents (our distributors) buy kiosks or terminals from us for approximately $6,000. The agent retains a portion of the fees that we derive from the service
providers for services performed at the kiosks. Typically, 65% to 70% of the fees we receive from service providers are shared with the agent that has purchased
the kiosk, and we retain 30–35% of such fees.

In addition, for certain high traffic public areas, such as malls and shopping centers, government agencies and large retailers who want to monetize high traffic
areas, we pay the owner of the space a rental fee for the use of the space, and revenue share a smaller % of the commission, typically 10%. We also generate
monthly rental fees for collocating our kiosks in municipal offices and integrating their services into our platform.
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Additionally, when a distributor integrates their services into QPagos platform, for transactions done at their kiosks we may charge a transaction fee that may
average $0.10, while that same transaction may generate up to $0.50 when done in other kiosks in Qpagos network.
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Partners-Service Providers

Our current focus has been on the prepaid mobile telephone market. In Mexico, 85% of the more than 109 million mobile subscribers are under prepaid
programs, thus millions of people make payments into these plans on a frequent basis. We currently have integrated over 140 service providers, including all
principal mobile operators in Mexico, major utilities and the national lottery system “Pronosticos”. Among these. Also, QPagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V has integrated 9
of Mexico’s 32 states in its payment platform, and citizens of these states can now pay at our kiosks, municipal services, such as car registration, property taxes,
traffic tickets, etc.

Our Distribution Network

QPagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V is developing a distribution network along several verticals, principally: (i) an agent network of independent businesses with high
customer traffic in which our kiosks can be deployed; (ii) retailers that seek to decongest teller lines and shift service payments to self-service kiosks, (iii) banks
and other financial intermediaries that want to extend geographic collection points to their customers, while also improving the experience of their customers
when making payments at branches, (iv) government municipalities that want to bring service payments closer to their citizens; (v) other electronic payments
distributors who we wholesale our services to, and (vi) our own distributor Redpag Electrónicos with its growing network in Mexico City and adjoining states.

Agents who own kiosks and terminals are responsible for placing, operating and servicing them in high-traffic, convenient retail locations. Several
of our agents are mid-sized businesses which we believe provides them with insight into local market dynamics. The agency agreements that we
enter into are usually for an indefinite term and may be unilaterally terminated by either party. Our agent contracts do not have exclusivity clauses.
We usually cap these fees, and normally award the agents a percentage of the merchant fees. No one agent represented a material amount of our
revenue, and we do not view ourselves as being dependent upon any one agent.

Our retail and institutional clients and prospects include large retail and convenience store chains, whose tellers are being congested by service payments and
who would like to move these frequent transactions to the front of their stores. We are also in field trials with large financial institutions that want to expedite
collections of their financial services as well as expand their hours of operation and geographic reach; and state, government and local municipalities that want to
provide their citizens easy access to payments. We recently concluded our trials with a 1,900 plus branch financial institution who is seeking to reduce
transaction costs, and improve customer experience by reducing lines with our kiosks. We look forward to consolidating this market opportunity during 2018.

Research and Development Expenditure

We continuously develop our product offering and make technical improvements to our software, these expenses are incurred primarily as consulting fees paid to
third party developers. In this area for example we have developed mobile applications to allow customers to access the same menu of service payments in our
kiosks through their mobile devices as well as developing complex applications such as the National Lottery’s Pronosticos. We have spent approximately
$80,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 on research and new product development.
 

Marketing

We participate in several local events and exhibitions and provide promotional materials to distributors and retailers. We have also engaged in public relations
campaigns geared towards corporate and institutional businesses, which has resulted in discussions with large box retailers such as Walmart, OXXO, Casa
Ley, 7-Eleven, Circle K and several others. We have participated frequently in several International Franchising Exhibitions in Mexico City, Guadalajara, Puebla,
Ciudad Juarez and Monterrey, and yearly in ANTAD Guadalajara Exhibition, the association that groups the country’s mayor retail chains.

Our Technology

We run our network and process our transactions using the proprietary, advanced technology platform that we license, which leverages the latest virtualization,
analytics and security technologies to create a fast, highly reliable, secure and redundant system. We believe that the breadth and reach of our network, along
with the proprietary nature of the technology platform that we license, differentiates us from our competitors and allow us to effectively manage and update our
services and realize significant operating leverage with growth in volumes.

We have adapted our technology to be device agnostic and today consumers can access our payment services through multiple devices, such as POS, Mobile,
PC and self-service kiosks.

Competition

The payment services industry is highly competitive, and our continued growth depends on our ability to compete effectively. Although we do not face direct
competition in exactly the same line of business, as no major self-service electronic payment kiosk vendors with a payments platform exists in Mexico today, we
do face competition from teller-assisted operations at a variety of financial and non-financial business groups, including a few small regional players. These
competitors include retail banks, non-traditional payment service providers, such as retailers and mobile network operators, traditional kiosk and terminal
operators and electronic payment system operators, as well as other companies that provide various forms of payment services, including electronic payment
and payment processing services. Competitors in our industry seek to differentiate themselves by features and functionalities such as speed, convenience,
network size, accessibility, hours of operation, reliability and price. A significant number of our competitors have greater financial, technological and marketing
resources than we have, operate robust networks and could decide to develop their own self-service kiosks solutions instead of buying from Qpagos.
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We believe that the most serious competition comes from bricks and mortar locations since the bulk of the mobile top-up business is done at major retail chains
such as Walmart, Soriana, Chedraui and convenience stores such as OXXO and 7-Eleven. For example, Monterrey-based OXXO, owned by Coca-Cola bottler
FEMSA, with over 14,000 stores is the largest retailer network in Mexico with daily visits of over 8 million people. Because of this high concentration of
customers, OXXO has become one of the primary destinations to top up prepaid phones as well as paying utility bills and other services. These brick and mortar
retailers are also our key target market for QPAGOS as they are experiencing congestion at their in-person teller operations and are also exploring the alternative
of expediting payments through the use of self-service kiosks. We are currently in dialogues with several of these retailers which want to address teller
congestion caused by the large number of customers seeking to make bill payments which affects both their customers and their core business as a retailer.

Seasonality

We do not expect that our business will experience significant seasonality.

Government and Environmental Regulation and Laws

Currently our business is not impacted by government regulation. We may in the future be subject to a variety of regulations aimed at preventing money
laundering and financing criminal activity and terrorism, financial services regulations, payment services regulations, consumer protection laws, currency control
regulations, advertising laws and privacy and data protection laws and therefore expect to experience periodic investigations by various regulatory authorities in
connection with the same, which may sometimes result in monetary or other sanctions being imposed on us. Many of these laws and regulations are constantly
evolving and are often unclear and inconsistent with other applicable laws and regulations, making compliance challenging and increasing our related operating
costs and legal risks. In particular, there has been increased public attention and heightened legislation and regulations regarding money laundering and terrorist
financing. We may have to make significant judgment calls in applying anti-money laundering legislation and risk being found in non-compliance with such laws.

If local authorities in Mexico choose to enforce specific interpretations of the applicable legislation that differ from ours or enact new laws, we may be found to be
in violation and subject to penalties or other liabilities. This could also limit our ability in effecting such payments going forward and may increase our cost of
doing business.

In addition, there is significant uncertainty regarding future legislation on taxation of electronic payments in Mexico, including the place where taxation may be
generated. Subsequent legislation and regulation and interpretations thereof, litigation, court rulings, or other events could expose us to increased costs, liability
and reputational damage that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Employees

As of December 31, 2017, QPAGOS had 2 full time employees, which are its chief executive officer and chief operating officer, and 27 full-time contractors
provided to it by an outsourcing company and designated to perform services for its Mexican subsidiaries Qpagos and Redpag. Qpagos Corporation had no part-
time employees. None of these employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements. Qpagos Corporation does not have employment agreements with
any employees other than its Chief Executive Officer, Gaston Pereira and its Chief Operating Officer, Andrey Novikov. See “Executive Compensation.” Qpagos
Corporation also enters into consulting arrangements for IT and operational services.

Corporate Information

Our principal offices are located at Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH, Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtémoc, Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600, and our telephone number at
that office is +52 (55) 55–110–110. We also have offices in the United States that are located at 1900 Glades Road, Suite 265, Boca Raton, Florida 33431. We
maintain an Internet website at www.qpagos.com. Neither this website nor the information on this website is included or incorporated in, or is a part of, this Form
10-K.

Available Information

Our principal offices are located at Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH, Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtémoc, Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600, and our telephone number at
that office is +52 (55) 55–110–110. We also have offices in the United States that are located at 1900 Glades Road, Suite 280, Boca Raton, Florida 33431. We
maintain an Internet website at www.qpagos.com. We have included our website address as a factual reference and do not intend it to be an active link to our
website. We make available on our website, www.qpagos.com our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form
8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. These reports are available free of charge
through the investor relations page of our internet website as soon as reasonably practicable after those reports are filed with the SEC. 
 

6

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 

Item 1A. Risk Factors

As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide disclosure regarding risk factors.
 
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties

Qpagos leases approximately 1,600 square feet in Mexico City at Paseo de la Reforma 404, where its corporate offices are located. The lease is for a term of
36 months with a three-month termination clause. The current lease commenced in December 16, 2016, expires in December 16, 2019 and provides for an
aggregate annual rent of approximately $40,519 per annum. We also lease space on a month-to month basis for our data servers at a monthly rate of $1,680. In
addition, Qpagos leases warehouse space on a month-to-month basis for $625 per month. We believe these facilities are in good condition and adequate to
meet our current and anticipated requirements.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation is
subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business. We are currently not
aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities

From November 3, 2014 to July 4, 2016, our common stock has been traded on the OTC Pink Markets under the symbol “ASYP” but no trading took place
during this time. Since July 5, 2016 our common stock has traded on the OTCQB and our symbol was changed to “QPAG” on June 2, 2016. The range of high
and low sales prices for the period from July 5, 2016 thru March 31, 2018 is presented below:

  High   Low  
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016       

First Quarter  $ —  $ — 
Second Quarter  $ —  $ — 
July 5, 2016 (Third Quarter)  $ 1.31  $ 0.55 
Fourth quarter  $ 0.94  $ 0.25 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017         
First Quarter  $ 0.55  $ 0.18 
Second Quarter  $ 0.49  $ 0.285 
Third Quarter  $ 0.40  $ 0.13 
Fourth Quarter  $ 0.35  $ 0.15 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018         
First Quarter  $. 0.25  $ 0.13 
Second Quarter through April 13, 2018  $ 0.40  $ 0.18 

The last reported sale price of our common stock on the OTCQB on April 13, 2018, was $0.40 per share. As of April 13, 2018, there were approximately 49
holders of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock to date, and we have no intention of paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Whether we
declare and pay dividends is determined by our Board of Directors at their discretion, subject to certain limitations imposed under Nevada corporate law. The
timing, amount and form of dividends, if any, will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements and other
factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

See Item 11 – Executive Compensation for equity compensation plan information.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Other than as set forth below or as previously disclosed in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, we did not sell any equity securities during
the year ended December 31, 2017 in transactions that were not registered under the Securities Act.

On October 3, 2017, we issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $48,880 to Strategic IR Corp. (“Strategic”) The note has a
maturity date of October 3, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. We have the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The
outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of
conversion is received.
 
On October 11, October 12 and October 26, 2017, we received three installments of $50,000 each from Vladimir Skigin totaling $150,000 and issued a
Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $150,000 to him. The note has a maturity date of October 10, 2018 and a coupon of 8% per
annum. We have the right to prepay the note within the first 180 days at a premium of 110% of the sum of the accrued interest and principal. The outstanding
principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of our common stock at a conversion price
equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is
received.
 
On October 23, 2017, we issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $14,298 to Strategic. The note has a maturity date of
October 23, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. We have the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding
principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of our common stock at a conversion price
equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is
received.
 
On October 31, 2017, we issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000 to Viktoria Akhmetova. The note has a maturity
date of October 20, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. We have the right to prepay the note within the first 180 days at a premium of 110% of
the sum of the accrued interest and principal. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the
holder into shares of our common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10)
trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
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On November 14, 2017, we issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000 to Power Up Lending Group LTD. The note has
a maturity date of August 30, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. We have the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days.
The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of
conversion is received.
 
On November 29, 2017, we issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $75,000 to JSJ Investments, Inc. The note has a maturity
date of November 29, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. We have the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The
outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of
conversion is received.
 

On November 27,2017 and December 13, 2017, we issued 203,516 and 168,466 shares of our common stock upon conversion of notes. The issuance was
exempt from registration pursuant to section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act. The shares were issued in exchange for the notes and no compensation was paid by
the security holder in connection with the solicitation of the exchange.

On December 14, 2017, we issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $78,000 to Labrys Fund, LP. The note has a maturity
date of June 14, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. In connection with the issuance of the note, we were required to issue 231,931 shares of
common stock as a commitment fee valued at $76,537. The shares are returnable to us if no Event of Default has occurred prior to the date the note is fully
repaid. Management had determined that it is probable that we would meet the conditions under the note and therefore it is more likely than not that we would
not be in Default as defined in the note. As a result, management has concluded that it was probable that the shares would be returned and therefore the value
of the 231,931 shares was not recorded. We have the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note
is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of our common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average
of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 

Except as otherwise stated, the issuances of the securities were made in reliance on the exemption provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and
Regulation D promulgated thereunder for the offer and sale of securities not involving a public offering. The recipients of securities in each of these transactions
acquired the securities for investment only and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof, and appropriate legends were affixed to
the securities issued in these transactions. Each of the recipients of securities in these transactions was an accredited investor within the meaning of Rule 501 of
Regulation D under the Securities Act and had adequate access, through employment, business or other relationships, to information about us.

The issuance of the common stock was made in reliance on the exemption provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act for the offer and sale of securities
not involving a public offering, promulgated under the Securities Act.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no issuer purchases of equity securities during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Not applicable because we are a smaller reporting company.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, our audited annual financial statements and the
related notes thereto, each of which appear elsewhere in this Report on Form 10-K. This discussion contains certain forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties, as described under the heading “About Forward-Looking Statements” in this Report on Form 10-K. Actual results could differ materially
from those projected in the forward-looking statements. For additional information regarding these risks and uncertainties, please see the disclosure under the
heading “Risk Factors” elsewhere in this Report on Form 10-K. The Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
below is based upon only the financial performance of QPAGOS.

Overview and Financial Condition

We are a provider of next generation physical and virtual payment services that we introduced to the Mexican market in the third quarter of 2014. We have a ten-
year renewable exclusive license agreement for the use of technology that can be used to perform services that are similar to services that have been
successfully deployed with this technology in several European, Asian, North and South American countries.

We provide an integrated network of kiosks, terminals and payment channels that enable consumers to deposit cash, convert it into a digital form and remit the
funds to any merchant in our network quickly and securely. We help consumers and merchants connect more efficiently in markets and consumer segments,
such as Mexico, that are largely cash-based and lack convenient alternatives for consumers to pay for goods and services in physical, online and mobile
environments. For example, we license technology that can be used to pay bills, add minutes to mobile phones, purchase transportation tickets, shop online, buy
digital services or send money to third parties.
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Our current focus is on Mexico which remains a cash-dominated society for retail consumer payments with approximately 80% of the value of personal
payments exchanged in cash (Bank of Mexico). The penetration of electronic payment services, such as credit and debit cards and point of sale terminals,
significantly lags behind more developed economies. We believe that opportunities for our services in Mexico are vast. With over 109 million mobile subscribers
in Mexico, 85% of which are under prepaid plans, mobile top-up alone, was a $13 billion business in 2017 as reported by the Competitive Intelligence Unit (the
“CIU”). We believe that there is opportunity for growth in the Mexican market and has expanded to service providers beyond the mobile telephone operators to
service provides of electricity, transportation, utilities, municipal services and taxes, consumer credit installments, insurance premiums, and many more.
Altogether as of the first quarter of 2018 our platform had integrated over140 such services, including the National Lottery’s Pronosticos.

Our primary strategy in Mexico to date has been the attraction of service providers as well as the deployment of kiosks through Redpag Electrónicos, our kiosk
management subsidiary. During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, we generated net revenues of $3,941,273 and $2,691,896, respectively, from
our operations in Mexico, a 46.4% increase. Our primary source of revenue are fees we receive for processing payments made by consumers to service
providers. We also generate revenue from non-payment services such as kiosk sales. Qpagos Corporation currently has in excess of 140 service providers
integrated into its payment gateway, which includes all mobile phone providers in Mexico as well as most utility companies, financial services, entertainment
venues and others. As of December 31, 2017, Qpagos Corporation deployed over 228 kiosks and terminals and we service an additional 440 kiosks of
independent distributors. Our kiosks and terminals can be found at convenience stores, next to metro stations, retail stores, airport terminals, education centers,
and malls in major urban centers, as well as many small and rural towns.

Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, of QPAGOS, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of any contingent liabilities at the financial statement date and reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. On an on-going basis we review our estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based on our historical experience and other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results are likely to differ from those estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

Results of Operations for the years Ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016

Net revenues in Qpagos Corporation were $3,941,273 and $2,691,896 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively, an increase of
$1,249,377 or 46.4%. Qpagos Corporation operates in Mexico and its functional currency is the Mexican Peso. Qpagos Corporation’s revenue in Mexican Pesos
increased to MXN 74,516,037 from MXN 50,308,314 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, an increase of MXN 24,207,723 or 48.1%.
The increase in revenue in MXN terms is primarily due to an increase in the volume of prepaid airtime sold, directly attributable to the increased activity in its
wholesale payments business and we also increased the number of our customers over the prior year. The average US$ exchange rate has strengthened
against the MXN over the prior year, from $18.6692 to $18.9066 or 1.3%, which results in a lower revenue growth in US $ terms of approximately $50,116.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold in Qpagos Corporation was $3,913,953 and $2,595,012 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, an increase
of $1,318,941 or 50.8%. Qpagos operates in Mexico and its functional currency is the Mexican Peso. Qpagos Corporation’s cost of sales in Mexican Pesos
increased to MXN 73,999,501 from MXN 48,467,539 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, an increase of MXN 25,531,962 or 52.7%.
The increase in cost of sales in MXN terms is primarily due to the increase in the volume of prepaid airtime sold which is directly attributable to the increased
activity of its wholesale business during the current year. Cost of goods consists primarily of services acquired from third parties, such as prepaid air time and
the cost of the kiosks and any retrofitted components. Also included in cost of sales is depreciation related to those kiosks that are used in the production of
income. Depreciation expenses was $36,518 and $37,244, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, a decrease of $726. The average
US $ exchange rate has strengthened against the MXN over the prior year, from $18.6692 to $18.9066 or 1.3%, which results in a lower cost of sales in US $
terms of approximately $49,762.

Gross profit

Gross profit was $27,320 and $96,884 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, a decrease of $69,564 or 71.8%. Qpagos Corporations
operates in Mexico and our functional currency is the Mexican Peso. The components of gross profit are as follows:

 • Gross profit on sales of services decreased from a gross profit of $54,749 to a gross profit of $38,759, for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2017, respectively, a decrease of $15,990. The decrease in gross profit is primarily due to the mix of our business shifting towards
wholesale customers at lower margins and lower growth in our own managed kiosk business.
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 • Gross profit on kiosk sales decreased from a gross profit of $80,858 to a gross profit of $3,990 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and

2017, respectively, a decrease of $76,868. The decrease is primarily attributable to a delay in an expected order from a large financial institution
to 2018.

 
 • Gross (loss) profit other increased from a gross loss of ($1,479) to a gross profit of $21,089 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017,

respectively, an increase of $22,568. The improvement in the gross profit is due to once-off maintenance expenditure incurred on kiosks in the
prior year.

 
 • Included in gross profit is depreciation related to those kiosks that are used in the production of income. Depreciation expenses was $36,518

and $37,244, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, a decrease of $726.

Total expenses

Total expenses in Qpagos Corporation were $2,268,522 and $4,380,182 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, a decrease of
$2,111,660 or 48.2%.

Total expenses consisted primarily of the following:

 a. General and administrative expenditure was $2,196,213 and $4,312,107 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, a decrease of
$2,115,894 or 49.1%. Qpagos Corporation has operations in Mexico and a US holding company presence which incurs some expenditure.

 
 i. The general and administrative expenditure in Mexico decreased to MXN 14,837,629 from MXN 22,731,911 for the years ended

December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, a decrease of MXN 7,894,282 or 34.7%. The decrease is primarily due to a reduction in payroll
expenses of MXN1,261,731, lower marketing related expenses of MXN 483,422, a decrease in consulting expenses of MXN4,099,137 and
various other cost saving initiatives.

 
 ii. The general administrative expenses incurred by Qpagos Corporation in the US, amounted to $1,411,392 and $3,084,747 for the years ended

December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, a decrease of $1,673,355 or 54.2%. The decrease is primarily due to:
 
 • non-cash compensation of $2,032,275 related to share based consulting agreements in the prior year, offset by;
 • an increase in management fees of $783,321 and $557,358 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, an

increase of $225,963 or 40.5%, primarily due to compensation paid to our CEO which was absorbed by the Mexican operations in the
prior year;

 • a capital raising fee of $303,407 incurred on the issue of convertible notes, the repurchase of some of these notes and various
professional fees associated with these notes.

 • Various other cost saving initiatives introduced to reduce the overall overhead burden on the Company.

Other income

Other (expense) income of the Company was $(166,432) and $788 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Other expense
consisted of losses made on the conversion of debt to equity during the year at discounts to market prices, in terms of the various convertible note agreements
entered into during the current year.

Interest expense, net

Interest expense, net was $2,071,781 and $54,610 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, an increase of $2,017,171. The
interest expense in the current year includes the amortization of non-cash debt discount of $1,919,030 and interest expense of $152,751, consisting of interest
on the convertible notes, including penalty interest of $45,500 on early note settlements. The debt discount is calculated at note inception based on the fair
market value of the underlying equity of variably priced convertible notes and certain warrants. The interest expense in the prior year of $54,610 was incurred on
a note payable to an investor.

Change in fair value of derivative liability

The change in fair value of derivative liabilities was $(330,134) and $(36,074) for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The
movements in derivative liabilities represents the mark-to-market of underlying conversion features of debt and warrant securities and is dependent on the
market price of the Company’s stock and the volatility underpinning our stock.

Foreign currency gain (loss)

The foreign currency gain (loss) in Qpagos Corporation was $178,555 and ($357,855) for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,
an increase of $536,410 or 149.9%. The increase is primarily due to a reduction of liabilities denominated in US$’s in our Mexican operations. There were
significant intercompany balances between the US holding company and the Mexican subsidiaries which arose during the 2017 year, which were subsequently
capitalized.
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Net loss

We incurred a net loss of $4,630,994 and $4,731,049, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, a decrease of $100,055 or
approximately 2.1%, primarily due to the lower expenses, discussed above, offset by the non-cash amortization of debt discount during the current year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

To date, our primary sources of cash have been funds raised from the sale of our securities and the issuance of debt as well as revenue derived from
operations.

We incurred an accumulated deficit of $13,388,991 through December 31, 2017 and incurred negative cash flow from operations of $1,907,581 and
$1,929,453 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. We have spent, and need to continue to spend, substantial amounts in connection
with implementing our business strategy, including our planned product development effort and will be required to raise additional funding.

At December 31, 2017, we had cash of $19,028 and a working capital deficit of $4,696,182. We believe that the current cash balances together with
revenue anticipated to be generated from operations will not be sufficient to meet our current working capital needs and as mentioned above, we will seek
further funding from either equity issues or further debt funding, should we not be successful, we may have to curtail our operations significantly.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company raised $404,916 in notes payable and a further $1,832,253 of short-term convertible debt from
the issuance of debt securities, to fund the operations of the business. During 2017, $94,267 in convertible loans were exchanged for 753,424 shares of
common stock.

Subsequent to December 31, 2017 we raised the following additional funds:

 • An additional $327,500 in variably priced convertible securities with short term maturities of one year or less.
 
 • An additional $155,500 from an investor in funds that have not been designated as yet.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, we purchased and capitalized $17,538 in kiosks.

We have notes payable from related parties and convertible notes payable, all with maturities of less than one year. The notes payable from related
parties amounts to $349,916 and our convertible notes payable from related parties has an aggregate principal outstanding of $1,152,070 and accrued interest
thereon as of December 31, 2017 of $31,231, The convertible notes payable to non-related parties amounted to an aggregate principal of $1,341,964 , and
accrued interest thereon of $49,971. Other than the above we have minimal commitments which include a lease of an office facility with a future commitment of
$40,500 in each of the years 2018 and 2019.

We entered into an additional ten-year licensing agreement with the Licensor on May 1, 2015, whereby we are committed to pay an annual license fee
in quarterly installments of $5,000 ($20,000 per annum) to the Licensor for an exclusive license for the Mexican market of certain revenue payment services.

Our primary financial commitments as of the date hereof are payments owed commitments due under the license agreement is summarized as follows:

  Amount 
     
2018  $ 20,100 
2019   20,100 
2020   20,100 
2021    20,100 
2022 and thereafter   67,167 
  $ 147,567 

Capital Expenditures

None.
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Critical Accounting Policies

a) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions, which are
evaluated on an ongoing basis, that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Management bases
its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the amounts of revenues and expenses that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates and judgments. In particular, significant estimates and judgments include
those related to: the estimated useful lives for plant and equipment, the fair value of warrants and stock options granted for services or compensation,
estimates of the probability and potential magnitude of contingent liabilities, derivative liabilities, the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets due to
continuing operating losses, those related to revenue recognition and the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Making estimates requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect of a condition,
situation or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the consolidated financial statements, which management considered in formulating its
estimate could change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events. Accordingly, the actual results could differ significantly from our
estimates.

b) Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to us but which will only be resolved when one
or more future events occur or fail to occur. Our management assesses such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise
of judgment.

If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be estimated,
then the estimated liability would be accrued in our consolidated financial statements. If the assessment indicates that a potential material loss
contingency is not probable but is reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, together with
an estimate of the range of possible loss if determinable and material would be disclosed. Loss contingencies considered to be remote by management
are generally not disclosed unless they involve guarantees, in which case the guarantee would be disclosed.

c) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We adopted the guidance of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820 for fair value measurements which clarifies the definition of fair value,
prescribes methods for measuring fair value, and establishes a fair value hierarchy to classify the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities available at the measurement date.

Level 2-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, and inputs derived from or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3-Inputs are unobservable inputs which reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions on what assumptions the market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability based on the best available information.

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, other assets, accounts payable, accrued
liabilities, and notes payable, approximate fair value due to the relatively short period to maturity for these instruments. The Company has identified the
short term convertible notes and certain warrants attached to certain of the notes that are required to be presented on the balance sheets at fair value in
accordance with the accounting guidance.

ASC 825–10 “Financial Instruments” allows entities to voluntarily choose to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value (fair value option).
The fair value option may be elected on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable unless a new election date occurs. If the fair value option
is elected for an instrument, unrealized gains and losses for that instrument should be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. We
evaluate the fair value of variably priced derivative liabilities on a quarterly basis and report any movements thereon in earnings.
 

d) Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are reported at realizable value, net of allowances for doubtful accounts, which is estimated and recorded in the period the related
revenue is recorded. We have a standardized approach to estimate and review the collectability of its receivables based on a number of factors,
including the period they have been outstanding. Historical collection and payer reimbursement experience is an integral part of the estimation process
related to allowances for doubtful accounts. In addition, we regularly assess the state of our billing operations in order to identify issues, which may
impact the collectability of these receivables or reserve estimates. Revisions to the allowance for doubtful accounts estimates are recorded as an
adjustment to bad debt expense. Receivables deemed uncollectible are charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts at the time such
receivables are written-off. Recoveries of receivables previously written-off are recorded as credits to the allowance for doubtful accounts. There were no
recoveries during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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e) Inventory

We primarily value inventories at the lower of cost or net realizable value on a first-in, first-out basis. We identify and write down our excess and obsolete
inventories to net realizable value based on usage forecasts, order volume and inventory aging. With the development of new products, we also
rationalize our product offerings and will write-down discontinued product to the lower of cost or net realizable value.

f) Intangibles

All of our intangible assets are subject to amortization. We evaluate the recoverability of intangible assets periodically by taking into account events or
circumstances that may warrant revised estimates of useful lives or that indicate the asset may be impaired. Where intangibles are deemed to be
impaired we recognize an impairment loss measured as the difference between the estimated fair value of the intangible and its book value.

g) License Agreements

License agreements acquired by us are reported at acquisition value less accumulated amortization and impairments.

Amortization

Amortization is reported in the statement of operations and comprehensive loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the intangible
assets unless the useful life is indefinite. Amortizable intangible assets are amortized from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful
life of the license agreement is five years which is the expected period for which we expect to derive a benefit from the underlying license agreements.
 

h) Long-Term Assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount
by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

i) Revenue Recognition

Our revenue recognition policy is consistent with the requirements of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 605, Revenue Recognition (ASC 605). In general, we record revenue when it is realized, or realizable and earned. We consider revenue to be
realized, or realizable and earned when, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the products or services have been approved by the customer
after delivery and/or installation acceptance or performance of services; the sales price is fixed or determinable within the contract; and collectability is
reasonably assured.

We have the following sources of revenue which is recognized on the basis described below.

 • Revenue from the sale of services.

Prepaid services are acquired from providers and is sold to end-users through kiosks that we own or kiosks that are owned by third parties. We
recognize the revenue on the sale of these services when the end-user deposits funds into the terminal and the prepaid service is delivered to the
end-user. The revenue is recognized at the gross value, including margin, of the prepaid service to us, net of any value-added tax which is collected
on behalf of the Mexican Revenue Authorities.

 • Payment processing provided to end-users

We provide a secure means for end-users to pay for certain services, such as utilities through our kiosks. We earn either a fixed per-transaction fee
or a fixed percentage of the service sold. We act as a collection agent and recognize the payment processing fee, net of any value-added taxes
collected on behalf of the Mexican Revenue Authorities, when the funds are deposited into the kiosk and the customer has settled his liability or has
acquired a prepaid service.

 • Revenue from the sale of kiosks.

We import, assemble and sell kiosks that are used to generate the revenues discussed above. Revenue is recognized on the full value of the kiosks
sold, net of any valued added taxation collected on behalf of the Mexican Revenue Authorities, when the customer takes delivery of the kiosk and
all the risks and rewards of ownership are passed to the customer.

14

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

We do not enter into any leasing of kiosks arrangements with customers and we do not generate any revenues from merchants who access our
terminals as yet.

j) Share-Based Payment Arrangements

Generally, all forms of share-based payments, including stock option grants, restricted stock grants and stock appreciation rights are measured at their
fair value on the awards’ grant date, based on the estimated number of awards that are ultimately expected to vest. Share-based compensation awards
issued to non-employees for services rendered are recorded at either the fair value of the services rendered or the fair value of the share-based
payment, whichever is more readily determinable. The expense resulting from share-based payments is recorded in operating expenses in the
consolidated statement of operations.

Prior to our reverse merger which took place on May 12, 2016, all share-based payments were based on management’s estimate of market value of our
equity. The factors considered in determining managements estimate of market value includes, assumptions of future revenues, expected cash flows,
market acceptability of our technology and the current market conditions. These assumptions are complex and highly subjective, compounded by the
business being in its early stage of development in a new market with limited data available.

Where equity transactions with arms-length third parties, who had applied their own assumptions and estimates in determining the market value of our
equity, had taken place prior to and within a reasonable time frame of any share-based payments, the value of those share transactions have been used
as the fair value for any share-based equity payments.

Where equity transactions with arms-length third parties, included both shares and warrants, the value of the warrants have been eliminated from the
unit price of the securities using a Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the value of the warrants. The assumptions used in the Black Scholes
valuation model includes market related interest rates for risk-free government issued treasury securities with similar maturities; the expected volatility of
our common stock based on companies operating in similar industries and markets; our estimated stock price; the expected dividend yield of the
Company and; the expected life of the warrants being valued.

Subsequent to our reverse merger which took place on May 12, 2016, we had utilized the market value of our common stock as quoted on the NASDAQ
OTCQB, as an indicator of the fair value of our common stock in determining share- based payment arrangements.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

None.

Contractual Obligations

  Payments due by period  

 
 

Total
  Less than 1 

year
  

1 -3 years
  

3 - 5 years
  More than 5 

years
 

                     
Operating lease obligations  $ 71,782  $ 35,891  $ 35,891  $ —  $ — 
Licenses  $ 147,567  $ 20,100  $ 60,300  $ 60,300  $ 6,867 
                     
  $ 219,349  $ 55,991  $ 96,191  $ 60,300  $ 6,867 

Inflation

The effect of inflation on the Company’s operating results was not significant.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable because we are a smaller reporting company.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
QPAGOS
 
Opinion on the Financial Statements
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of QPAGOS and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss, statement of changes in stockholders’ (deficit) equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year
period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the notes to consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
 
The Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has incurred a loss since inception and has not generated sufficient revenue to cover its operating
expenditures, raising substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as going concern. Management’s evaluation of the events and conditions and
management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 3. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 
 
Basis for Opinion
 
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
 
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
/s/ RBSM LLP
 
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2014.
 
Henderson, NV
 
April 17, 2018
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QPAGOS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

  December 31, 
2017

  December 31, 
2016

 

         
Assets         
         
Current Assets         

Cash  $ 19,028  $ 46,286 
Accounts receivable   59,628   79,943 
Inventory   504,794   350,273 
Recoverable IVA taxes and credits   215,990   353,780 
Other current assets   288,687   279,878 

Total Current Assets   1,088,127   1,110,160 
         
Non-Current Assets         

Plant and equipment, net   160,301   231,328 
Intangibles, net   125,417   168,417 
Investment – related party   3,000   3,000 
Other assets   6,950   9,847 

Total Non-Current Assets   295,668   412,592 
Total Assets  $ 1,383,795  $ 1,522,752 
         
Liabilities and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity         
         
Current Liabilities         

Accounts payable  $ 446,032  $ 320,487 
Loans payable – Related parties   349,916   — 
Notes payable   —   323,462 
Notes payable – related parties   —   203,288 
Convertible debt, net of unamortized discount of $652,563 and $75,888, respectively   724,776   1,180 
Convertible debt – related parties, net of unamortized discount of $338,709   859,190   — 
Derivative liability   3,277,621   113,074 
IVA and other taxes payable   7,178   166,108 
Advances from customers   119,597   132,133 

Total Current Liabilities   5,784,310   1,259,732 
         
Total Liabilities   5,784,310   1,259,732 
         
Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity         
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized, no preferred shares issued and outstanding

at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively
  —   — 

Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 56,207,424 and 55,454,000 shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

  5,620   5,545 

Additional paid-in-capital   8,494,502   8,284,522 
Accumulated deficit   (13,388,191)   (8,757,197)
Accumulated other comprehensive income   487,554   730,150 

Total Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity   (4,400,515)   263,020 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity  $ 1,383,795  $ 1,522,752 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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QPAGOS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2017

  Year Ended 
December 31, 

2016

 

         
Net Revenue  $ 3,941,273  $ 2,691,896 
         
Cost of Goods Sold   3,913,953   2,595,012 
         
Gross Profit   27,320   96,884 
         
General and administrative   2,196,213   4,312,107 
Depreciation and amortization   72,309   68,075 

Total Expense   2,268,522   4,380,182 
Loss from Operations   (2,241,202)   (4,283,298)
         
Other (expense) income   (166,432)   788 
Interest expense, net   (2,071,781)   (54,610)
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities   (330,134)   (36,074)
Foreign currency loss   178,555   (357,855)
Loss before Provision for Income Taxes   (4,630,994)   (4,731,049)
         
Provision for Income Taxes   —   — 
         
Net Loss  $ (4,630,994)  $ (4,731,049)
         
Net Loss Per Share - Basic and Diluted  $ (0.08)  $ (0.09)
         
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding - Basic and Diluted   55,653,369   52,728,587 
         
Other Comprehensive Income         

Foreign currency translation adjustment   (242,596)   323,580 
         
Total Comprehensive loss  $ (4,873,590)  $ (4,407,469)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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 QPAGOS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY 
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2016 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

                  

  Preferred Stock   Common Stock   Additional Paid-
in Capital

  

Accumulated Deficit

  Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

  

Total 
Stockholders’

(Deficit)
Equity

 
  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount          

Balance as of December 31, 2015   —  $ —   44,784,000  $ 4,478  $ 5,735,861  $ (4,026,148) $ 406,570  $ 2,120,761 
                                 
Equity based compensation   —   —   —   —   144,000   —   —   144,000 
                                 
Shares issued for services   —   —   5,145,000   515   2,031,760   —   —   2,032,275 
                                 
Shares retained by accounting acquirer in reverse
merger transaction           5,025,000   503   (2,050)  —   —   1,547 

                                 
Shares issued for cash   —   —   500,000   49   374,951   —   —   375,000 
                                 
Translation adjustment   —   —   —   —   —   —   323,580   323,580 
                                 
net loss for the year ended December 31, 2016   —   —   —   —   —   (4,731,049)  —   (4,731,049)
                                 
Balance as of December 31, 2016   —  $ —   55,454,000  $ 5,545  $ 8,284,522  $ (8,757,197) $ 730,150  $ 263,020 
                                 
Conversion of debt to equity   —   —   753,424   75   209,980   —   —   210,055 
                                 
Translation adjustment   —   —   —   —   —   —   (242,596)  (242,596)
                                 
net loss for the year ended December 31, 2017   —   —   —   —   —   (4,630,994)  —   (4,630,994)
                                 

Balance as of December 31, 2017   —  $ —   56,207,424  $ 5,620  $ 8,494,502  $ (13,388,191) $ 487,554  $ (4,400,515)

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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QPAGOS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2017

  Year Ended 
December 31, 

2016

 

         
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:         
Net loss   (4,630,994)   (4,731,049)
Adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         
Depreciation expense   65,827   61,412 
Amortization expense   43,000   43,907 
Inventory provision   26,028   — 
Equity based compensation charge   —   144,000 
Shares issued for services   —   2,032,275 
Convertible notes issued for services   221,072   — 
Derivative liability movements   330,134   36,074 
Amortization of debt discount   1,919,030   1,112 
Loss on conversion of debt to equity   112,665   — 
Non-cash investment in affiliates   —   (3,000)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities         
Accounts receivable   25,361   162,132 
Inventory   (228,939)   45,742 
Recoverable IVA taxes and credits   162,035   64,117 
Other current assets   5,832   (227,864)
Other assets   3,534   1,865 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   124,052   282,115 
IVA and other taxes payable   (174,083)   (25,936)
Advances from customers   (20,034)   130,147 
Interest accruals   107,899   53,498 
CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES   (1,907,581)   (1,929,453)
         
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:         
Reverse merger net liabilities   —   (1,547)
Purchase of property and equipment   (17,538)   (453)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES   (17,538)   (2,000)
         
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         
Proceeds on common stock issued   —   375,000 
Proceeds from loans payable   404,916   370,000 
Proceeds from short term notes and convertible notes   1,832,253   77,000 
Repayment of convertible notes   (235,000)   — 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES   2,002,169   822,000 
         
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents   (104,308)   323,580 
         
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH   (27,258)   (785,873)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD   46,286   832,159 
CASH AT END OF PERIOD  $ 19,028  $ 46,286 
         
CASH PAID FOR INTEREST AND TAXES:         
Cash paid for income taxes  $ —  $ — 
Cash paid for interest  $ 54,707  $ — 
         
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING AVTIVITIES         
Note payable, including interest thereon, converted to convertible notes payable  $ 692,623  $ — 
Conversion of notes payable into equity  $ 97,391  $ — 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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QPAGOS

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
1 ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
 

a) Organization
 
On May 12, 2016, QPAGOS (formerly known as Asiya Pearls, Inc.), a Nevada corporation (“QPAGOS”), entered into an Agreement and Plan of
Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Qpagos Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Qpagos Corporation”), and Qpagos Merge, Inc., a Delaware
corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of QPAGOS (“Merger Sub”).  Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on May 12, 2016, the merger was
consummated and Qpagos Corporation and Merger Sub merged (the “Merger”), with Qpagos Corporation continuing as the surviving corporation of
the Merger. 
 
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, upon consummation of the Merger, each share of Qpagos Corporation’s capital stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Merger was converted into the right to receive two shares of QPAGOS common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the
“Common Stock”). Additionally, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, upon consummation of the Merger, QPAGOS assumed all of Qpagos
Corporation’s warrants issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Merger, which are now exercisable for approximately 6,219,200 shares of
Common Stock, respectively, as of the date of the Merger. Prior to and as a condition to the closing of the Merger, the then-current QPAGOS
stockholder of 5,000,000 shares of Common Stock agreed to return to QPAGOS 4,975,000 shares of Common Stock held by such holder to
QPAGOS and the then-current QPAGOS stockholder retained an aggregate of 25,000 shares of Common Stock and the other stockholders of
QPAGOS retained 5,000,000 shares of Common Stock. Therefore, immediately following the Merger, Qpagos Corporation’s former stockholders
held 49,929,000 shares of QPAGOS common stock which represented approximately 91% of the outstanding Common Stock.
 
The Merger was treated as a reverse acquisition of QPAGOS, a public shell company, for financial accounting and reporting purposes. As such,
Qpagos Corporation was treated as the acquirer for accounting and financial reporting purposes while QPAGOS was treated as the acquired entity
for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Further, as a result, the historical financial statements that are reflected in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and that will be reflected in the Company’s future financial statements filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) will be those of Qpagos Corporation, and the Company’s assets, liabilities and results of operations will be consolidated with the assets,
liabilities and results of operations of Qpagos Corporation.
 
QPAGOS Corporation (“the Company”) was incorporated on May 1, 2015 under the laws of the state of Delaware to effectuate a reverse merger
transaction with Qpagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. (Qpagos) and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de C.V. (Redpag). Each of the entities were incorporated in
November 2013 in Mexico.
 
QPagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. was formed to process payment transactions for service providers it contracts with, and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de
C.V. was formed to deploy and operate kiosks as a distributor.  

 
On May 27, 2016 Asiya changed its name to QPAGOS. QPAGOS and its direct and indirect subsidiaries Qpagos Corporation, QPagos, S.A.P.I. de
C.V. and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de C.V., will be referred to hereafter as “the Company”.
 
On June 1, 2016, the board of directors changed the Company’s fiscal year end from October 31 to December 31.
 

b) Description of the business
 
QPAGOS Corporation, through its subsidiaries Qpagos and Redpag, provides physical and virtual payment services to the Mexican market. The
Company provides an integrated network of kiosks, terminals and payment channels that enable consumers in Mexico to deposit cash, convert it
into a digital form and remit the funds to any merchant in our network quickly and securely. The Company helps consumers and merchants connect
more efficiently in markets and consumer segments, such as Mexico, that are largely cash-based and lack convenient alternatives for consumers to
pay for goods and services in physical, online and mobile environments. For example, our licensed technology can be used to pay bills, add minutes
to mobile phones, purchase transportation and tickets, shop online or at a retail store, buy digital services or send money to a friend or relative.
 

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
 

a) Basis of Presentation
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S.
GAAP”).
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QPAGOS

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)

 
All amounts referred to in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are in United States Dollars ($) unless stated otherwise.
 

b) Principles of Consolidation
 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary in which it has a majority voting interest. All
significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. The entities included in these
consolidated financial statements are as follows:
 
QPAGOS – Parent Company
Qpagos Corporation – 100% owned
Qpagos, S.A. P.I de C.V., a Mexican entity (99.996% owned)
Redpag Electrónicos, S.A. P.I. de C.V., a Mexican entity (99.990% owned)
 

c) Mexican Operations
 
The financial statements of the Company’s Mexican operations are measured using local currencies as their functional currencies.
 
The Company translates the assets and liabilities of its Mexican subsidiaries at the exchange rates in effect at year end and the results of operations
at the average rate throughout the year. The translation adjustments are recorded directly as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, while
transaction gains (losses) are included in net income (loss). All sales to customers are in Mexico.
 

d) Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions,
which are evaluated on an ongoing basis, that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.
Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the amounts of revenues and
expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates and judgments. In particular, significant
estimates and judgments include those related to: the estimated useful lives for plant and equipment, the fair value of warrants and stock options
granted for services or compensation, estimates of the probability and potential magnitude of contingent liabilities, derivative liabilities, the valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets due to continuing operating losses, those related to revenue recognition and the allowance for doubtful accounts.
 
Making estimates requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect of a
condition, situation or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the consolidated financial statements, which management considered in
formulating its estimate could change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events. Accordingly, the actual results could differ
significantly from our estimates.
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QPAGOS

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

e) Contingencies
 
Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to the Company but which will only be
resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur.
 
The Company’s management assesses such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment.
 
If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be
estimated, then the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. If the assessment indicates that a
potential material loss contingency is not probable but is reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the
contingent liability, together with an estimate of the range of possible loss if determinable and material would be disclosed. Loss contingencies
considered to be remote by management are generally not disclosed unless they involve guarantees, in which case the guarantee would be
disclosed.
 

f) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
The Company adopted the guidance of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820 for fair value measurements which clarifies the definition of
fair value, prescribes methods for measuring fair value, and establishes a fair value hierarchy to classify the inputs used in measuring fair value as
follows:
 
Level 1-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities available at the measurement date.
 
Level 2-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and
liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, and inputs derived from or corroborated by observable
market data.
 
Level 3-Inputs are unobservable inputs which reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions on what assumptions the market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability based on the best available information.
 
The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, other assets, accounts payable, accrued
liabilities, and notes payable, approximate fair value due to the relatively short period to maturity for these instruments. The Company has identified
the short term convertible notes and certain warrants attached to certain of the notes that are required to be presented on the balance sheets at fair
value in accordance with the accounting guidance.
 
ASC 825–10 “Financial Instruments” allows entities to voluntarily choose to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value (fair value
option). The fair value option may be elected on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable, unless a new election date occurs. If the fair
value option is elected for an instrument, unrealized gains and losses for that instrument should be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting
date. We evaluate the fair value of variably priced derivative liabilities on a quarterly basis and report any movements thereon ibn earnings.
 

g) Risks and Uncertainties
 
The Company’s operations will be subject to significant risk and uncertainties including financial, operational, regulatory and other risks associated,
including the potential risk of business failure. The recent global economic crisis has caused a general tightening in the credit markets, lower levels
of liquidity, increases in the rates of default and bankruptcy, and extreme volatility in credit, equity and fixed income markets. These conditions not
only limit the Company’s access to capital, but also make it difficult for its customers, vendors and the Company to accurately forecast and plan
future business activities.
 
The Company’s operations are carried out in Mexico. Accordingly, the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations may be
influenced by the political, economic and legal environment in Mexico and by the general state of that economy. The Company’s results may be
adversely affected by changes in governmental policies with respect to laws and regulations, anti-inflationary measures, and rates and methods of
taxation, among other things.
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QPAGOS

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. (“ASU”) 2017-02, an amendment to Topic 805, Business Combinations. The
amendments in this Update clarify the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether
transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses. The amendments in this Update affect all reporting
entities that must determine whether they have acquired or sold a business. The amendments in this Update provide a more robust framework to
use in determining when a set of assets and activities is a business. The amendments in this Update apply to annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2017. The amendments in this Update should be applied prospectively on or after the effective date. No disclosures are required at
transition. The Company does not expect this guidance to have a material impact on its financial statements.
 
In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. (“ASU”) 2017-04, an amendment to Topic 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and
Other, an entity no longer will determine goodwill impairment by calculating the implied fair value of goodwill by assigning the fair value of a
reporting unit to all of its assets and liabilities as if that reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination. Because these amendments
eliminate Step 3 from the goodwill impairment test, they should reduce the cost and complexity of evaluating goodwill for impairment. An entity
should apply the amendments in this Update on a prospective basis. The amendments in this Update are effective for Goodwill impairment tests in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment tests performed on testing
dates after January 1, 2017. We are currently evaluating the effect ASU 2017-04 will have on our consolidated financial statements.
 
In February 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. (“ASU”) 2017-05, an amendment to Subtopic 610-20, Other Income—Gains
and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets. The amendments in this Update are required for public business entities and other
entities that have goodwill reported in their financial statements, under the amendments in this Update, an entity should perform its annual, or
interim, goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount. The amendments in this Update modify the
concept of impairment from the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value to the condition that exists
when the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value. An entity no longer will determine goodwill impairment by calculating the implied
fair value of goodwill by assigning the fair value of a reporting unit to all of its assets and liabilities as if that reporting unit had been acquired in a
business combination. An entity should apply the amendments in this Update on a prospective basis. The amendments in this Update are effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment tests performed on testing
dates after January 1, 2017. We are currently evaluating the effect ASU 2017-05 will have on our consolidated financial statements.
 
In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, Compensation-Retirement Benefits (Topic 715). This Update is being issued primarily to improve
the presentation of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost. This Update also includes amendments to the Overview
and Background Sections of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. Under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), defined benefit
pension cost and postretirement benefit cost (net benefit cost) comprise several components that reflect different aspects of an employer’s financial
arrangements as well as the cost of benefits provided to employees. Those components are aggregated for reporting in the financial statements. The
amendments in this Update apply to all employers, including not-for-profit entities that offer to their employees defined benefit pension plans, other
postretirement benefit plans, or other types of benefits accounted for under Topic 715. The amendments in this Update require that an employer
disaggregate the service cost component from the other components of net benefit cost. The amendments also provide explicit guidance on how to
present the service cost component and the other components of net benefit cost in the income statement and allow only the service cost
component of net benefit cost to be eligible for capitalization. The amendments in this Update are effective for public business entities for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those 3 annual periods. For other entities, the amendments in this
Update are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15,
2019. Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of an annual period for which financial statements have not been issued or made available for
issuance. The amendments in this Update should be applied retrospectively for the presentation of the service cost component and the other
components of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost in the income statement and prospectively, on and after the
effective date, for the capitalization of the service cost component of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit in assets. We
are currently evaluating the effect ASU 2017-07 will have on our consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08, Receivables—Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20) Premium Amortization of
Purchased Callable Debt Securities. The amendments in this Update affect all entities that hold investments in callable debt securities that have an
amortized cost basis in excess of the amount that is repayable by the issuer at the earliest call date (that is, at a premium). The amendments in this
Update shorten the amortization period for certain callable debt securities held at a premium. Specifically, the amendments require the premium to
be amortized to the earliest call date. The amendments do not require an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the discount continues
to be amortized to maturity. Under current GAAP, premiums and discounts on callable debt securities generally are amortized to the maturity date.
The amendments in this Update more closely align the amortization period of premiums and discounts to expectations incorporated in market pricing
on the underlying securities. As a result, the amendments more closely align interest income recorded on bonds held at a premium or a discount
with the economics of the underlying instrument. For public business entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. For all other entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is permitted,
including adoption in an interim period. If an entity early adopts the amendments in an interim period, any adjustments should be reflected as of the
beginning of the fiscal year that includes that interim period. An entity should apply the amendments in this Update on a modified retrospective basis
through a cumulative-effect adjustment directly to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. Additionally, in the period of
adoption, an entity should provide disclosures about a change in accounting principle. We are currently evaluating the effect ASU 2017-08 will have
on our consolidated financial statements.
 
In May 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. (“ASU’’) 2017-09, Compensation – Stock Compensation, an amendment to Topic
718. The amendments in this Update provide guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award require an
entity to apply modification accounting in Topic 718. 2. An entity should account for the effects of a modification unless all the following are met:
 

 1. The fair value (or calculated value or intrinsic value, if such an alternative measurement method is used) of the modified award is the same
as the fair value (or calculated value or intrinsic value, if such an alternative measurement method is used) of the original award immediately
before the original award is modified. If the modification does not affect any of the inputs to the valuation technique that the entity uses to
value the award, the entity is not required to estimate the value immediately before and after the modification.

 
 2. The vesting conditions of the modified award are the same as the vesting conditions of the original award immediately before the original

award is modified.
 
 3. The classification of the modified award as an equity instrument or a liability instrument is the same as the classification of the original award

immediately before the original award is modified.
 
The current disclosure requirements in Topic 718 apply regardless of whether an entity is required to apply modification accounting under the
amendments in this Update. The amendments in this Update are effective for all entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017.
Early adoption is permitted and should be applied prospectively to an award modified on or after the adoption date. The amendments proposed in
this ASU are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-10, service concession Arrangements, an amendment to Topic 853. Topic 853 provides guidance for
operating entities when they enter into a service concession arrangement with a public-sector grantor who both:
 

 1. Controls or has the ability to modify or approve the services that the operating entity must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must
provide them, and at what price

 
 2. Controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise, any residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the

arrangement.
 
In a service concession arrangement within the scope of Topic 853, the operating entity should not account for the infrastructure as a lease or as
property, plant, and equipment. An operating entity should refer to other Topics to account for various aspects of a service concession arrangement.
For example, an operating entity should account for revenue relating to construction, upgrade, or operation services in accordance with Topic 605,
Revenue Recognition, or Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
 
The amendments in this Update apply to the accounting by operating entities for service concession arrangements within the scope of Topic 853.
These updates are effective when the Company adopts the updates to Topic 606. The amendments proposed in this ASU are not expected to have
an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging, an amendment to Topic 815. The amendments in this Update better align
an entity’s risk management activities and financial reporting for hedging relationships through changes to both the designation and measurement
guidance for qualifying hedging relationships and the presentation of hedge results. To meet that objective, the amendments expand and refine
hedge accounting for both nonfinancial and financial risk components 2 and align the recognition and presentation of the effects of the hedging
instrument and the hedged item in the financial statements. The amendments in this Update require an entity to present the earnings effect of the
hedging instrument in the same income statement line item in which the earnings effect of the hedged item is reported.
 
The amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early
application is permitted in any interim period after issuance of the Update. All transition requirements and elections should be applied to hedging
relationships existing (that is, hedging relationships in which the hedging instrument has not expired, been sold, terminated, or exercised or the
entity has not removed the designation of the hedging relationship) on the date of adoption. The effect of adoption should be reflected as of the
beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.
 
In September 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),
Leases (Topic 840), and Leases (Topic 842). The amendments in this ASU deals with the transition and effective dates of implementing to ASU
2014-09, Revenue from contracts with customers, ASU 2016-08, Revenue from contracts with customers, principal versus agent considerations,
ASU 2016-10, revenues from contacts with customers; identifying performance obligations and licensing, ASU 2016-12, revenues from contacts with
customers, narrow scope improvements and practical expedients, 2016-20, technical corrections and improvements and ASU 2017-05, other
income, gains and losses from the derecognition of non-financial assets.
 
In November 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-14, Income Statement – Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic220), Revenue Recognition
(Topic 605) and Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The amendments in this update provide guidance about:
 
Certain amendments made to SEC materials and staff guidance relating to Operating-Differential subsidiaries, and amendments to the wording and
disclosure requirements of Topic 605, Revenue Recognition. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
In January 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-1, Leases (Topic 842), Land Easement practical expedient for Top 842. The amendments in this
update provide guidance about:
 
The amendments in this Update permit an entity to elect an optional transition practical expedient to not evaluate under Topic 842 land easements
that exist or expired before the entity’s adoption of Topic 842 and that were not previously accounted for as leases under Topic 840. An entity that
elects this practical expedient should apply the practical expedient consistently to all of its existing or expired land easements that were not
previously accounted for as leases under Topic 840. Once an entity adopts Topic 842, it should apply that Topic prospectively to all new (or
modified) land easements to determine whether the arrangement should be accounted for as a lease. An entity that does not elect this practical
expedient should evaluate all existing or expired land easements in connection with the adoption of the new lease requirements in Topic 842 to
assess whether they meet the definition of a lease. The amendment in this Update clarifies that an entity should determine whether land easements
are leases in accordance with Topic 842 before applying the guidance.
 
The impact this ASU will have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements is expected to be immaterial.
 
In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-2, Income Statement- Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220), Reclassification of certain tax
effects from accumulated other comprehensive income.
 
The amendments in this Update allow a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded tax effects
resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. Consequently, the amendments eliminate the stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs
Act and will improve the usefulness of information reported to financial statement users. However, because the amendments only relate to the
reclassification of the income tax effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the underlying guidance that requires that the effect of a change in tax laws or
rates be included in income from continuing operations is not affected. The amendments in this Update also require certain disclosures about
stranded tax effects.
 
The amendments in this Update are effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within that fiscal
year. Early adoption of the amendments in this Update is permitted, including adoption in any interim period, (1) for public business entities for
reporting periods for which financial statements have not yet been issued and (2) for all other entities for reporting periods for which financial
statements have not yet been made available for issuance. The amendments in this Update should be applied either in the period of adoption or
retrospectively to each period (or periods) in which the effect of the change in the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate in the Tax Cuts and Jobs
Act is recognized.
 
The impact this ASU will have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements will be a reduction in the tax effect of net operating losses carried
forward.
 
In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-3 Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments – Overall (Sub topic 825-10),
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendments in this Update provide guidance about:
 
The amendment clarifies that an entity measuring an equity security using the measurement alternative may change its measurement approach to a
fair value method in accordance with Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, through an irrevocable election that would apply to that security and all
identical or similar investments of the same issuer. Once an entity makes this election, the entity should measure all future purchases of identical or
similar investments of the same issuer using a fair value method in accordance with Topic 820.
 
The amendment clarifies that the adjustments made under the measurement alternative are intended to reflect the fair value of the security as of the
date that the observable transaction for a similar security took place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
The amendment clarifies that remeasuring the entire value of forward contracts and purchased options is required when observable transactions
occur on the underlying equity securities.
 
The amendment clarifies that when the fair value option is elected for a financial liability, the guidance in paragraph 825-10-45-5 should be applied,
regardless of whether the fair value option was elected under either Subtopic 815-15, Derivatives and Hedging— Embedded Derivatives, or 825-10,
Financial Instruments— Overall.
 
The amendments clarify that for financial liabilities for which the fair value option is elected, the amount of change in fair value that relates to the
instrument specific credit risk should first be measured in the currency of denomination when presented separately from the total change in fair
value of the financial liability. Then, both components of the change in the fair value of the liability should be remeasured into the functional currency
of the reporting entity using end-of-period spot rates.
 
The amendment clarifies that the prospective transition approach for equity securities without a readily determinable fair value in the amendments in
Update 2016-01 is meant only for instances in which the measurement alternative is applied. An insurance entity subject to the guidance in Topic
944, Financial Services—Insurance, should apply a prospective transition method when applying the amendments related to equity securities without
readily determinable fair values. An insurance entity should apply the selected prospective transition method consistently to the entity’s entire
population of equity securities for which the measurement alternative is elected.
 
The amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2018. Public business entities with fiscal years beginning between December 15, 2017, and June 15, 2018, are not required
to adopt these amendments until the interim period beginning after June 15, 2018, and public business entities with fiscal years beginning between
June 15, 2018, and December 15, 2018, are not required to adopt these amendments before adopting the amendments in Update 2016-01. For all
other entities, the effective date is the same as the effective date in Update 2016-01. All entities may early adopt these amendments for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years, as long as they have adopted Update 2016-01.
 
The amendments in this update are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
In March 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-4 Investments – Debt Securities (Topic 320) and Regulated Operations (Topic 980), Amendments to
SEC Paragraphs pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin no. 117 and SEC Release No. 33-9273. The amendments in this update provide
guidance about:
 
Certain amendments made to SEC materials and staff guidance relating to Investments – Debt Securities (Topic 320) and Regulated Operations
(Topic 980).
 
The amendments in this update are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
In March 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-5, Income Taxes (Topic 740) Amendments to SEC paragraphs pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 118
 
These amendments affect the wording of SEC paragraphs in the accounting standard codification dealing with Income Taxes (Topic 740).
 
The amendments in this update are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
The transition provisions require adoption of Topic 606 for annual reporting periods commencing after December 15, 2017 and the adoption of Topic
842 for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 for public business entities, if the requirements of a public business entity as
defined in ASU 2017-12 are not met, may adopt Topic 606 for annual reporting periods commencing after December 15, 2018 and for Topic 842 for
annual reporting periods commencing after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted of both Topics. The Company has evaluated the impact
of this ASU and has initially concluded that the impact will be immaterial.
 
Any new accounting standards, not disclosed above, that have been issued or proposed by FASB that do not require adoption until a future date are
not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.
 

i) Reporting by Segment
 
No segmental information is required as the Company currently only has one segment of business, providing physical and virtual payment services
in the Mexican Market.
 

j) Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents.
At December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, the Company had no cash equivalents.
 
The Company minimizes credit risk associated with cash by periodically evaluating the credit quality of its primary financial institution in the United
States. The balance at times may exceed federally insured limits. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the balance did not exceed the federally insured
limit.
 

k) Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
 
Accounts receivable are reported at realizable value, net of allowances for doubtful accounts, which is estimated and recorded in the period the
related revenue is recorded. The Company has a standardized approach to estimate and review the collectability of its receivables based on a
number of factors, including the period they have been outstanding. Historical collection and payer reimbursement experience is an integral part of
the estimation process related to allowances for doubtful accounts. In addition, the Company regularly assesses the state of its billing operations in
order to identify issues, which may impact the collectability of these receivables or reserve estimates. Revisions to the allowance for doubtful
accounts estimates are recorded as an adjustment to bad debt expense. Receivables deemed uncollectible are charged against the allowance for
doubtful accounts at the time such receivables are written-off. Recoveries of receivables previously written-off are recorded as credits to the
allowance for doubtful accounts. There were no recoveries during the period ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
 

l) Cost Method Investments
 
Investee companies not accounted for under the consolidation or the equity method are accounted for under the cost method of accounting. Under
this method, the Company’s share of earnings or losses of such investee companies is not included in the consolidated balance sheet or statement
of operations and comprehensive loss. However, impairment charges are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive
loss. If circumstances suggest that the value of the investee company has subsequently recovered, such recovery is not recorded. There is no
impairment of investment at December 31, 2017.
 

m) Inventory
 
The Company primarily values inventories at the lower of cost or net realizable value applied on a first-in, first-out basis. The Company identifies
and writes down its excess and obsolete inventories to net realizable value based on usage forecasts, order volume and inventory aging. With the
development of new products, the Company also rationalizes its product offerings and will write-down discontinued product to the lower of cost or
net realizable value.
 

n) Advances received from customers
 
Other than the sale of kiosks to customers, the provision of services through our kiosks is conducted on a cash basis. Customers are required to
deposit cash with the Company to meet anticipated demand for services provided through kiosks either owned or operated by them. The services
provided through the customer owned or operated kiosks are deducted from the deposits held on their behalf, the Company requires that these
deposits be replenished as and when the services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

o) Plant and Equipment
 

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Plant and equipment with costs greater than $1,000 are capitalized and
depreciated. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of the
assets are as follows:
 

Description  Estimated Useful Life

Kiosks  7 years

Computer equipment  3 years

Leasehold improvements  Lesser of estimated useful life or life of lease

Office equipment  10 years
 
The cost of repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred. When assets are retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are included in income in the year of disposition.
 

p) Intangibles
 
All of our intangible assets are subject to amortization. We evaluate the recoverability of intangible assets periodically by taking into account events
or circumstances that may warrant revised estimates of useful lives or that indicate the asset may be impaired. Where intangibles are deemed to be
impaired we recognize an impairment loss measured as the difference between the estimated fair value of the intangible and its book value.
 
i) License Agreements
 

License agreements acquired by the Company are reported at acquisition value less accumulated amortization and impairments.
 

ii) Amortization
 

Amortization is reported in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the intangible assets, unless the useful
life is indefinite. Amortizable intangible assets are amortized from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of the license
agreement is five years which is the expected period for which we expect to derive a benefit from the underlying license agreements.
 

q) Long-Term Assets
 

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted
net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.
 

r) Revenue Recognition
 

The Company’s revenue recognition policy is consistent with the requirements of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 605, Revenue Recognition (ASC 605). In general, the Company records revenue when it is realized, or realizable and
earned. The Company considers revenue to be realized, or realizable and earned when, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the products
or services have been approved by the customer after delivery and/or installation acceptance or performance of services; the sales price is fixed or
determinable within the contract; and collectability is reasonably assured.
 
The Company has the following sources of revenue which is recognized on the basis described below.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

r) Revenue Recognition (continued)
 

☐ Revenue from the sale of services.
 
Prepaid services are acquired from providers and is sold to end-users through kiosks that the Company owns or kiosks that are owned by third
parties. We recognize the revenue on the sale of these services when the end-user deposits funds into the terminal and the prepaid service is
delivered to the end-user. The revenue is recognized at the gross value, including margin, of the prepaid service to the Company, net of any value-
added tax which is collected on behalf of the Mexican Revenue Authorities.
 

☐ Payment processing provided to end-users
 
The Company provides a secure means for end-users to pay for certain services, such as utilities through our kiosks. The Company earns either a
fixed per-transaction fee or a fixed percentage of the service sold. The Company acts as a collection agent and recognizes the payment processing
fee, net of any value-added taxes collected on behalf of the Mexican Revenue Authorities, when the funds are deposited into the kiosk and the
customer has settled his liability or has acquired a prepaid service.
 

☐ Revenue from the sale of kiosks.
 
The Company imports, assembles and sells kiosks that are used to generate the revenues discussed above. Revenue is recognized on the full
value of the kiosks sold, net of any valued added taxation collected on behalf of the Mexican Revenue Authorities, when the customer takes
delivery of the kiosk and all the risks and rewards of ownership are passed to the customer.
 
The Company does not enter into any leasing of kiosks arrangements with customers and we do not generate any revenues from merchants who
access our terminals as yet.
 

s) Share-Based Payment Arrangements
 
Generally, all forms of share-based payments, including stock option grants, restricted stock grants and stock appreciation rights are measured at
their fair value on the awards’ grant date, based on the estimated number of awards that are ultimately expected to vest. Share-based compensation
awards issued to non-employees for services rendered are recorded at either the fair value of the services rendered or the fair value of the share-
based payment, whichever is more readily determinable. The expense resulting from share-based payments is recorded in operating expenses in
the consolidated statement of operations.
 
Prior to the Company’s reverse merger which took place on May 12, 2016, all share-based payments were based on management’s estimate of
market value of the Company’s equity. The factors considered in determining managements estimate of market value includes, assumptions of
future revenues, expected cash flows, market acceptability of our technology and the current market conditions. These assumptions are complex
and highly subjective, compounded by the business being in its early stage of development in a new market with limited data available.
 
Where equity transactions with arms-length third parties, who had applied their own assumptions and estimates in determining the market value of
our equity, had taken place prior to and within a reasonable time frame of any share-based payments, the value of those share transactions have
been used as the fair value for any share-based equity payments.
 
Where equity transactions with arms-length third parties, included both shares and warrants, the value of the warrants have been eliminated from the
unit price of the securities using a Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the value of the warrants. The assumptions used in the Black
Scholes valuation model includes market related interest rates for risk-free government issued treasury securities with similar maturities; the
expected volatility of the Company’s common stock based on companies operating in similar industries and markets; the estimated stock price of the
Company; the expected dividend yield of the Company and; the expected life of the warrants being valued.
 
Subsequent to the Company’s reverse merger which took place on May 12, 2016, the Company has utilized the market value of its common stock
as quoted on the OTCQB, as an indicator of the fair value of its common stock in determining share- based payment arrangements.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (continued)
 

t) Derivative Liabilities
 

ASC 815 generally provides three criteria that, if met, require companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and account for
them as free standing derivative financial instruments. These three criteria include circumstances in which (a) the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivative instrument are not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, (b) the hybrid
instrument that embodies both the embedded derivative instrument and the host contract is not re- measured at fair value under otherwise applicable
generally accepted accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they occur and (c) a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a derivative instrument subject to the requirements of ASC 815. ASC 815 also
provides an exception to this rule when the host instrument is deemed to be conventional, as described.
 

u) Income Taxes
 

The Company’s primary operations are based in Mexico and currently enacted tax laws in Mexico are used in the calculation of income taxes, the
holding company is based in the US and currently enacted US tax laws are used in the calculation of income taxes.
 
Income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the currently
enacted tax rates and laws. A full valuation allowance is provided for the amount of deferred tax assets that, based on available evidence, are not
expected to be realized. It is the Company’s policy to classify interest and penalties on income taxes as interest expense or penalties expense. As of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, there have been no interest or penalties incurred on income taxes.
 

v) Comprehensive income
 
Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of a company during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances
excluding transactions resulting from investments from owners and distributions to owners. For the Company, comprehensive income for the periods
presented includes translation adjustment and net loss.
 

3 GOING CONCERN
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future. The Company has incurred a loss since inception resulting in an accumulated
deficit of $13,388,191 as of December 31, 2017 and has not generated sufficient revenue to cover its operating expenditure, raising substantial doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. In addition to operational expenses, as the Company executes its business plan, additional
capital resources will be required. The Company will need to raise capital in the near term in order to continue operating and executing its business plan.
The ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the Company generating profitable operations in the future and/or obtaining the necessary
financing to meet its obligations and repay its liabilities arising from normal business operations when they come due. The Company’s plan is to expand
its market penetration by deploying more kiosks through various channels, thereby increasing revenues, in addition, the Company intends to raise
additional equity or loan funds to meet its short term working capital needs. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments to
reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classifications of liabilities that may result from the
possible inability of the Company to continue as a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date the financial statements were issued.
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4 ACQUISITION

 
On May 12, 2016, Asiya Pearls, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Asiya”), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Qpagos Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Qpagos Corporation”), and Qpagos Merge, Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of
the Asiya (“Merger Sub”).  Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on May 12, 2016 the merger was consummated and Qpagos Corporation and Merger Sub
merged (the “Merger”), with Qpagos Corporation continuing as the surviving corporation of the Merger.
 
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, upon consummation of the Merger, each share of Qpagos Corporation’s capital stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Merger was converted into the right to receive two shares of Asiya’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Common
Stock”). Additionally, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, upon consummation of the Merger, Asiya assumed all of Qpagos Corporation’s warrants issued
and outstanding immediately prior to the Merger, which are now exercisable for approximately 6,219,200 shares of Common Stock, respectively, as of
the date of the Merger. Prior to and as a condition to the closing of the Merger, the then-current Asiya stockholder of 5,000,000 shares of Common Stock
agreed to return to Asiya 4,975,000 shares of Common Stock held by such holder to Asiya and the then-current Asiya stockholder retained an aggregate
of 25,000 shares of Common Stock and the other stockholders of Asiya retained 5,000,000 shares of Common Stock. Therefore, immediately following
the Merger, Qpagos Corporation’s former stockholders held 49,929,000 shares of Asiya common stock which represented approximately 91% of the
Company Common Stock outstanding.
 
The Merger is being treated as a reverse acquisition of Asiya, a public shell company, for financial accounting and reporting purposes. As such, Qpagos
Corporation is treated as the acquirer for accounting and financial reporting purposes while Asiya is treated as the acquired entity for accounting and
financial reporting purposes. Further, as a result, the historical financial statements that will be reflected in the Company’s future financial statements
filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) will be those of Qpagos Corporation, and the Company’s assets, liabilities and
results of operations will be consolidated with the assets, liabilities and results of operations of Qpagos Corporation.
 

5 INVENTORY
 
Inventory consisted of the following as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:  
 
  December 31, 2017   December 31, 2016  
Kiosks  $ 504,794  $ 350,273 
  $ 504,794  $ 350,273 

 
6 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 

Plant and Equipment consisted of the following as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:
 
  December 31, 2017   December 31, 2016  
       
Kiosks  $ 263,709  $ 269,810 
Computer equipment   73,448   69,577 
Office equipment   9,911   9,430 
Leasehold improvement   8,608   8,192 
Total cost   355,676   357,009 
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization   (195,375)   (125,681)
Plant and equipment, net  $ 160,301  $ 231,328 
 
Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $65,827 and $62,319 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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7 INTANGIBLES

License

Localization and implementation of the different software and technology modules is supported through a Localization Agreement. Under this agreement, at
a cost of $215,000, the Licensor allocated engineering and programming resources to the Company. The cost is being amortized over 5 years.

On May 1, 2015, the Company entered into a ten-year license with the Licensor for the non-exclusive right to license technology to provide payment
services. Subsequently, on November 1, 2015, the Company and the Licensor concluded an additional amendment to the License Agreement by which
the Licensor agreed to the exclusivity to the Mexican market subject to the payment of $20,000 per year payable in quarterly installments, the first two
such installments payable December 1, 2015. The agreement may be terminated early by the Licensor if the Company fails to comply with its terms and
conditions.

Intangibles consisted of the following:

 
 December 31, 

2017
  December 31, 

2016
 

         
Software Localization Agreement  $ 215,000  $ 215,000 
Total cost   215,000   215,000 
Less: accumulated amortization   (89,583)   (46,583)
Intangibles, net  $ 125,417  $ 168,417 

Amortization expense was $43,000 and $43,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

8 NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable consisted of the following:

Description
 Interest 

Rate
  

Maturity
  December 31, 

2017
  December 31, 

2016
 

YP Holdings LLC   12%  December 31, 2015  $ —  $ 151,353 
Strategic IR   10%  January 1, 2017   —   146,575 
Joseph W and Patricia G Abrams   10%  June 13, 2017   —   25,534 

Total notes payable          $ —  $ 323,462 

Interest expense totaled $0 and $3,025 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

YP Holdings LLC

On September 21, 2015, Qpagos Corporation borrowed $100,000 from YP Holdings LLC (“YP”), pursuant to an unsecured loan agreement. The unpaid
balance and any accrued interest was due on December 31, 2015. The loan bears interest at a rate of 12%. On May 26, 2017, the Company re-negotiated
the loan with YP Holdings and exchanged the note with a convertible note in the Company, refer to note 9 below.
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8 NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Strategic IR

Effective October 14, 2016 the Company executed an unsecured promissory note for $50,000, for an advance that took place on September 29, 2016,
which matured on February 13, 2017, bearing interest at 10% per annum. The maturity date of this loan was extended to May 19, 2017 and further
extended to June 29, 2017 by the execution of Extension Agreements.

On June 29, 2017, the note, principal amount of $50,000 and accrued interest thereon of $3,740 was exchanged for a convertible note, refer to note 9
below.

On May 12, 2017, the Company executed an unsecured promissory note for $20,000 with an investor, bearing interest at 10% per annum payable on
June 11, 2017. Effective June 11, 2017, the note, principal amount of $20,000 and accrued interest thereon of $164 was exchanged for a convertible note,
refer note to 9 below.

On May 19, 2017, the Company executed a Secured Grid Note for advances totaling $110,000 which took place between December 12, 2016 and
March 6, 2017, bearing interest at 10% per annum maturing on May 30, 2017 or earlier upon acceleration by Strategic IR. The Company entered into an
extension agreement with Strategic IR extending the maturity date of the note to June 29, 2017.

On June 29, 2017, the note, principal amount of $110,000 and accrued interest thereon of $5,535 was exchanged for a convertible note, refer to note 9
below.

Joseph W and Patricia G Abrams
 

Effective October 14, 2016, the Company executed an unsecured promissory note for $25,000 with an investor, bearing interest at 10% per annum
payable on February 13, 2017. On February 13, 2017, the Company executed an amended and restated promissory note extending the maturity date to
June 13, 2017 and increasing the interest rate to 15% per annum.

On June 13, 2017, the note, principal amount of $25,000 and accrued interest thereon of $1,247 was exchanged for a convertible note, refer to note 9
below.

Viktoria Akhmetova
 

Ms. Akhmetova is considered to be a related party as her shareholding exceeds 5%.
 

On May 12, 2017, the Company executed an unsecured promissory note for $20,000 with an investor, bearing interest at 10% per annum payable on June
11, 2017.

 
Effective June 11, 2017, the note, principal amount of $20,000 and accrued interest thereon of $164 was exchanged for a convertible note, refer to
Convertible Notes Payable below.
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9 CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

Convertible notes payable consists of the following:

Description  
Interest

rate  Maturity Date  Principal   
Accrued
interest   

Unamortized
debt discount   

December 31, 
2017

Balance, 
net   

December 31, 
2016

Balance, 
net  

                     
Power Up Lending Group   8%  September 30, 2017  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 1,180 
   8%  November 30, 2017   —   —   —   —   — 
   8%  April 20, 2018   83,000   3,165   (32,148)   54,017   — 
   8%  June 30, 2018   63,000   1,491   (39,457)   25,034   — 
   8%  August 30, 2018   53,000   546   (44,381)   9,165   — 
                           
Labrys Fund, LP   8%  June 14, 2018   78,000   291   (70,714)   7,577   — 
                           
JSJ Investments, Inc.   8%  November 29, 2018   75,000   526   (68,425)   7,101   — 
                           
GS Capital Partners, LLC   8%  May 22, 2018   35,000   1,728   (13,616)   23,112   — 
   8%  June 16, 2018   112,500   4,882   (51,473)   65,909   — 
                           
Strategic IR   15%  December 8, 2018   10,000   693   —   10,693   — 
   15%  December 8, 2018   20,164   1,384   —   21,548   — 
   15%  December 26, 2018   53,740   3,291   —   57,031   — 
   15%  December 26, 2018   115,535   7,075   —   122,610   — 
   8%  October 3, 2018   14,298   6   (11,595)   2,709   — 
                           
Viktoria Akhmetova   15%  December 8, 2018   20,164   1,384   —   21,548   — 
   8%  October 20, 2018   50,000   811   (39,918)   10,893     
   8%  August 24,2018   113,845   1,547   (73,610)   41,782   — 
   8%  September 18, 2018   69,047   560   (49,373)   20,234   — 
   8%  September 26, 2018   20,000   127   (14,740)   5,387   — 
Joseph W and Patricia G Abrams   15%  December 10, 2018   26,247   1,780   —   28,027   — 
   15%  January 27, 2019   3,753   189   (563)   3,379   — 
                           
Roman Shefer   15%  December 24, 2018   10,000   621   —   10,621   — 
                           
Crown Bridge Partners, LLC   8%  August 14, 2018   75,000   2,285   (46,439)   30,846   — 
                           
BOBA Management   8%  August 31, 2018   88,847   1,071   (59,150)   30,768   — 
   8%  October 3, 2018   48,880   236   (36,961)   12,155   — 
   8%  December 24, 2017   100,000   2,360   —   102,630   — 
                           

Total convertible notes payable        $ 1,339,020  $ 38,319  $ (652,563)  $ 724,776  $ 1,180 

Interest expense amounted to $96,434 and $68 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Debt discount amortized amounted to
$1,171,281 and $1,112 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The convertible notes disclosed above with a coupon of 15%, have a fixed conversion price of $0.20 per common share and certain investors who met a
minimum investment requirement of $30,000 were issued three-year warrants convertible into common shares at a conversion price of; i) $0.20 per share
if the convertible notes are converted prior to maturity date; and ii) $0.30 per share if the convertible notes are not converted prior to maturity date. These
convertible notes have a beneficial conversion feature. The beneficial conversion feature was valued using a Black-Scholes valuation model, refer note 11
c) below, the value of the beneficial conversion feature of the notes were determined based on fair market price of the common stock at the date of the
issuance of the note and the conversion price. The difference between the fair market value and the conversion price was recorded as a debt discount with
a corresponding credit to derivative financial liability.

The remaining convertible notes have variable conversion prices based on a discount to market price of trading activity over a specified period of time. The
variable conversion features were valued using a Black Scholes valuation model. The difference between the fair market value of the common stock and
the calculated conversion price on the issuance date was recorded as a debt discount with a corresponding credit to derivative financial liability.

The total value of the beneficial conversion feature recorded as a debt discount during the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $2,383,113 and
$77,000, respectively.
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9 CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Power Up Lending Group Ltd.

On December 28, 2016, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company issued a Convertible Promissory
Note in the aggregate principal amount of $77,000 to Power Up Lending Group Ltd. The note had a maturity date of September 30, 2017 and a coupon of
eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a payment to the purchaser as set forth in the note within
180 days of its issue date. The note provided that its outstanding principal amount was convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the
note holder during the period beginning on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion
price equal to 58% of the average of the lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion.

On June 27, 2017, the Company prepaid this note for a total of $107,005, including accrued interest thereon and an early settlement penalty of 35% of the
principal outstanding.

On February 21, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company issued a Convertible Promissory
Note in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000 to Power Up Lending Group Ltd. The note has a maturity date of November 30, 2017 and a coupon of
eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a payment to the Purchaser as set forth in the note within
180 days of its issue date. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the note holder
during the period beginning on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion price equal
to 60% of the average of the lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion.

On August 22, 2017, the Company prepaid this note for a total of $73,560, including accrued interest thereon and an early settlement penalty of 35% of the
principal outstanding.

On April 25, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in
the aggregate principal amount of $33,000 to Power Up Lending Group Ltd. The note has a maturity date of February 10, 2018 and the Company has
agreed to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance of the note at the rate of eight percent per annum from the date on which the note is issued until the
same becomes due and payable, whether at maturity or upon acceleration or by prepayment or otherwise. The Company has the right to prepay the note
in terms of agreement. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the purchaser during
the period beginning on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60%
of the average lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion.

On October 23, 2017, Anna Mosk, the Principal of Strategic IR, entered into an agreement whereby a convertible note was acquired from Power Up
Lending Group for the principal balance of $33,000 and accrued interest thereon of $1,309. An additional payment of $14,298 was made by Strategic IR
on behalf of the Company as compensation for the early settlement penalty and legal fees incurred on assigning the note to Strategic IR.

On July 10, 2017, the Company, entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in
the aggregate principal amount of $83,000 to Power Up Lending Group Ltd. The note has a maturity date of April 20, 2018 and the Company has agreed
to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance of the note at the rate of eight percent per annum from the date on which the note is issued until the same
becomes due and payable, whether at maturity or upon acceleration or by prepayment or otherwise. The Company has the right to prepay the note in
terms of agreement. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the purchaser during
the period beginning on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 58%
of the average lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $54,017, net of unamortized discount of $32,148.

On September 14, 2017, the Company, entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Company issued a Convertible Promissory
Note in the aggregate principal amount of $63,000 to Power Up Lending Group Ltd. The note has a maturity date of June 30, 2018 and the Company has
agreed to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance of the note at the rate of eight percent per annum from the date on which the note is issued until the
same becomes due and payable, whether at maturity or upon acceleration or by prepayment or otherwise. The Company has the right to prepay the note
in terms of agreement. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the purchaser during
the period beginning on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 58%
of the average lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion. 

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $25,034, net of unamortized discount of $39,457.

On November 14, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000 to Power Up Lending Group
LTD. The note has a maturity date of August 30, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note
without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the
holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the
previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $9,165, net of unamortized discount of $44,381.
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Labrys Fund, LP

On January 27, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note
in the aggregate principal amount of $105,000 to Labrys Fund, LP. The note had a maturity date of July 27, 2017 and a coupon of eight percent per annum.
In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company was required to issue 150,000 shares of common stock as a commitment fee valued at $66,000.
The shares were returnable to the Company if no Event of Default has occurred prior to the date the note is fully repaid. Management had determined that
it is probable that the Company would meet the conditions under the note and therefore it more likely than not that the Company would not be in Default
as defined in the note. As a result, management has concluded that it was probable that the shares would be returned and therefore the value of the
150,000 shares was not recorded.

The Company had the right to prepay the note within 180 days of its Issue Date. After the 180 days, the Company had no right to prepayment. The
outstanding principal amount of the note was convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the note holder during the period beginning
on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the
lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion.

On July 26, 2017, the Company repaid this note for a total of $109,142, including interest thereon. The 150,000 shares of common stock issued to Labrys
Fund as a commitment fee for the convertible loan advanced have been returned to the Company and have been cancelled

On December 14, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $78,000 to Labrys Fund, LP. The note
has a maturity date of June 14, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company was
required to issue 231,931 shares of common stock as a commitment fee valued at $76,537. The shares are returnable to the Company if no Event of
Default has occurred prior to the date the note is fully repaid. Management had determined that it is probable that the Company would meet the conditions
under the note and therefore it more likely than not that the Company would not be in Default as defined in the note. As a result, management has
concluded that it was probable that the shares would be returned and therefore the value of the 231,931 shares was not recorded.

The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time
and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the
lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $7,577, net of unamortized discount of $70,714.

JSJ Investments Inc.

On February 6, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note
in the aggregate principal amount of $200,000 to JSJ Investments Inc., (“JSJ”). The note had a maturity date of November 6, 2017 and a coupon of eight
percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note within 180 days of its issue date. After the 180 days, the Company has no right to
prepayment. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the note holder during the
period beginning on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion price equal to 60% of
the average of the lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion.

On August 10, 2017, JSJ converted $24,000 of the principal amount of the convertible note into equity at a conversion price of $0.11 per share for an
aggregate 224,299 shares of common stock.

On August 31, 2017, Strategic IR entered into an agreement whereby the convertible note was acquired from JSJ for the remaining principal balance of
$176,000 and accrued interest outstanding of $8,715. An additional payment of $88,847 was made by Strategic IR on behalf of the Company as
compensation for the early settlement penalty and legal fees incurred on assigning the note to Strategic IR.

On November 29, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $75,000 to JSJ Investments, Inc. The
note has a maturity date of November 29, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without
penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into
shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten
(10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $7,101, net of unamortized discount of $68,425.
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Vista Capital Investments, LLC

On March 9, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in
the aggregate principal amount of $100,000 to Vista Capital Investments, LLC., (“Vista”). The note has a maturity date of March 9, 2018 and a coupon of
eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a payment to the Purchaser as set forth in the note through the
maturity date. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the note holder during the
period beginning on the date that is 150 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion price equal to 60% of
the average of the last two lowest trading bid prices during the fifteen trading days prior to conversion.

On September 18, 2017, Strategic IR entered into an agreement whereby the convertible note was acquired from Vista for the principal balance of
$100,000 and accrued interest outstanding of $4,230. An additional payment of $60,770 was made by Strategic IR on behalf of the Company as
compensation for the early settlement penalty and legal fees incurred on assigning the note to Strategic IR.

Crossover Capital Fund II, LLC

On April 6, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $100,000 to Crossover Capital Fund II, LLC.
The note has a maturity date of January 6, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it
makes a pre-payment penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the
election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the lowest trading bid price during the previous
fifteen (15) trading days to the date of conversion.

On October 3, 2017, Strategic IR entered into an agreement whereby the convertible note was acquired from Crossover Capital for the principal balance of
$100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $4,000. An additional payment of $48,880 was made by Strategic IR on behalf of the Company as compensation
for the early settlement penalty and legal fees incurred on assigning the note to Strategic IR.

On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into between Strategic and Vladimir Skigin, this note was assigned to Vladimir Skigin, refer note
16 below.

GS Capital Partners, LLC

On May 22, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $75,000 to GS Capital Partners, LLC., (“GS
Capital”). The note has a maturity date of May 22, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note,
provided it makes a pre-payment penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to
time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 62% of lowest trading bid prices during the
previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

On November 11, 2017, GS Capital converted $20,000 of the principal amount of the convertible note into equity at a conversion price of $0.1023 per
share for an aggregate 203,516 shares of common stock.

On December 13, 2017, GS Capital converted a further $20,000 of the principal amount of the convertible note into equity at a conversion price of $0.1240
per share for an aggregate 168,466 shares of common stock.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $23,112, net of unamortized discount of $13,616.

On June 16, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $112,500 to GS Capital Partners, LLC. The
note has a maturity date of June 16, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it
makes a pre-payment penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the
election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 62% of lowest trading bid prices during the previous ten
(10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received. The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was
$65,909, net of unamortized discount of $51,473.

YP Holdings, LLC

YP Holdings forgave $19,553 of accrued interest on a note with a principal amount of $100,000 (refer note 8 above), with the remaining accrued interest of
$43,759 and was issued in lieu thereof a convertible note with a principal amount of $143,759, bearing interest at 8% per annum, maturing on
May 26, 2018. The Company has the right to prepay the note within 180 days of its issue date. The outstanding principal amount of the Note is convertible
at any time and from time to time at the election of the Note holder during the period beginning on the date that is 180 days following the Issue Date. The
note is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion price equal to 70% of the average of the lowest three closing bid prices of
the Company’s common stock for the ten prior trading days.

On June 12, 2017, YP Holdings converted a total of $11,556 of the principal and interest of the convertible note outstanding into 57,143 common shares of
the Company at a net issue price of $0.202 per share.

On June 22, 2107 a further $20,125 of the principal and interest of the convertible note outstanding was converted into 100,000 shares of common stock at
a conversion price of $0.2013 per share.

On August 24, 2017, the Company utilized the proceeds of a further convertible note it received from Strategic IR to repay the note for an aggregate of
$113,845.
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Strategic IR

On June 11, 2017, the Company issued a convertible promissory note in the aggregate principal amount of $10,000 to Strategic IR (“Strategic”). The note
bears interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 16, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder , the maturity date of the
note was extended to December 8, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum.

The note is convertible into common shares at a conversion price of $.20 per share.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $10,693.

On June 11, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Strategic with a principal amount of $20,000, together with accrued interest thereon of $164,
totaling $20,164, for a convertible note, principal amount of $20,164, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 8, 2017. In terms of an
agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 8, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum.

The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $21,548.

On June 27, 2017, a previously unclassified amount due to Strategic was classified as a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of
$100,000. The note has a maturity date of December 24, 2017 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it
makes a pre-payment penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the
election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices
during the previous ten (10) trading days.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to BOBA Management and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On June 29, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Strategic with a principal amount of $50,000, together with accrued interest thereon of
$3,740, totaling $53,740, for a convertible note, principal amount of $53,740, bearing interest at 12% per annum which matured on December 26, 2017. In
terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 26, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to
15% per annum. The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $57,031.

On June 29, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Strategic with a principal amount of $110,000, together with accrued interest thereon of
$5,535, totaling $115,535, for a convertible note, principal amount of $115,535, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 26, 2017. In
terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder the maturity date was extended to December 26, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15%
per annum. The convertible note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $122,610.

On July 26, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $117,000 to Strategic. The note has a maturity
date of January 22, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a pre-payment
penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder
into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous
ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Vladimir Skigin and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
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9 CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Strategic IR (continued)

On September 18, 2017, Strategic IR entered into an agreement whereby the convertible note held by Vista Capital Investments was acquired by Strategic
for the aggregate principal balance of $100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $4,230. An additional payment of $60,770 was made by Strategic IR on
behalf of the Company as compensation for the early settlement penalty and legal fees incurred on assigning the note to Strategic IR. The note has a
maturity date of March 9, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a payment to
the Purchaser as set forth in the note through the maturity date. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to
time at the election of the note holder during the period beginning on the date that is 150 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s
common stock, at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the last two lowest trading bid prices during the fifteen trading days prior to
conversion.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Beverly Pacific Holdings and simultaneously therewith, the
Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to
increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it
to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On August 24, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $113,845 to Strategic. The note has a
maturity date of August 24, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a pre-
payment penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of
the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the
previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Victoria Akhmetova and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On August 31, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $88,847 to Strategic. The note has a
maturity date of August 31, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first
180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading
days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to BOBA Management and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On August 31, 2017, Strategic purchased a convertible note from JSJ Investments, Inc. for an aggregate principal outstanding of $176,000 together with
interest thereon of $8,715. The note has a maturity date of November 6, 2017 and a coupon of eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to
prepay the note within 180 days of its issue date. After the 180 days, the Company has no right to prepayment. The outstanding principal amount of the
note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the note holder during the period beginning on the date that is 180 days following
the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three closing bid prices of the
Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Beverly Pacific Holdings and simultaneously therewith, the
Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to
increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it
to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
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9 CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Strategic IR (continued)

On September 18, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $69,047 to Strategic. The note has a
maturity date of September 18, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the
first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading
days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Victoria Akhmetova and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On September 26, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $20,000 to Strategic. The note has a
maturity date of September 26, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the
first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading
days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Victoria Akhmetova and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On September 28, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $246,000 to Strategic. The note has a
maturity date of September 28, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the
first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading
days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Vladimir Skigin and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On October 3, 2017, Strategic IR entered into an agreement whereby a convertible note was acquired from Crossover Capital for the principal balance of
$100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $4,000. An additional payment of $48,880 was made by Strategic IR on behalf of the Company as compensation
for the early settlement penalty and legal fees incurred on assigning the note to Strategic IR.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Vladimir Skigin and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On October 3, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $48,880 to Strategic. The note has a
maturity date of October 3, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first
180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading
days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to BOBA Management and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
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9 CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Strategic IR (continued)

On October 23, 2017, Anna Mosk, the Principal of Strategic IR, entered into an agreement whereby a convertible note was acquired from Power Up
Lending Group for the principal balance of $33,000 and accrued interest thereon of $1,309. An additional payment of $14,298 was made by Strategic IR
on behalf of the Company as compensation for the early settlement penalty and legal fees incurred on assigning the note to Strategic IR.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice that the note had been assigned to Vladimir Skigin and simultaneously therewith, the Company
received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its
number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase
its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On October 23, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $14,298 to Strategic. The note has a
maturity date of October 23, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the
first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading
days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $2,709, net of unamortized discount of $11,595.

In connection with the convertible notes with a 15% coupon, above, the Company issued warrants to purchase 997,195 common shares of the Company
at a variable exercise price of $0.20 per share, if the convertible note above is converted into common shares prior to its maturity date or $0.30 per share if
the convertible note is not converted prior to its maturity date.

Viktoria Akhmetova   
 

On June 11, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Viktoria Akhmetova, with a principal amount of $20,000, together with accrued interest
thereon of $164, totaling $20,164, for a convertible note, principal amount of $20,164, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 8,
2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 8, 2018 and the interest rate was
increased to 15% per annum. The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.

 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $21,548.
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9 CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
 

Viktoria Akhmetova (continued)  
 

On October 31, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000 to Viktoria Akhmetova. The note
has a maturity date of October 20, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note within the first 180
days at a premium of 110% of the sum of the accrued interest and principal. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and
from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest
three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $10,893, net of unamortized discount of $39,918.

 
On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on August 24, 2017 with the Company to Viktoria
Akhmetova. The note had an aggregate principal amount of $113,845 and accrued interest thereon of $1,547. The note has a maturity date of August 24,
2018 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a pre-payment penalty as specified in the note.
The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading
days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.

 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25,
2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver
from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $41,782, net of unamortized discount of $73,610.

 
On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on September 18, 2017 with the Company to
Viktoria Akhmetova. The note had an aggregate principal amount of $69,047 and accrued interest thereon of $560. The note has a maturity date of
September 18, 2018 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding
principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a
conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice
of conversion is received.

 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25,
2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver
from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $20,234, net of unamortized discount of $49,373.

 
On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on September 26, 2017 with the Company to
Viktoria Akhmetova. The note had an aggregate principal amount of $20,000 and accrued interest thereon of $127. The note has a maturity date of
September 26, 2018 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding
principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a
conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice
of conversion is received.

 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25,
2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver
from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $5,387, net of unamortized discount of $14,740.

 
Joseph W and Patricia G Abrams
 
Effective June 13, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Joseph W and Patricia G Abrams (“Abrams”) with a principal amount of $25,000,
together with accrued interest thereon of $1,247, totaling $26,247, for a convertible note, principal amount of $26,247, bearing interest at 12% per annum
and matured on December 10, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 10, 2018
and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum.

The convertible note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $28,027.

On July 31, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note to Abrams in the aggregate principal amount of $3,753. The note has a maturity
date of January 27, 2018 and a coupon of 12% per annum. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to
January 27, 2019 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum.

The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to
time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price of $0.25 per share.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $3,379, net of unamortized discount of $563.

In connection with the Convertible note above, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 146,247 shares of common stock of the Company at a variable
exercise price of $0.20 per share, if the convertible note above is converted into common shares prior to its maturity date or $0.30 per share if the
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convertible note is not converted prior to its maturity date.

Roman Shefer

On June 27, 2017, the Company entered into a convertible promissory note in the aggregate principal amount of $10,000. The note bore interest at 12%
per annum and matured on December 16, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to
December 24, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum.

The note is convertible into common shares at a conversion price of $.20 per share.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $10,621.
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9 CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Crown Bridge Partners

On August 14, 2017, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $75,000 to Crown Bridger Partners. The
note has a maturity date of August 14, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note for the first
180 days, subject to a penalty ranging from 10% to 35% of the prepayment, dependent upon the timing of the prepayment. The outstanding principal
amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a
conversion price equal to 60% of the lowest trading price during the previous fifteen (15) trading days.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $30,846, net of unamortized discount of $46,439.

BOBA Management

On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on August 31, 2017 with the Company to BOBA
Management. The note had an aggregate principal amount of $88,847 and accrued interest thereon of $1,071. The note has a maturity date of
August 31, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The
outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s
common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including
the date the notice of conversion is received.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective
October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a
default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on
March 7, 2018.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $30,768, net of unamortized discount of $59,150.

On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on October 3, 2017 with the Company to BOBA
Management. The note had an aggregate principal amount of $48,880 and accrued interest thereon of $236. The note has a maturity date of
October 3, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent (8%) per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The
outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s
common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including
the date the notice of conversion is received.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective
October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a
default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on
March 7, 2018.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $12,155, net of unamortized discount of $36,961.
 
On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a previously unclassified amount due to Strategic, subsequently
classified as a Convertible Promissory Note on June 27, 2017 with an aggregate principal amount of $100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $2,630, to
BOBA Management. The note has a maturity date of December 24, 2017 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note,
provided it makes a pre-payment penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to
time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading
bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25,
2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver
from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $102,630.
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10 DERIVATIVE LIABILITY

Certain of the short-term convertible notes disclosed in note 9 above and note 16 below, have variable priced conversion rights with no fixed floor price and
will re-price dependent on the share price performance over varying periods of time, due to the variable priced conversion rights, all convertible notes and
any warrants attached thereto, issued subsequent to the variable priced conversion notes are valued and give rise to a derivative financial liability, which
was initially valued at inception of the convertible notes using a Black-Scholes valuation model. The value of this derivative financial liability was re-
assessed at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and $330,134 and $36,074 was credited to the statement of operations and comprehensive loss, respectively.
The value of the derivative liability will be re-assessed at each financial reporting period, with any movement thereon recorded in the statement of
operations in the period in which it is incurred.

The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes valuation model:

 

 Year ended 
December 31, 

2017

  Year ended 
December 31, 

2016

 

Conversion price  $ 0.08 to 0.40  $ 0.22 to 0.23 
Risk free interest rate    1.05 to 1.98%  0.85%
Expected life of derivative liability   9 to 36 months   9 months 
expected volatility of underlying stock   134.1 to 202.3%  133.0%
Expected dividend rate   0%  0%

The movement in derivative liability is as follows:

  December 31, 2017  December 31, 2016  
         
Opening balance  $ 113,074  $ — 
Derivative financial liability arising from convertible note   2,834,413   77,000 
Fair value adjustment to derivative liability   330,134   36,074 
  $ 3,277,621  $ 113,074 
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11 STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

 a. Common Stock

After giving effect to the reverse merger consummated on May 12, 2016 and the issuances set forth below, the Company has authorized
100,000,000 common shares with a par value of $0.0001 each. The Company has authorized, issued and outstanding 56,207,424 shares of
common stock as of December 31, 2017 and 55,454,000 as of December 31, 2016.

On March 5, 2018, in terms of an amendment to the Company’s Articles of Association, the authorized share capital was increased to 500,000,000
common shares with a par value of $0.001 each.

The following common shares were issued by the Company during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017:

On February 16, 2016, the Company entered into consulting agreements with Gibbs Investment Holdings, Gibbs International, Eurosa, Inc. and
Robert Skaff, in terms of which the parties have provided consulting services to the Company and continue to provide such services and were issued
a total of 2,572,500 common shares of Qpagos Corporation, which were subsequently converted to 5,145,000 shares of the Company at a value of
$2,032,275.

During the period, May 16, 2016 to October 17, 2016, in terms of subscription agreements entered into, the Company issued 500,000 shares to a
shareholder for gross proceeds of $375,000.

On June 12, 2017, a convertible note holder converted debt and accrued interest thereon, totaling $11,556 into 57,143 shares of common stock,
valued at $18,285 resulting in a loss on conversion of $6,730.

On June 22, 2017, a convertible note holder converted debt and accrued interest thereon, totaling $20,125 into 100,000 shares of common stock
valued at $37,000 resulting in a loss on conversion of $16,875.

On August 10, 2017, a convertible note holder converted debt and accrued interest thereon, totaling $24,000 into 224,299 shares of common stock
valued at $44,860 resulting in a loss on conversion of $20,860.

On November 27, 2017 and December 13, 2017, a note holder converted $20,820 and $20,890 of convertible debt, including accrued interest
thereon into 203,516 and 168,466 shares of common stock at conversion prices of $0.1023 and $0.1240, resulting in a loss on conversion of
$40,235 and $27,965 respectively.

The Company has recorded an expense of $0 and $144,000 for the nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, relating to
restricted stock awards, which were fully vested in April 2016.

 b) Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.0001 authorized, no preferred stock is issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

 (c) Warrants

During the period June 8, 2017 to July 31, 2017, the Company issued warrants to the 15% (previously 12% coupon note holders before
amendment) convertible note holders, disclosed in note 9 above, to acquire an aggregate of 2,308,513 shares of common stock at a variable
exercise price of; i) $0.20 per share if the convertible notes underlying the warrant issue are converted to common stock prior to maturity date; or ii)
$0.30 per share if the convertible notes underlying the warrants are not converted to common stock prior to the maturity date. These warrants were
issued to investors who had invested a cumulative minimum of $30,000 in convertible notes prior to August 31, 2017.

The Warrants were valued using a Black-Scholes valuation model and the proceeds received from the convertible notes were allocated based on
the percentage of the value of the warrants to the total value of the debt securities in this offering, resulting in a total debt discount of $267,910.
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11 STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)
 
(c) Warrants (continued)

The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes valuation model:

 

 Year ended 
December 31, 

2017

 

     
Calculated stock price  $ 0.32 to 0.40 
Risk-free interest rate   1.50 to 1.53%
Expected life of warrants (in years)   5 
Expected volatility of the underlying stock   159.7 to 168.7%
Expected dividend rate   0%

The volatility of the common stock is estimated using historical data of the Company. The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes pricing model is
determined by reference to historical U.S. Treasury constant maturity rates with maturities approximate to the life of the warrants granted. An expected
dividend yield of zero is used in the valuation model, because the Company does not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. As of
December 31, 2017, the Company does not anticipate any of the warrants will be forfeited in performing the valuation of the warrants.

A summary of warrant activity during the period January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2017 is as follows:

 

 
Shares 

Underlying 
Warrants

  
Exercise 
price per  

share

  Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price

 

Outstanding January 1, 2016   —  $ —  $ — 
Granted   6,219,200   0.625   0.625 
Forfeited/Cancelled   —   —   — 
Exercised   —   —   — 
Outstanding December 31, 2016   6,219,200  $ 0.625  $ 0.625 
Granted   2,308,513   0.20   0.20 
Forfeited/Cancelled   —   —   — 
Exercised   —   —   — 
Outstanding December 31, 2017   8,527,713  $ 0.20 to 0.625  $ 0.51 

The warrants outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

   Warrants Outstanding   Warrants Exercisable  

Exercise 
Price

  

Number 
Outstanding

  Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 
life in years

  
Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price

  

Number 
Exercisable

  
Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price

  Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 
life in years

 

$   0.625   6,219,200   3.00       6,219,200         
$   0.20   2,308,513   2.75       2,308,513         
                             
       8,527,713    2.94  $ 0.51   8,527,713  $ 0.51    2.94 

The warrants outstanding have an intrinsic value of $0 and $0 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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12 NET REVENUE

Revenue is derived from the following sources:

 
 Year ended 

December 31, 2017
  Year ended 

December 31, 2016
 

         
Sales of services  $ 3,744,051  $ 2,610,820 
Payment processing fees   29,712   34,916 
Kiosk sales   131,621   44,606 
Other   35,889   1,554 
  $ 3,941,273  $ 2,691,896 

13 INCOME TAXES
 
The Company’s primary operations are based in Mexico and currently enacted tax laws in Mexico are used in the calculation of income taxes, the holding
company is based in the US and currently enacted US tax laws are used in the calculation of income taxes.

 
On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the TCJA), which significantly modified U.S. corporate income tax law, was signed into law by
President Trump. The TCJA contains significant changes to corporate income taxation, including but not limited to the reduction of the corporate income
tax rate from a top marginal rate of 35% to a flat rate of 21%, limitation of the tax deduction for interest expense to 30% of earnings (except for certain
small businesses), limitation of the deduction for net operating losses to 80% of current year taxable income and generally eliminating net operating loss
carrybacks, allowing net operating losses to carryforward without expiration, one-time taxation of offshore earnings at reduced rates regardless of whether
they are repatriated, elimination of U.S. tax on foreign earnings (subject to certain important exceptions), immediate deductions for certain new investments
instead of deductions for depreciation expense over time, and modifying or repealing many business deductions and credits (including changes to the
orphan drug tax credit and changes to the deductibility of research and experimental expenditures that will be effective in the future). Notwithstanding the
reduction in the corporate income tax rate, the overall impact of the new federal tax law is uncertain, including to what extent various states will conform to
the newly enacted federal tax law.

 
Income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the currently enacted
tax rates and laws. A full valuation allowance is provided for the amount of deferred tax assets that, based on available evidence, are not expected to be
realized. It is the Company’s policy to classify interest and penalties on income taxes as interest expense or penalties expense. As of December 31, 2017
and 2016, there have been no interest or penalties incurred on income taxes.
 
The Company has not recorded the necessary provisional adjustments in the financial statements in accordance with its current understanding of the
TCJA and guidance currently available as of this filing. But is reviewing the TCJA’s potential ramifications. Noting, The Company determined that it had no
liability as of December 31, 2018 for the one-time transition tax on deemed repatriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries imposed by the Act.

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

 
 Year ended 

December 31, 2017
  Year ended 

December 31, 2016
 

         
Current         
Federal  $ —  $ — 
State   —   — 
Foreign   —   — 
  $ —  $ — 
         
Deferred         
Federal  $ —  $ — 
State   —   — 
Foreign   —   — 
  $ —  $ — 

A reconciliation of the U.S. Federal statutory income tax to the effective income tax is as follows:

 
 Year ended 

December 31, 2017
  Year ended 

December 31, 2016
 

         
Tax expense at the federal statutory rate  $ (1,611,075)  $ (1,656,872)
State tax expense, net of federal tax effect       — 
Effect of foreign operations   20,860   65,642 
Effect of income tax rate change   547,371     
Permanent timing differences   98,885   72,738 
Deferred income tax asset valuation allowance   943,959   1,518,492 
  $ —  $ — 

Significant components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets are as follows:

  December 31, 2017   December 31, 2016  
Depreciation and amortization  $ (46,332)  $ (74,655)

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



Other   53,105   88,935 
Net operating losses   172,940   1,504,212 
Valuation allowance   (179,713)   (1,518,492)
Net deferred income tax assets  $ —  $ — 
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13 INCOME TAXES (continued)

The valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 was $179,713 and $1,518,492, respectively.
The net change in the deferred income tax assets valuation allowance was a decrease of $1,338,779 for 2017, after taking into account the income tax
rate change from 35% to 21%, effective January 1, 2018, and a true up from the prior year net operating loss carry forward, and an increase of 589,277 for
2016, respectively.

As of December 31, 2017, the prior three years remain open for examination by the federal or state regulatory agencies for purposes of an audit for tax
purposes.

The Company’s net operating loss carry-forwards of its foreign subsidiaries of $7,773,375 begin to expire in 2023 through 2027. Net operating loss carry-
forwards of the US companies of $346,106 begin to expire in 2033 through 2037. In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, management
considers whether or not it is more likely than not that some portion or all deferred income tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred
income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.
 
The Company’s ability to utilize the operating loss carry-forwards may be subject to an annual limitation in future periods pursuant to Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, if future changes in ownership occur. Management has not determined if an ownership change has
occurred under Section 382, but is evaluating, if such change has occurred.
 

14 EQUITY BASED COMPENSATION

Equity based compensation is made up of the following:

 
 Year ended 

December 31, 2017
  Year ended 

December 31, 2016
 

         
Stock based compensation   —   144,000 
Stock issued for services rendered   —   2,032,275 
  $ —  $ 2,176,275 

15 NET LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted loss per share is based on
basic shares as determined above plus common stock equivalents. The computation of diluted net loss per share does not assume the issuance of
common shares that have an anti-dilutive effect on net loss per share. For the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, all unvested restricted stock
awards and warrants, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share. Dilutive shares which could exist pursuant to the exercise of
outstanding stock instruments and which were not included in the calculation because their affect would have been anti-dilutive are as follows:

 

 Year ended 
December 31, 2017 

(Shares)

  Year ended 
December 31, 2016 

(Shares)

 

         
Convertible debt   18,884,635   — 
Warrants to purchase shares of common stock   8,527,713   6,219,200 

   27,412,348   6,219,200 
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16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 
The following transactions were entered into with related parties:
 
LOANS PAYABLE
 

 Description  Interest Rate  Maturity Date   
December 31, 

2017   
December 31, 

2016  
             

 
Gibbs International Holdings – Equipment
funding   N/A   November 1, 2017   $ 294,620   — 

 Vladimir Skigin – Equipment funding   N/A   November 1, 2017    55,295   — 
                 

 Notes payable – Related parties         $ 349,915  $ — 

 
Jimmy Gibbs
 
Jimmy Gibbs is the principal and has control over Gibbs Investment Holdings and Gibbs International Holdings. Mr Gibbs is considered to be a related
party due to his shareholding and the shareholding under his control in the company exceeds 5%.
 

 • Gibbs International Holdings (“Gibbs”) – Inventory funding
 
The Company entered into an agreement with Gibbs, whereby the importation of kiosks and accessories was arranged and funded by Gibbs. In
terms of the agreement entered into with Gibbs, a 5% margin has been added to the cost of the kiosks and accessories purchased and to the
liability outstanding. The amount was due on November 1, 2017. The amount has not been paid to date. The agreement does not provide for any
default provisions and management is currently negotiating the terms of repayment with Gibbs.
 

Vladimir Skigin
 
Vladimir Skigin is the principal and has control over Cobbolo Limited and has personally advanced the Company inventory funding.  Mr. Skigin is
considered to be a related party as his shareholding and that of the Company’s under his control exceeds 5%.
 

 • Vladimir Skigin (“Skigin”) – Inventory funding
 
The Company entered into an agreement with Gibbs, whereby the importation of kiosks and accessories was arranged and funded by Gibbs, Skigin
funded a portion of the kiosks and accessories purchased under the same terms and conditions of the agreement entered into with Gibbs. In terms
of the agreement, a 5% margin has been added to the cost of the kiosks and accessories purchased and to the liability outstanding. The amount
was due on November 1, 2017. The amount has not been paid to date. The agreement does not provide for any default provisions and management
is currently negotiating the terms of repayment with Skigin.
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16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 
NOTES PAYABLE
 

 Description  Interest Rate  Maturity Date   
December 31, 

2017   
December 31, 

2016  
             
 Gibbs International Holdings   15%   June 13, 2017    —   50,986 
 Cobbolo Limited   10%   May 30, 2017    —   101,466 
 Delinvest Commercial LTD   15%   June 29, 2017    —   50,836 
                 

 Notes payable – Related parties         $ —  $ 203,288 

 
Interest expense totaled $0 and $3,288 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
 
Jimmy Gibbs
 

 • Gibbs International Holdings 
 
Effective October 20, 2016, the Company executed an unsecured promissory note for $50,000 with an investor, bearing interest at 10% per annum
payable on February 19, 2017. On February 19, 2017, the Company executed an amended and restated promissory note extending the maturity
date to June 19, 2017 and increasing the interest rate to 15% per annum. 
 
Effective June 19, 2017, the note, principal amount of $50,000 and accrued interest thereon of $2,494 was exchanged for a convertible note, refer
Convertible Notes Payable below.
 

Vladimir Skigin
 
Vladimir Skigin is the principal and has control over Cobbolo Limited and has personally advanced the Company inventory funding.  Mr. Skigin is
considered to be a related party as his shareholding and that of the Company’s under his control exceeds 5%.
  

 • Cobbolo Limited   
 
Between October 21, 2016 and November 25, 2016, the Company executed unsecured promissory notes totaling $100,000 with an investor, bearing
interest at 10% per annum maturing between February 17, 2017 and March 25, 2017. The maturity date of these notes has been extended to May
30, 2017 and further extended to June 29, 2017.
 
On June 29, 2017, the notes; i) principal amount of $50,000 and accrued interest thereon of $3,438; and ii) principal amount of $50,000 and accrued
interest thereon of $2,959, were exchanged for two convertible notes, refer to Convertible Notes Payable below. 
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16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

 
NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
 
Alex Motorin
 
Alex Motorin is the principal of Delinvest Commercial LTD. Mr. Motorin is considered to be a related party as his shareholding and that of the Company’s
under his control exceeds 5%.
 

 • Delinvest Commercial, LTD 
 
Effective October 31, 2016, the Company executed an unsecured promissory note for $50,000 with an investor, bearing interest at 10% per annum
payable on March 1, 2017. On March 1, 2017, the Company executed an amended and restated promissory note extending the maturity date to
June 29, 2017 and increasing the interest rate to 15% per annum.
 
On June 29, 2017, the note, principal amount of $50,000 and accrued interest thereon of $4,123 was exchanged for a convertible note, refer to
Convertible Notes Payable below.
 

CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
 

 Description  
Interest

rate  Maturity Date  Principal   
Accrued
interest   

Unamortized
debt discount   

December 31,
2017

Balance,
net   

December 31, 
2016 

Balance, 
net  

                      
 Delinvest Commercial, LTD   15%  December 16, 2018   20,000   1,307   —   21,307   — 
    15%  December 26, 2018   54,123   3,314   —   57,437   — 
                            
 Gibbs International Holdings   15%  December 16, 2018   52,494   3,430   —   55,924   — 
                            
 Cobbolo Limited   15%  December 26, 2018   53,438   3,272   —   56,710   — 
    15%  December 26, 2018   52,959   3,243   —   56,202   — 
                            
 Vladimir Skigin   8%  January 22, 2018   117,000   2,334   (14,300)   105,034   — 
    8%  October 10, 2018   150,000   2,696   (116,301)   36,395     
    8%  September 28, 2018  246,000   1,456   (182,647)   64,809   — 
    8%  January 6, 2018   100,000   4,427   (2,182)   102,245   — 
    8%  February 10, 2018   33,000   1,324   (4,649)   29,675   — 
                            
 Beverly Pacific Holdings   8%  March 9, 2018   100,000   5,041   (18,630)   86,411   — 
    8%  November 6, 2017   176,000   11,041   —   187,041   — 
                            

 

Total convertible notes
payable        $ 1,155,014  $ 42,885  $ (338,709)  $ 859,190  $ — 
 
Interest expense amounted to $42,885 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The amortization of debt discount
amounted to $747,749 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
 
CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
 
The 15% convertible notes, above have a fixed conversion price of $0.20 per common share and certain investors who met a minimum investment
requirement of $30,000 were issued three-year warrants convertible into common shares at a conversion price of; i) $0.20 per share if the convertible
notes are converted prior to maturity date; and ii) $0.30 per share if the convertible notes are not converted prior to maturity date. These convertible
notes have a beneficial conversion feature and were valued using a Black-Scholes valuation model, the value of the beneficial conversion feature of the
notes were determined based on fair market price of the common stock at the date of the issuance of the note, the difference between the fair market
value of the common stock and the conversion price was recorded as a debt discount with a corresponding credit to derivative financial liability.
 
The remaining convertible notes have variable conversion prices based on a discount to market price of trading activity over a specified period of time.
The variable conversion features were valued using a Black Scholes valuation model. The difference between the fair market value of the common stock
and the calculated conversion price on the issuance date was recorded as a debt discount with a corresponding credit to derivative financial liability.
 
The total value of the beneficial conversion feature recorded as a debt discount during the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $1,245,469
and $0, respectively.  
 
Alex Motorin
 
Alex Motorin is the principal of Delinvest Commercial LTD. 
 

 • Delinvest Commercial, LTD.
 

On June 19, 2017, the Company issued Delinvest Commercial LTD. (“Delinvest”) a convertible promissory note in the aggregate principal amount of
$20,000. The note bore interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 16, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder,
the maturity date was extended to December 16, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum. The note is convertible into common
shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.
 

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $21,307.
 
On June 29, 2017, the Company exchanged a Delinvest note with a principal amount of $50,000, together with accrued interest thereon of $4,123,
totaling $54,123, for a convertible note, principal amount of $54,123, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 26, 2017. In
terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 26, 2018 and the interest rate was increased
to 15% per annum. The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.
 

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $57,437.
 

In connection with the convertible notes above, the Company issued warrants to purchase 370,616 common shares of the Company at a variable
exercise price of $0.20 per share, if the convertible note above is converted into common shares prior to its maturity date or $0.30 per share if the
convertible note is not converted prior to its maturity date.  

 

F-39 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

QPAGOS
 

NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
 
CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
 
Jimmy Gibbs
 
Jimmy Gibbs is the principal and has control over Gibbs Investment Holdings and Gibbs International Holdings.
 

 • Gibbs International Holdings  
 
Effective June 19, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Gibbs International Holdings with a principal amount of $50,000, together with
accrued interest thereon of $2,494, totaling $52,494, for a convertible note, principal amount of $52,494, bearing interest at 12% per annum and
matured on December 16, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 16, 2018
and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum. The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20
per share.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $55,924.
 
In connection with the Convertible note above, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 262,468 common shares of the Company at a variable
exercise price of $0.20 per share, if the convertible note above is converted into common shares prior to its maturity date or $0.30 per share if the
convertible note is not converted prior to its maturity date.
 

Vladimir Skigin
 
Vladimir Skigin is the principal and has control over Cobbolo Limited and has also personally advanced the Company funds.
 

 • Cobbolo Limited   
 
On June 29, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Cobbolo Limited with a principal amount of $50,000, together with accrued interest
thereon of $3,438, totaling $53,438, for a convertible note, principal amount of $53,438, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on
December 26, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 26, 2018 and the
interest rate was increased to 15% per annum. The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per
share.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $56,710.
 
On June 29, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Cobbolo Limited with a principal amount of $50,000, together with accrued interest
thereon of $2,959, totaling $52,959, for a convertible note, principal amount of $52,959, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on
December 26, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 26, 2018 and the
interest rate was increased to 15% per annum. The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per
share.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $56,202.
 
In connection with the Convertible notes above, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 531,987 common shares of the Company at a variable
exercise price of $0.20 per share, if the convertible note above is converted into common shares prior to its maturity date or $0.30 per share if the
convertible note is not converted prior to its maturity date.
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16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

 
CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
 

 • Vladimir Skigin
 

On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on July 26, 2017 with the Company to
Vladimir Skigin. The Note had an aggregate principal amount of $117,000 and accrued interest thereon of $2,334. The note has a maturity date of
January 22, 2018 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a pre-payment penalty as
specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into
shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous
ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October
25, 2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default
waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on
March 7, 2018.
 

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $105,034, net of unamortized debt discount of $14,300.
 
On October 11, October 12 and October 26, 2017, the Company received three instalments of $50,000 each from Vladimir Skigin totaling $150,000
and issued a Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $150,000 to him. The note has a maturity date of October 10, 2018
and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note within the first 180 days at a premium of 110% of the sum of the
accrued interest and principal. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the
holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during
the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $36,395, net of unamortized discount of $116,301.
 
On October 25, 2017 in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on September 28, 2017 with the Company to
Vladimir Skigin. The note had an aggregate principal amount of $246,000 and accrued interest thereon of $1,456. The note has a maturity date of
September 28, 2018 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The
outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10)
trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October
25, 2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default
waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on
March 7, 2018.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $64,809, net of unamortized discount of $182,647.
 
On October 25, 2017 in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on October 3, 2017, with the Company to
Vladimir Skigin. The note had an aggregate principal balance of $100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $4,427. The note has a maturity date of
January 6, 2018 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The
outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10)
trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October
25, 2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default
waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on
March 7, 2018.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $102,245, net of unamortized discount of $2,182.
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16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

 
CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
 

 • Vladimir Skigin (continued)
 
On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Anna Mosk, the principal of Strategic IR, assigned a note entered into on October 23,
2017 to Vladimir Skigin. The note had an aggregate principal balance of $33,000 and accrued interest thereon of $1,324. The note has a maturity
date of January 6, 2018 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The
outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10)
trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October
25, 2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default
waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on
March 7, 2018.
 
The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $29,675, net of unamortized discount of $4,649.
 

Beverly Pacific Holdings

On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on September 18, 2017 with the Company to
Beverly Pacific Holdings. The note has an aggregate principal balance of $100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $5,041. The note has a maturity date
of March 9, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a payment to the
Purchaser as set forth in the note through the maturity date. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to
time at the election of the note holder during the period beginning on the date that is 150 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s
common stock, at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the last two lowest trading bid prices during the fifteen trading days prior to
conversion.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective
October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a
default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on
March 7, 2018.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $86,411, net of unamortized discount of $18,630.

On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on August 31, 2017 with JSJ Investments, Inc.
The note had an aggregate principal outstanding of $176,000 together with interest thereon of $11,041. The note had a maturity date of
November 6, 2017 and a coupon of eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note within 180 days of its issue date. After the
180 days, the Company has no right to prepayment. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the
election of the note holder during the period beginning on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common
stock, at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days
prior to conversion.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective
October 25, 2017. The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a
default waiver from the note holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on
March 7, 2018.

The balance of the note plus accrued interest at December 31, 2017 was $187,041. 

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 
The Company operates from an office facility in Mexico. The office is leased under a three (3) year non-cancellable operating lease, which ends on
December 16, 2019. The lease calls for rental payment, including maintenance, of $3,377 per month, as adjusted for exchange rate changes. The
Company also leases space on a month-to-month basis for its data servers at a monthly rate of $1,766. In addition, Qpagos leases warehouse space on
a month-to-month basis for $1,136 per month.  
 
The future minimum lease installments under the office facility lease agreement as of December 31, 2017 are $35,891 for each year 2018 and 2019,
subject to exchange rate changes.
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QPAGOS 

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS ASIYA PEARLS, INC.)  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

 
Subsequent to year end, between January 16, 2018 and March 28, 2018, the Company raised an additional $327,500 in short term convertible securities
with maturities of one year or less. The securities bear a coupon of 8% and are convertible into common stock of the Company at a discount to market
price of between 60% and 62%. These funds were used for working capital purposes. In terms of the convertible notes, the Company issued an
additional 440,000 returnable shares to an investor.
 
On February 14, 2018, an investor, Strategic IR purchased a portion of a convertible note from the original note holder with a principal amount of
$17,000 plus accrued interest thereon of $984. In addition, the Company issued an additional convertible note of $7,610 to Strategic IR for the payment
of an early settlement premium and certain legal expenses. The Company issued two promissory notes of $17,984 and $7,610 respectively to Strategic
IR, respectively, the notes bears interest at 8% per annum and maturing on February 15, 2019. The note is convertible into common stock at a
conversion price of 60% of the lowest of three bid prices in the ten trading days prior to conversion.
 
On February 15, 2018, an investor, Strategic IR purchased a portion of a convertible note from the original note holder with a principal amount of
$50,000 plus accrued interest thereon of $1,984 and an early settlement premium of $17,500, including certain fees and expenses amounting to $3,486,
totaling $72,969. The Company issued Strategic IR with a convertible promissory note with an aggregate principal amount of $72,969, bearing interest
at 8% per annum and maturing on February 15, 2019. The note is convertible into common stock at a conversion price of 60% of the lowest of three bid
prices in the ten trading days prior to conversion.
 
During the period January 17, 2018 to April 5, 2018, convertible note holders converted an aggregate of $97,444 of principal and interest into 1,325,926
shares of common stock.
 
On March 5, 2018, the Company filed a certificate of amendment to its articles of incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada to
effectuate an increase in the authorized common stock from 100,000,000 to 500,000,000 shares. The authorized preferred stock remained at
25,000,000 shares.
 
During March 2018, the Company converted $1,258,717 of an aggregate principal and interest amount of convertible notes into 17,092,189 shares of
common stock in terms of conversion notices received in October 2017. In addition, on January 22, 2018, the Company received a further two
conversion notices converting an aggregate principal and interest amount of $204,034 into 2,758,427 shares of common stock. The Company had
insufficient shares of common stock available and increased its authorized share capital on March 5, 2018, prior to affecting these conversions.
 
On March 26, 2018, an Investor, Boba Management purchased a convertible note from the original note holder with a principal amount of $65,000 plus
accrued interest thereon of $513 from the original note holder. In terms of the agreement entered into Boba Management paid certain early settlement
fees and expenses amounting to $31,618, for which the Company issued a convertible note to Boba Management with a maturity date of March 26,
2019, bearing interest at 8% per annum and convertible into common stock at a conversion price of 60% of the lowest of three bid prices in the ten
trading days prior to conversion.
 
In addition, to this the Company borrowed $155,500 from an investor in undesignated funds. These funds were utilized for working capital purposes.
 
Other than disclosed above, The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date the consolidated financial statements were available to
be issued and has concluded that no such events or transactions took place that would require disclosure herein.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures
 
None.
 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
 
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
The Company has adopted and maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be
disclosed in the reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Annual Report on Form 10-K, is collected, recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the rules of the SEC. The Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are also designed to ensure that such information is
accumulated and communicated to management to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As required under Exchange Act Rule 13a-15, the
Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
have concluded that due to a lack of segregation of duties that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are ineffective to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that the Company files or submits under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s
management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Subject to receipt of additional financing or revenue generated from operations, the Company intends to retain additional individuals to remedy the
ineffective controls.
 
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act as a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. Management
conducted an assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 based on the framework and criteria established
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework 2013 (“COSO”). The COSO framework
requires rigid adherence to control principles that require sufficient and adequately trained personnel to operate the control system. The Company has
insufficient accounting personnel for it to be able to segregate duties as required by COSO or to maintain all reference material required to ensure Company
personnel are properly advised or trained to operate the control system. Based on the assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2017, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting was ineffective based on those criteria.
 
The Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures and its internal control processes will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of error or fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected.
These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that the breakdowns can occur because of simple error or
mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of
the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no
assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control
system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial
reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.
 
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
 
There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during
our quarter ended December 31, 2017 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
 
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the SEC that permit the Company to
provide only management’s report in this annual report.
 
Item 9B. Other Information
 
On April 13, 2018, Mark Korb provided notice of his resignation as Chief Financial Officer effective as of April 18, 2018. Mr. Korb’s resignation was not due to
any disagreement regarding our operations, policies or practices.
 

17

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
PART III

 
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
 
The table below sets certain information concerning our executive officers and directors, including their names, ages, anticipated positions with us. Our executive
officers are chosen by our Board and hold their respective offices until their resignation or earlier removal by the Board.
 
In accordance with our Certificate of Incorporation, incumbent directors are elected to serve until our next annual meeting and until each director’s successor is
duly elected and qualified.
 
Name  Age  Position
     
Gaston Pereira  71  Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Andrey Novikov  46  Chief Operating Officer, Secretary and Director
Mark Korb  50  Chief Financial Officer
James Fuller  78  Director
Sarmad Harake  50  Former Director
  
 
The following information pertains to the members of our Board and executive officers, their principal occupations and other public Company directorships for at
least the last five years and information regarding their specific experiences, qualifications, attributes and skills:
 
Gaston Pereira, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
 
Mr. Pereira has served as our President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board since the consummation of the Merger, on May 12, 2016. Since the
incorporation of Qpagos Corporation, Mr. Pereira has served as its President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board and has served in the same
capacity for each of Qpagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de C.V. since their incorporation in Mexico in November 2013. From August
2013 until November 2013, Mr. Pereira served as a consultant to Panatrade, Inc., an international business consulting firm, where he was responsible for the
research and development of a strategy for implementation of electronic payment services in Mexico. Panatrade, Inc. was the largest stockholder of Qpagos,
S.A.P.I. de C.V. and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. it distributed its interest in each of Qpagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de C.V. to its
stockholders. From July 2012 until July 2013, he served as the Chief Marketing Officer of Liberty Card, Inc., where he was responsible for developing the
strategy for the 24/7 CARD. From June 2010 until July 2012, he was President of SUMACARD, a program manager for prepaid debit cards. He also served as
the President of STAR Strategic Partners, LLC, a consulting firm from January 2009 until July 2012, providing market and telecom consulting to the Hispanic
market and from March 2004 until October 2008, he served as Chief Sales and Marketing Officer for SIGUE, Corp. a money transfer operator. We chose Mr.
Pereira to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to his vast knowledge of the Hispanic market and our industry, as well extensive experience in
banking in the region (CITIBANK), as well as in the telecom industry (Bell Atlantic, Tellabs).
 
Andrey Novikov, Chief Operating Officer and Director
 
Mr. Novikov has served as our Chief Operating Officer since the consummation of the Merger on May 12, 2016. Mr. Novikov has served as the Chief Operating
Officer and a director of Qpagos Corporation and has served in the same capacity for each of Qpagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. and Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de C.V.
since their incorporation in Mexico since April 2014. Mr. Novikov served as the QIWI Vice President of International Business Development from May 2008 until
2012, where as Vice President of International Business Development he had a leading role in QIWI startups in several countries, including China, Brazil,
Argentina, Chile, and Peru. From December 2012 until October 2014, Mr. Novikov serves as an adviser for QIWI International Development. We chose Mr.
Novikov to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to his vast knowledge of the industry.
 
Mark Korb, Chief Financial Officer
 
Mark Korb has served as the Chief Financial Officer of Qpagos Corporation since June 2015 and as our Chief Executive Officer from May 6, 2016 until May 12,
2016 and our Chief Financial Officer since May 6, 2016. Mr. Korb has over 20 years’ experience with high-growth companies and experience taking startup
operations to the next level. Mr. Korb also serves as Chief Financial Officer of Icagen, Inc., a biotech company, and First South Africa Management, a company
that provides financial management and strategic management services to various companies.
 
From 2007 to 2009 Mr. Korb was the group chief financial officer and director of Foodcorp (Proprietary) Limited (“Foodcorp”), a multimillion dollar consumer
goods company based in South Africa. In his role as chief financial officer, Mr. Korb delivered operational and strategic leadership for the full group financial
function during a period of change including Mergers, acquisitions and organic growth. As a board director he cultivated relationships with shareholders, bond
holders, financial institutions, rating agencies, and auditors. Mr. Korb was also responsible for leading the group IT strategy and implementation and supervised
16 direct reports including 10 divisional financial directors. From 2001 to 2007 Mr. Korb was the group Chief Financial Officer of First Lifestyle, initially a publicly
traded company on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange in South Africa which was then purchased by management which included Mr. Korb. He anchored the full
group financial function with responsibility for mergers and acquisitions activity, successfully leading the process whereby the Company was sold to Foodcorp
mentioned above. Upon completion of the merger, Mr. Korb was appointed as the group Chief Financial Officer of Foodcorp. 
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James Fuller, Director
 
Mr. James W. Fuller, MBA, was appointed to our Board of Directors in June, 2016. He has been the Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary of Beauty Brands Group Inc. since February 5, 2013 and serves as its Chairman and Principal Accounting Officer. Since March 2008, Mr. Fuller
has been a Partner in the Private equity firm, Baytree Capital Associates, LLC, where he oversees the West Coast operations and their interests in the Far East
including China. In 2007 and 2008, he was the Owner of Northcoast Financial brokerage. He served as Senior Vice President of Marketing for Charles Schwab
and Company from 1981 to 1985. Subsequently, he served key roles as the President of Bull & Bear Group, a mutual fund/discount brokerage company in New
York. He served as the Senior Vice President of the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) from 1976 to 1981, where he was responsible for corporate
development, marketing, corporate listing and regulation oversight, research and public affairs. He served as Senior Vice president of Bridge Information
Systems. He was the Founder and Head of Morgan Fuller Capital Group. He has over 30 years’ experience in the brokerage and related financial services
industries. His financial career started in 1968 with J. Barth & Company in San Francisco. He served as West Coast Managing Director for New York based
investment banking and trading firm from 1972 to 1974. He managed the consulting practice for the Investment Industries Division of SRI International, where he
directed a study on the future of the Securities Industry from 1974 to 1976. His other projects included the development and implementation of the Cash
Management Account for Merrill Lynch, which is a standard throughout the brokerage industry. He served as the Chairman of Pacific Research Institute. He has
been a Director at Beauty Brands Group Inc. since February 5, 2013, Kogeto, Inc. since April 10, 2015 and Oklahoma Energy Corp. since 1998. He has been an
Independent Director of Cavitation Technologies, Inc., since February 15, 2010 and serves as its Member of Advisory Board. He served as a Director of Bridge
Information Systems. He served as an Independent Director of Propell Technologies Group, Inc. from October 14, 2011 to February 17, 2015. He served as a
Director of TapImmune, Inc. from May 18, 2012 to February 6, 2013. He served on the Board of Trustees of the University of California, Santa Cruz for 12
years. He served on the Board of Directors of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) until 1987. He is a Member of the Board of the International
Institute of Education. He is an Elected Member and Vice Chairman for Finance of the San Francisco Republican Central Committee and is a Member of the
Pacific Council for International Policy, Commonwealth Club. He was a Member of the Committee of Foreign Relations. Mr. Fuller received his MBA in Finance
from California State University and Bachelor of Science in Marketing and Political Science from San Jose State University.
 
We chose Mr. Fuller to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to his extensive business experience, which makes him a valuable member of our Board
of Directors.
 
Corporate Governance
 
Code of Conduct and Ethics
 
Effective as of May 12, 2016, we adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that applies to, among other persons, our president or chief executive officer as well as
the individuals performing the functions of our chief financial officer, corporate secretary and controller. As adopted, our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
sets forth written standards that are designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote:  

 
 • honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships;
 
 • full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we file with, or submit to regulatory agencies, including the

SEC;
 
 • the prompt internal reporting of violations of the Code of Conduct and Ethics to an appropriate person or persons identified in the Code of Conduct

and Ethics; and
 
 • accountability for adherence to the Code of Conduct and Ethics.
 
Our Code of Conduct and Ethics requires, among other things, that all of our personnel be afforded full access to our president or chief executive officer with
respect to any matter which may arise relating to the Code of Conduct and Ethics. Further, all of our personnel are to be afforded full access to our Board of
Directors if any such matter involves an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct and Ethics by our president or chief executive officer.
 
In addition, our Code of Conduct and Ethics emphasizes that all employees, and particularly managers and/or supervisors, have a responsibility for maintaining
financial integrity within our company, consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, and federal, provincial and state securities laws. Any employee
who becomes aware of any incidents involving financial or accounting manipulation or other irregularities, whether by witnessing the incident or being told of it,
must report it to his or her immediate supervisor or to our president or chief executive officer. If the incident involves an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct
and Ethics by our president or chief executive officer, the incident must be reported to any member of our Board of Directors or use of a confidential and
anonymous hotline phone number. Any failure to report such inappropriate or irregular conduct of others is to be treated as a severe disciplinary matter. It is
against our company policy to retaliate against any individual who reports in good faith the violation or potential violation of our Code of Conduct and Ethics by
another. Our Code of Conduct and Ethics is available, free of charge, to any stockholder upon written request to our Corporate Secretary at QPAGOS, 1900
Glades Road, Suite 265, Boca Raton, Florida 33431.  A copy of our Code of Conduct and Ethics can be found at http://ir.qpagos.com/code-of-conduct-and-
ethics.
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Composition of the Board
 
In accordance with our Articles of Incorporation, our Board is elected annually as a single class.
 
Board Committees
 
We currently do not have a separate Audit Committee, Nominating, Governance Committee or Compensation Committee, however, we intend to create such
committees. Our full board currently serves as our Audit Committee. None of our directors, other than James Fuller, is considered an “Audit Committee” financial
expert. The Audit Committee will review the results and scope of the audit and other services provided by the independent auditors and review and evaluate the
system of internal controls. The Compensation Committee will manage any stock option plan we may establish and review and recommend compensation
arrangements for the officers. The Nominating and Governance Committee will assist our Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities and identify,
select and evaluate our Board of Directors and committees. No final determination has yet been made as to the memberships of the other committees.
 
We will reimburse all directors for any expenses incurred in attending directors’ meetings provided that we have the resources to pay these fees. We will provide
officers and directors liability insurance.
 
Leadership Structure
 
The chairman of our Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer positions are currently the same person, Mr. Pereira. Our Bylaws do not require our Board of
Directors to separate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer but provides our Board of Directors with the flexibility to determine whether the two roles
should be combined or separated based upon our needs.  Our Board of Directors believes the combination of the chairman and the chief executive officer roles
is the appropriate structure for our company at this time. Our Board of Directors believes the current leadership structure serves as an aid in the Board of
Directors’ oversight of management and it provides us with sound corporate governance practices in the management of our business.
 
Risk Management
 
The Board of Directors discharges its responsibilities, and assesses the information provided by our management and the independent auditor, in accordance
with its business judgment.  Management is responsible for the preparation, presentation, and integrity of the Company’s financial statements, and management
is responsible for conducting business in an ethical and risk mitigating manner where decisions are undertaken with a culture of ownership.  Our Board of
Directors oversees management in their duty to manage the risk of our company and each of our subsidiaries. Our Board of Directors regularly reviews
information provided by management as management works to manage risks in the business. Our Board of Directors intends to establish Board Committees to
assist the full Board of Directors’ oversight by focusing on risks related to the particular area of concentration of the relevant committee.
 
Director Independence
 
Although our Common Stock is not listed on any national securities exchange, for purposes of independence we use the definition of independence applied by
The NASDAQ Stock Market. The Board has determined that James Fuller is “independent” in accordance with such definition and that neither Mr. Pereira nor Mr.
Novikov are independent.
 
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
 
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers, directors and persons who beneficially own more than 10 percent of a registered class of our
equity securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our Common Stock. Such officers, directors and persons
are required by SEC regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms that they file with the SEC.
 
Based solely on a review of the copies of such forms that were received by us, or written representations from certain reporting persons that no Forms 5 were
required for those persons, we are not aware of any failures to file reports or report transactions in a timely manner during the year ended December 31, 2017.
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation  
 
Executive Compensation
 
Qpagos Corporation became our wholly owned subsidiary as a result of the consummation of the Merger on May 12, 2016. The following table summarizes all
compensation earned in each of QPAGOS, Qpagos Corporation and its subsidiaries during its last two fiscal years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 by: (i)
its principal executive officer; and (ii) its most highly compensated executive officer other than the principal executive officer who was serving as an executive
officer of QPAGOS as of the end of the last completed fiscal year. The tables below reflect the compensation for the QPAGOS Corporation executive officers
who are also named executive officers of the combined company.
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Name and 
principal
position  Year   Salary   Bonus  

Stock
awards  

Option
awards   

All
other
comp.    Total  

                   
Gaston Pereira/   2017  $ 240,000   —  $ —   —  $ 3,796(a)  $ 243,796
Chief Executive
Officer (1)   2016  $ 240,000   —  $ —   —  $ 23,168(b)  $ 263,168
                           
Andrey Novikov/   2017  $ 180,000   —  $ —   —  $ $6,582(c)  $ 186,582
Chief Operating
Officer (2)   2016  $ 180,000   —  $     —  $ 31,700(d)  $ 211,700
                           
Mark Korb/Chief
Financial Officer (3)  2017  $ 90,000   —   —   —   —  $ 90,000
   2016  $ 90,000   —   —   —   —   90,000
 
 (a) Consists of home leave expenses of $3,796.
 (b) Consists of an annual housing allowance of $20,908 and home leave expenses of $2,260.
 (c) Consists of home leave expenses of $6,582.
 (d) Consists of a housing allowance of $26,700 and home leave expenses of $5,000.

    
 (1) Mr. Pereira has served as the President, Chief Executive Officer and Treasurer and a director of Qpagos Corporation and has served in the same

capacity for each of Qpagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. and Redpag Electronicos S.A.P.I. de C.V. since their incorporation in Mexico in November 2013.
 (2) Mr. Novikov has served as our Chief Operating Officer and a director of Qpagos Corporation and has served in the same capacity for each of

Qpagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. and Redpag Electronicos S.A.P.I. de C.V. since their incorporation in Mexico in April 2014.
 (3) Mr. Korb has served as Chief Financial Officer of Qpagos Corporation since June 2015. Qpagos Corporation pays Mr. Korb’s employer, First South

Africa Management a fee of $7,500 per month.
 
Agreements with Named Executive Officers
 
On May 18, 2015, Qpagos Corporation entered into a three-year employment agreement with Gaston Pereira to serve as its Chief Executive Officer, President
and Treasurer. During the term of the employment agreement, Mr. Pereira receives an annual base salary of not less than $240,000 and is entitled to an annual
performance cash bonus targeted at up to 50% of his base salary, in the discretion of the Board of Directors. Mr. Pereira was issued 1,440,000 shares of
Qpagos Corporation common stock that vest on the one-year anniversary of the date of issuance which were exchanged in the Merger for 2,880,000 shares of
our common stock. Mr. Pereira is generally entitled to receive all other benefits provided to other employees, including health and disability insurance. He also
receives a housing allowance of $1,800 a month. The agreement also provides for a one-time payment of moving expenses up to $25,000 and $10,000 of
reimbursement of fees of a tax attorney for professional services regarding legal advice in connection with the employment agreement.
 
On May 18, 2015, Qpagos Corporation entered into a three-year employment agreement with Andrey Novikov to serve as its Chief Operating Officer and
Secretary. During the term of the employment agreement, Mr. Novikov receives an annual base salary of not less than $180,000 and is entitled to an annual
performance cash bonus targeted at up to 50% of his base salary, in the discretion of the Board of Directors. Mr. Novikov was issued 720,000 shares of Qpagos
Corporation common stock that vest on the one year anniversary of the date of issuance which were exchanged in the Merger for 1,440,000 shares of our
common stock. Mr. Novikov is generally entitled to receive all other benefits provided to other employees, including health and disability insurance. He also
receives a housing allowance of approximately $2,000 a month. The agreement also provides for a one-time payment of moving expenses up to $15,000.
 
The employment agreement with each of Mr. Pereira and Mr. Novikov (the “Employment Agreements”) also include confidentiality obligations and inventions
assignments by each of Mr. Pereira and Mr. Novikov (the “Executives”) and non-solicitation and non-competition provisions.
 
The Employment Agreements have a stated term of three years but may be terminated earlier pursuant to their terms. If the Executive’s employment is
terminated for any reason, he or his estate as the case may be, will be entitled to receive the accrued base salary, vacation pay, expense reimbursement and
any other entitlements accrued by him to the extent not previously paid (the “Accrued Obligations”); provided , however , that if his employment is terminated (i)
by us without Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason (as each is defined below) then in addition to paying the Accrued Obligations, (x) we will continue to
pay his then current base salary and continue to provide benefits at least equal to those which were provided at the time of termination for a period of 12 months
and (y) he shall have the right to exercise any vested equity awards until the earlier of six months after termination or the remaining term of the awards, or (ii) by
reason of his death or Disability (as defined in the Employment Agreements), then in addition to paying the Accrued Obligations, he would have the right to
exercise any vested options until the earlier of six months after termination or the remaining term of the awards. In such event, if the Executive commenced
employment with another employer and becomes eligible to receive medical or other welfare benefits under another employer-provided plan, the medical and
other welfare benefits to be provided by us as described herein will terminate.
 

21

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
The Employment Agreements provide that upon the closing of a “Change in Control” (as defined below), all unvested options shall immediately vest and the time
period that the Executive will have to exercise all vested stock options and other awards that the Executive may have will be equal to the shorter of: (i) six
months after termination, or (ii) the remaining term of the award(s). If within one year after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Executive terminates his
employment for “Good Reason” or we terminate his employment for any reason other than death, disability or Cause, the Executive will be entitled to receive: (i)
the portion of his base salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any); (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any); (iii) an
aggregate amount (the “Change in Control Severance Amount”) equal to two times the sum of the base salary plus an amount equal to the bonus that would be
payable if the “target” level performance were achieved under our annual bonus plan (if any) in respect of the fiscal year during which the termination occurs (or
the prior fiscal year if bonus levels have not yet been established for the year of termination); and (iv) the payment or provision of any other benefits.
 
For the purposes of the Employment Agreement “Change in Control” is defined as: (i) any person or entity becoming the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly,
of our securities representing 50% of the total voting power of all its then outstanding voting securities; (ii) a Merger or consolidation of our company in which its
voting securities immediately prior to the Merger or consolidation do not represent, or are not converted into securities that represent, a majority of the voting
power of all voting securities of the surviving entity immediately after the Merger or consolidation; or (iii) a sale of substantially all of our assets or our liquidation
or dissolution.
 
For purpose of the Employment Agreement, “Good Reason” is defined as the occurrence of any of the following events without Executive’s consent: (i) a material
reduction in the Executive’s base salary (other than an across-the-board decrease in base salary applicable to all of our executive officers; (ii) a material breach
of the employment agreement by us; (iii) a material reduction in the Executive’s duties, authority and responsibilities relative to the Executive’s duties, authority,
and responsibilities in effect immediately prior to such reduction; or (iv) the relocation of the Executive’s principal place of employment, without Executive’s
consent, in a manner that lengthens his one-way commute distance by 50 or more miles from his then-current principal place of employment immediately prior
to such relocation.
 
For purposes of the Employment Agreements, “Cause” is defined as (i) Executive’s conviction (which, through lapse of time or otherwise, is not subject to
appeal) of any crime or offense involving money or other property of our company or its subsidiaries or which constitutes a felony in the jurisdiction involved; (ii)
Executive’s performance of any act or his failure to act, for which if he were prosecuted and convicted, a crime or offense involving money or property of our
company or its subsidiaries, or which would constitute a felony in the jurisdiction involved would have occurred; (iii) Executive’s breach of any of the
representations, warranties or covenants set forth in the Employment Agreement; or (iv) Executive’s continuing, repeated, willful failure or refusal to perform his
duties required by the Employment Agreement, provided that Executive shall have first received written notice from us stating with specificity the nature of such
failure and refusal and affording Executive an opportunity, as soon as practicable, to correct the acts or omissions complained of.
 
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End
 
The following table lists the outstanding equity awards held by QPAGOS named executive officers at December 31, 2017:
 

       OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END       
   OPTION AWARDS (1)    STOCK AWARDS  

Name   

Number of
Securities
Underlying

Unexercised
Options

Exercisable    

Number of
Securities
Underlying

Unexercised
Options

Unexercisable   

Equity
Incentive Plan

Awards:
Number of
Securities
Underlying

Unexercised
Unearned
Options    

Option
Exercisable

Price    

Option
Expiration

Date    

Number of
Shares or
Units of

Stock that
have Not
Vested    

Market
Value of

Shares or
Units of

Stock that
have not
Vested    

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:

Number of
Unearned
Shares,
Units or
Other
Rights

that have
Not

Vested    

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:
Market

or Payout
Value of

Unearned
 Shares,

Units or Other
Rights that have

Not Vested  
                           

Gaston Pereira   —   —   —   —   —   —  $ —   —   — 
                                     
Andrey Novikov  —   —   —   —   —   —  $ —   —   — 
                                     
Mark Korb   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
  
Director Compensation
 
Neither QPAGOS nor Qpagos Corporation paid any fees to any of our directors for their service as directors; however, each of Messrs. Pereira and Novikov
received compensation for service as officers of QPAGOS and Qpagos Corporation and QPAGOS.
 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters  
 
The following table sets forth information, as of April 13, 2018, or as otherwise set forth below, with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock and:
(i) all persons known to us to be the beneficial owners of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock and; (ii) each of our directors and our
executive officers; and (iii) all of our directors and our executive officer as a group. The address of each beneficial owner is Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15
PH, Juarez, Del. Cuauhtémoc, Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600.
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The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of April 13, 2018 for:
 
 • each of our directors and nominees for director;
 
 • each of our named executive officers;
 
 • all of our current directors and executive officers as a group; and
 
 • each person, entity or group, who beneficially owned more than 5% of each of our classes of securities.
 
We have based our calculations of the percentage of beneficial ownership on 77,383,966 shares of our common stock. We have deemed shares of our common
stock subject to warrants that are currently exercisable within 60 days of April 13, 2018 to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned by the person holding the
warrant or restricted stock unit for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of that person. We did not deem these, however, for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of any other person. We have deemed shares of our common stock subject to redemption of convertible notes, where the
conversion price is fixed, and any accrued interest thereon as of April 13, 2018 to be outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding the convertible
note for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of only that person and not for any other person.
 
We have not deemed shares of common stock to be outstanding for variable priced convertible notes for the purposes of calculating beneficial ownership.
 
The information provided in the table is based on our records, information filed with the SEC, and information provided to us, except where otherwise noted.
 

Name and Address of
Beneficial Owner  

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership

Common Stock
Included*   

Percentage of
Common Stock

Beneficially
Owned  

       
Gaston Pereira (Chief Executive Officer)   2,880,000(1)  3.7%
         
Andrey Novikov (Chief Operating Officer)   1,440,000(2)  1.9%
         
James Fuller (Director)   30,000(3)   **  
         
Mark Korb (Chief Financial Officer)   25,000(4)   **  
         
Vladimir Skigin   11,780,094(5)  15.1%
         
Gibbs International, Inc. and Jimmy Gibbs   4,816,794(6)  6.1%
         
Delinvest Commercial Ltd.   4,667,493(7)  6.0%
         
Beverly Pacific Holdings   4,120,929(8)  5.3%
         
Olga Akhmetova   3,889,448(9)  5.0%
         
All officers and directors as a group (4 persons)   4,345,000   5.6%
 
*  Excludes any shares deemed to be outstanding on variable priced convertible securities.
**Less than 1%
 
(1) Consists of 2,880,000 shares of common stock.
(2) Consists of 1,440,000 shares of common stock.
(3) Consists of 30,000 shares of common stock
(4) Consists of 25,000 shares of common stock.
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(5) Consists of 7,463,869 shares of common stock, a further, 3,209,000 shares of common stock registered to Mr. Skigin, and 584,238 shares of common

stock related to convertibles notes with a fixed conversion price and accrued interest thereon, held by Cobbolo Limited. Mr Skigin is the principal of
Cobbolo Limited and the address is P.O. Box 146, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands, also consists of warrants exercisable over 531,981 shares
of common stock registered to Cobbolo Limited, Mt

(6) Consists of 2,320,000 shares of common stock, 960,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants owed by Gibbs International, Inc
and a further 289,326 shares of common stock related to convertibles notes with a fixed conversion price and accrued interest thereon, held by Gibbs
International limited. Jimmy Gibbs is the principal of Gibbs International, Inc. Also includes 1,065,000 shares of common stock owned by Gibbs
Investment Holdings, LLC of which Jimmy Gibbs is an equity holder and as such shares the power to vote and dispose of the shares of common stock
owned by Gibbs Investment Holdings, LLC. The address of Gibbs International, Inc. and Gibbs Investment Holdings, LLC is 9855 Warren H. Abernathy
Highway, Spartanburg, South Carolina 29301. Certain of the information was obtained from a Schedule 13G/A filed on July 22, 2016 with the SEC on
behalf of Gibbs International, Inc. and Jimmy Gibbs.

(7) Consists of 3,889,448 shares of common stock, warrants exercisable over 370,616 shares of common stock and 407,429 shares of common stock
related to convertibles notes with a fixed conversion price and accrued interest thereon, held by Delinvest Limited. The principal of Delinvest Commercial
Ltd. is Alex Motorin and the address is Drake Chambers, P.O. Box 3321 Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands.

(8) Consists of 4,120,929 shares of common stock. The principal of Beverly Pacific Holdings is Aleksandr Blyumkin and ids address is 4370 Tujunga
Avenue, Suite 320, Studio City, CA 91604

(9) Consists of 3,889,448 shares of common stock. The address for Olga Akhmetova is 9 Gzhatskaya Street, Apt. 100, Saint Petersburg, Russia 195220.
  
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
 
Transactions with Related Persons
 
The following includes a summary of any transaction occurring since January 1, 2016 for Qpagos Corporation and its subsidiaries or any proposed transaction, in
which we or Qpagos Corporation and its subsidiaries were or are to be a participant and the amount involved exceeded or exceeds 1% of the average of our
total assets for at year end for the last two completed fiscal years, and in which any related person had or will have a direct or indirect material interest (other than
compensation described under “Executive Compensation” above). We believe the terms obtained or consideration that we paid or received, as applicable, in
connection with the transactions described below were comparable to terms available or the amounts that would be paid or received, as applicable, in arm’s-
length transactions:
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In February 2016, the Company issued 1,920,000 shares to Eurosa Inc., in terms of a consulting agreement. Eurosa is controlled by Sarmad Harake, who is a
former director of the Company.
 
On September 15, 2016, the Company executed a revolving line of credit note for $100,000 with our CEO pursuant to the terms of a Revolving Line of Credit
Agreement. The note bears interest at 6% and is due and payable 6 months from the effective date. Provided the borrower is not in default, the borrower may
extend and renew the note for an additional 6 month term. As of December 12, 2016, the outstanding balance under the revolving line of credit was $0.
 
Jimmy Gibbs
 
Jimmy Gibbs is the principal and has control over Gibbs Investment Holdings and Gibbs International Holdings. Mr Gibbs is considered to be a related party due
to his shareholding and the shareholding under his control in the company exceeds 5%. 
 
The Company entered into an agreement with Gibbs, whereby the importation of kiosks and accessories was arranged and funded by Gibbs. In terms of the
agreement entered into with Gibbs, a 5% margin has been added to the cost of the kiosks and accessories purchased and to the liability outstanding. The
amount was due on November 1, 2017. The amount has not been paid to date. The agreement does not provide for any default provisions and management is
currently negotiating the terms of repayment with Gibbs.
 
Effective October 20, 2016, the Company executed an unsecured promissory note for $50,000 with an investor, bearing interest at 10% per annum payable on
February 19, 2017. On February 19, 2017, the Company executed an amended and restated promissory note extending the maturity date to June 19, 2017 and
increasing the interest rate to 15% per annum. 
 
Effective June 19, 2017, the note, principal amount of $50,000 and accrued interest thereon of $2,494 was exchanged for a convertible note, refer Convertible
Notes Payable below.
 
Effective June 19, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Gibbs International Holdings with a principal amount of $50,000, together with accrued
interest thereon of $2,494, totaling $52,494, for a convertible note, principal amount of $52,494, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on December
16, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 16, 2018 and the interest rate was increased
to 15% per annum. The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.
 
In connection with the Convertible note above, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 262,468 common shares of the Company at a variable exercise price
of $0.20 per share, if the convertible note above is converted into common shares prior to its maturity date or $0.30 per share if the convertible note is not
converted prior to its maturity date.
 
Vladimir Skigin
 
Vladimir Skigin is the principal and has control over Cobbolo Limited and has personally advanced the Company inventory funding.  Mr. Skigin is considered to
be a related party as his shareholding and that of the Company’s under his control exceeds 5%.
 
The Company entered into an agreement with Gibbs, whereby the importation of kiosks and accessories was arranged and funded by Gibbs, Skigin funded a
portion of the kiosks and accessories purchased under the same terms and conditions of the agreement entered into with Gibbs. In terms of the agreement, a
5% margin has been added to the cost of the kiosks and accessories purchased and to the liability outstanding. The amount was due on November 1, 2017. The
amount has not been paid to date. The agreement does not provide for any default provisions and management is currently negotiating the terms of repayment
with Skigin.
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Between October 21, 2016 and November 25, 2016, the Company executed unsecured promissory notes totaling $100,000 with an investor, bearing interest at
10% per annum maturing between February 17, 2017 and March 25, 2017. The maturity date of these notes has been extended to May 30, 2017 and further
extended to June 29, 2017.
 
On June 29, 2017, the notes; i) principal amount of $50,000 and accrued interest thereon of $3,438; and ii) principal amount of $50,000 and accrued interest
thereon of $2,959, were exchanged for two convertible notes.
 
On June 29, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Cobbolo Limited with a principal amount of $50,000, together with accrued interest thereon of
$3,438, totaling $53,438, for a convertible note, principal amount of $53,438, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 26, 2017. In terms of
an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 26, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum.
The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.
 
On June 29, 2017, the Company exchanged a note issued to Cobbolo Limited with a principal amount of $50,000, together with accrued interest thereon of
$2,959, totaling $52,959, for a convertible note, principal amount of $52,959, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 26, 2017. In terms of
an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 26, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum.
The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.
 
In connection with the Convertible notes above, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 531,987 common shares of the Company at a variable exercise
price of $0.20 per share, if the convertible note above is converted into common shares prior to its maturity date or $0.30 per share if the convertible note is not
converted prior to its maturity date.
 
On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a previously unclassified amount due to Strategic, subsequently classified as
a Convertible Promissory Note on June 27, 2017 with an aggregate principal amount of $100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $2,630, to Vladimir Skigin. The
note has a maturity date of December 24, 2017 and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a pre-payment
penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into
shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10)
trading days.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017.
The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note
holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
 
On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on July 26, 2017 with the Company to Vladimir Skigin. ,
The Note had an aggregate principal amount of $117,000 and accrued interest thereon of $2,334. The note has a maturity date of January 22, 2018 and a
coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a pre-payment penalty as specified in the note. The outstanding
principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a
conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of
conversion is received.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017.
The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note
holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
 
On October 11, October 12 and October 26, 2017, the Company received three instalments of $50,000 each from Vladimir Skigin totaling $150,000 and issued a
Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $150,000 to him. The note has a maturity date of October 10, 2018 and a coupon of 8% per
annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note within the first 180 days at a premium of 110% of the sum of the accrued interest and principal. The
outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common
stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the
notice of conversion is received.
 

26

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
On October 25, 201, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on September 28, 2017 with the Company to Vladimir
Skigin. The note had an aggregate principal amount of $246,000 and accrued interest thereon of $1,456. The note has a maturity date of September 28, 2018
and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the
note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60%
of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017.
The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note
holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
 
On October 25, 2017m in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on October 3, 2017, with the Company to Vladimir
Skigin. The note had an aggregate principal balance of $100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $4,427. The note has a maturity date of January 6, 2018 and a
coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the note
is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60% of
the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017.
The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note
holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
 
On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Anna Mosk, the principal of Strategic IR, assigned a note entered into on October 23, 2017 to
Vladimir Skigin. The note had an aggregate principal balance of $33,000 and accrued interest thereon of $1,324. The note has a maturity date of January 6, 2018
and a coupon of 8% per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note without penalty for the first 180 days. The outstanding principal amount of the
note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 60%
of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is received.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017.
The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note
holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
 
On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017.
The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note
holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.
 
Alex Motorin
 
Alex Motorin is the principal of Delinvest Commercial LTD. Mr. Motorin is considered to be a related party as his shareholding and that of the Company’s under
his control exceeds 5%.
 
Effective October 31, 2016, the Company executed an unsecured promissory note for $50,000 with an investor, bearing interest at 10% per annum payable on
March 1, 2017. On March 1, 2017, the Company executed an amended and restated promissory note extending the maturity date to June 29, 2017 and
increasing the interest rate to 15% per annum.
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On June 29, 2017, the note, principal amount of $50,000 and accrued interest thereon of $4,123 was exchanged for a convertible note, refer to Convertible Notes
Payable below.
 
On June 19, 2017, the Company issued Delinvest Commercial LTD. (“Delinvest”) a convertible promissory note in the aggregate principal amount of $20,000.
The note bore interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 16, 2017. In terms of an agreement entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was
extended to December 16, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum. The note is convertible into common shares of the Company at a
conversion price of $0.20 per share.
 
On June 29, 2017, the Company exchanged a Delinvest note with a principal amount of $50,000, together with accrued interest thereon of $4,123, totaling
$54,123, for a convertible note, principal amount of $54,123, bearing interest at 12% per annum and matured on December 26, 2017. In terms of an agreement
entered into with the note holder, the maturity date was extended to December 26, 2018 and the interest rate was increased to 15% per annum. The note is
convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion price of $0.20 per share.
 
In connection with the convertible notes above, the Company issued warrants to purchase 370,616 common shares of the Company at a variable exercise price
of $0.20 per share, if the convertible note above is converted into common shares prior to its maturity date or $0.30 per share if the convertible note is not
converted prior to its maturity date.
 
price equal to 60% of the average of the lowest three trading bid prices during the previous ten (10) trading days, including the date the notice of conversion is
received.
 
Beverly Pacific Holdings

On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on September 18, 2017 with the Company to Beverly
Pacific Holdings. The note has an aggregate principal balance of $100,000 and accrued interest thereon of $5,041. The note has a maturity date of
March 9, 2018 and a coupon of eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note, provided it makes a payment to the Purchaser as set
forth in the note through the maturity date. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the
note holder during the period beginning on the date that is 150 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion price
equal to 60% of the average of the last two lowest trading bid prices during the fifteen trading days prior to conversion.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017.
The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note
holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018.

On October 25, 2017, in terms of an agreement entered into, Strategic IR assigned a note entered into on August 31, 2017 with JSJ Investments, Inc. The note
had an aggregate principal outstanding of $176,000 together with interest thereon of $11,041. The note had a maturity date of November 6, 2017 and a coupon
of eight percent per annum. The Company has the right to prepay the note within 180 days of its issue date. After the 180 days, the Company has no right to
prepayment. The outstanding principal amount of the note is convertible at any time and from time to time at the election of the note holder during the period
beginning on the date that is 180 days following the issue date into shares of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion price equal to 60% of the average
of the lowest three closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock for the ten trading days prior to conversion.

On October 25, 2017, the Company received a notice of conversion of the outstanding principal and interest into common shares effective October 25, 2017.
The Company had to increase its number of authorized shares in order to give effect to this conversion. The Company received a default waiver from the note
holder to allow it to increase its authorized shares. The note and outstanding interest thereon was converted into equity on March 7, 2018. 
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Director Independence
 
Board of Directors
 
The Board, in the exercise of its reasonable business judgment, has determined that James Fuller, is our only director that qualifies as an independent director
pursuant to Nasdaq Stock Market Rule 5605(a)(2) and applicable SEC rules and regulations. Mr. Pereira and Mr. Novikov currently employed as our and Qpagos
Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, respectively, and therefore would not be considered independent directors.
 
Potential Conflicts of Interest
 
Since we did not have an Audit Committee or Compensation Committee comprised of independent directors, the functions that would have been performed by
such committees were performed by our directors. Thus, there was an inherent conflict of interest.
 
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
 
RBSM LLP serves as our independent registered public accounting firm.
 
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services
 

29

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
The following table sets forth the aggregate fees including expenses billed to us for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 by our auditors:
 
  Year Ended   Year Ended  
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2017   2016  
       
Audit fees and expenses  $ 95,867  $ 121,000 
Taxation preparation fees   —   — 
Audit related fees   —   — 
Other fees   —   — 
  $ 95,867  $ 121,000 

 
 (1) Audit fees and expenses were for professional services rendered for the audit and reviews of the consolidated financial statements of the Company,

professional services rendered for issuance of consents and assistance with review of documents filed with the SEC.
 
Audit Committee’s Pre-Approval Practice.
 
Prior to our engagement of our independent auditor, such engagement was approved by our board of directors. The services provided under this engagement
may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. Pre-approval is generally provided for up to one year and any pre-approval is
detailed as to the particular service or category of services and is generally subject to a specific budget. Pursuant our requirements, the independent auditors and
management are required to report to our board of directors at least quarterly regarding the extent of services provided by the independent auditors in
accordance with this pre-approval, and the fees for the services performed to date. Our board of directors may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-
case basis. All audit-related fees, tax fees and other fees incurred by us for the year ended December 31, 2017, were approved by our board of directors.
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PART IV
 

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 10-K
 
(a)(1) The following financial statements are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017
 
 1. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
 2. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
 
 3. Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
 
 4. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
 
 5. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
 
 6. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
(a)(2) Al l financial statement schedules have been omitted as the required information is either inapplicable or included in the Consolidated Financial

Statements or related notes.
  

(a)(3) The following exhibits are either filed as part of this report or are incorporated herein by reference:
 
Exhibit

No.
 

Description
2.1  Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 12, 2016, by and among Asiya Pearls, Inc., QPAGOS Merge, Inc. and Qpagos Corporation

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 13, 2016)

3.1  Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 16, 2013)

3.2  Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 13, 2016)

3.3  Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File
No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 2, 2016)

3.4  Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File
No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 6, 2018)

4.1  Form of Warrants issued to Investors (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)

4.2  Form of Warrant issued to Placement Agent and its designees (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-
192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)

4.3  Form of Amendment to Warrant issued to Placement Agent and its designees (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Amendment No. 1 to the
Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2016)

4.4  Note in the principal amount of $77,000 issued December 28, 2016 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No.
333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 29, 2016)

4.5  Note in the principal amount of $105,000 issued January 27, 2017 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No.
333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 1, 2017)

4.6  Note in the principal amount of $200,000 issued February 6, 2017 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No.
333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 13, 2017)

4.7  Note in the principal amount of $53,000 issued February 21, 2017 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No.
333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2017)

4.8  Note in the principal amount of $100,000 issued March 9, 2017 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-
192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 15, 2017)

4.9  Note in the principal amount of $100,000 issued March 9, 2017 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-
192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2017)

4.10  Note in the principal amount of $50,000 issued October 20, 2016**
4.11  Note in the principal amount of $50,000 issued October 21, 2016**
4.12  Note in the principal amount of $50,000 issued October 31, 2016**
4.13  Note in the principal amount of $50,000 issued February 19, 2017**
4.14  Note in the principal amount of $50,000 issued March 1, 2017**
4.15  Extension Agreement dated May 19, 2017**
4.16  Extension Agreement dated May 30, 2017**
4.17  Note in the principal amount of $20,000 issued June 19, 2017**
4.18  Note in the principal amount of $52,493.59 issued June 19, 2017**
4.19  Warrant issued to Gibbs International, Inc. issued June 19, 2017**
4.20  Note in the principal amount of $53,438.36 issued June 29, 2017**
4.21  Warrant issued to Cobbolo Limited dated June 29, 2017**
4.22  Note in the principal amount of $54,123.29 issued June 29, 2017**
4.23  Warrant issued to Delinvest Commercial Ltd issued June 29, 2017**
10.1  Sublicense Agreement between Janor Enterprises and Qpagos Corporation dated May 1, 2015 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)
10.2  Additional Agreement No. 1 to Sublicense Agreement between Janor Enterprises and Qpagos Corporation dated November 1, 2015 (Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13,
2016)
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10.3†  Employment Agreement Gaston Pereira (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)

10.4†  Employment Agreement Andrey Novikov (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)
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10.5  Form of Securities Purchase Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)
10.6  Placement Agent Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)
10.7  Form of Registration Rights Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)
10.8  Consulting Agreement between Qpagos Corporation and Yogipay Corporation dated February 11, 2016 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8

to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)
10.9  Consulting Agreement between Qpagos Corporation and Eurosa Inc. dated February 11, 2016 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the

Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2016)
10.10  Form of Exchange Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1

(File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2016)
10.11  Share Purchase Agreement between Panatrade Business Limited (QPAGOS S.A.P.I.) and QPAGOS Corporation dated August 27, 2015

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-192877) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2016)

10.12  Share Purchase Agreement between Panatrade Business Limited (Redpag Electronicos S.A.P.I.) and QPAGOS Corporation dated August 27, 2015
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 12 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-192877) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2016)

10.13  Consulting Agreement between Panatrade Business Limited and QPAGOS Corporation dated October 29, 2015 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 13 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 22, 2016)

10.14  Consulting Agreement between Delinvest Commercial Ltd. and QPAGOS Corporation dated October 29, 2015 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
14 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 22, 2016)

10.15  Consulting Agreement between Sergey Rumyantsev and QPAGOS Corporation dated May 1, 2015 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 15 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on December 22, 2016)

10.16  Securities Purchase Agreement dated December 28, 2016 between the Registrant and Power Up Lending Group Ltd (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 29, 2016)

10.17  Securities Purchase Agreement dated January 27, 2017 between the Registrant and Labrys Fund, LP (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 1, 2017)

10.18  Securities Purchase Agreement dated February 21, 2017 between the Registrant and Power Up Lending Group Ltd (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2017)

10.19  Securities Purchase Agreement dated August 25, 2017 between the Registrant and Power Up Lending Group Ltd (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2017)

10.20  Securities Purchase Agreement dated June 19, 2017 between Registrant and Gibbs International Inc**
10.21  Securities Purchase Agreement dated June 29, 2017 between Registrant and Delinvest Commercial Ltd**
10.22  Securities Purchase Agreement dated July 29, 2017 between Registrant and Cobbolo Limited**
10.23  Securities Purchase Agreement dated July 29, 2017 between Registrant and Delinvest Commercial Ltd**
14.1  Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (File No. 333-192877) filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on May 13, 2016)
21.1  List of Subsidiaries (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to the Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-192877) filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 16, 2013)
31.1  Certification of Gaston Pereira, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) **
31.2  Certification of Mark Korb, Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) **
32.1  Certification of Gaston Pereira, Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 1350 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 **
32.2  Certification of Mark Korb, Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 1350 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 **

 
** Filed herewith
† Indicates management contract or compensatory plan
 
101.INS XBRL Instance Document *
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document *
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document *
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document *
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document *
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document *
 
Item 16. Form 10-K Summary
 
Not applicable
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SIGNATURES

 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned.
  
  QPAGOS   
     
Signature  Title  Date
     
/s/ Gaston Pereira  Chief Executive Officer and President  April 17, 2018
Gaston Pereira  (Principal Executive Officer)   
     
/s/ Mark Korb  Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)  April 17, 2018
Mark Korb     
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.
 
Date: April 17, 2018 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
  Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
   
Date: April 17, 2018 By: /s/ Andrey Novikov
  Chief Operating Officer and Director
   
Date: April 17, 2018 By: /s/ James Fuller
  Director
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Exhibit 4.10

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
 

QPAGOS
 

10% PROMISSORY NOTE
DUE: FEBRUARY 19, 2017

 
$50,000.00 October 20, 2016 (the “Issuance Date”)

  
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, QPAGOS (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, promises to pay to the order GIBBS INTERNATIONAL,

INC., with an address located at 9855 Warren H. Abernathy Highway, Spartanburg, South Carolina 29301 or its registered assigns (the “Holder” or “Holders”),
the principal sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars (US$50,000) (the “Principal’’), on the earlier of: (i) February 19, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”) or (ii) all Event of Default
(as defined below), together with interest (computed on the basis of a 365-day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of ten percent (10%) per
annum (the “Interest Rate”) from the date hereof.
 

1,             Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2.             Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of Principal

amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months,
 
3 .             Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the consent of the Holder.
 
4 .             Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal

laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available.

 
5 .             Facsimile Signatures, This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
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6.            Event of Default. An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:

 
(a)          The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)          The Company default is in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under this Note, and such default has not been cured

for thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)         The Company: (i) admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or

 
(d)          A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, Or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition
shall not be dismissed within six (6) months.

 
7.             Remedies Following An Event Of Default.  Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default

shall, at the option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

 
8.             Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes.  The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment to any of

the Note.
 
9.             Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder without the consent of the Company.
 
10.           Reissuance Of This Note

 
(a)          Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section 10(c) representing the outstanding principal.

 
(b)          Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations. This Note is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section 10(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such portion of such outstanding Principal as is designated by the Holder at the time of
such surrender.
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(c)          Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor-with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section 10(b), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.

 
1l .            Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is

collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
12.           Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against

any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
 
13.           Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver.  No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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14.          Notices; Payments.

 
(a)          Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the

Holder’s address set forth above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:
 
COMPANY: QPAGOS 

Pasco de la Reforma 404 Pisa 15 PH
Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc
Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600

  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP

405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor
New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq. 
Facsimile: (212) 208-4657

  
HOLDER: Gibbs International, Inc.

9855 Warren H. Abernathy Highway
Spartanburg,. South Carolina 29301
Attention: Jimmy Gibbs

 
(6) Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person pursuant

to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent via
overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing; provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.

 
15.           Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note. shall automatically

be deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.
 
1 6 .           Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so· long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The patties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed and delivered this  Note on the date and year first above written.
 

 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name: Gaston Pereira
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.11

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTJVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION JS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
 

QPAGOS
 

10% PROMISSORY NOTE
DUE: FEBRUARY 17, 2017

 
$50,000.00 October 21, 2016 (the “Issuance Date”)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, QPAGOS (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, promises to pay to the order of COBBOLO LIMITED, with
an address located at Drake Chambers, P.O. Box 3121, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands or (his) [its] registered assigns (the “Holder” or “Holders”), the
principal sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars (US$50,000) (the “Principal”), on the earlier of: (i) February 17, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”) or (ii) an Event of Default (as
defined below), together with interest (computed on the basis of a 365-day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum
(the “Interest Rate”) from the date hereof.

 
1.            Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2.            Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of Principal

amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months.
 
3 .            Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the consent of the Holder.
 
4 .            Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial.  This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal

laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available.

 
5 .            Facsimile Signatures. This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
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6.            Event of Default. An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:

 
(a)          The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)          The Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under· this Note, and such default has not been cured

for thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)          The Company: (i) admits in writing its inability to pay, its-debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar Jaw of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or

 
(d)          A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition shall
not be dismissed within six (6) months.

 
7.            Remedies Following An Event Of Default.  Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default

shall, at tl1e option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

 
8 .            Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes.  The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment to any of

the Note.
 
9.            Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder-without the consent of the Company.
 
10.          Reissuance Of This Note

 
( a )          Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section 10(c) representing the outstanding principal.

 
( b )          Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations, This Note is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section IO(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such p 011 ion of such outstanding Principal as is designated by the Holder at the time
of such surrender.
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( c )       Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section 10(6), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the Issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.
 

1 1 .          Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is
collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
1 2 .          Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against

any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
 
1 3 .          Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver.  No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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14.          Notices; Payments.

 
( a )          Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the

Holder’s address setf011h above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:
 
COMPANY: QPAGOS
 Paseo de la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH
 Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc
 Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600
  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP
 405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor
 New York, New York 10174
 Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.
 Facsimile: (212) 208-4657
  
HOLDER: COBBOLO LIMITED,
 Drake Chambers,
 P.O. Box 312,
 Road Town, Tortola,
 British Virgin Islands
 

( b )          Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person
pursuant to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent
via overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing: provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.
 

1 5 .          Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note shall automatically
be deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.

 
1 6 .          Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s).
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IN WITNESS WHERE OF,  the Company has executed and delivered this Note on the date and year first above written.

 
 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name: Gaston Pereira

Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.12

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT’). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION JS
NOTREQIBRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
 

QPAGOS
 

10% PROMISSORY NOTE  
DUE: March 1, 2017

 
$50,000.00 October 31, 2016 (the “Issuance Date”)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, QPAGOS (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, promises to pay to the order DELINVEST COMMERCIAL
LTD, with an address located at P.O. Box I 46, Trident Chambers, Roadtown, BVI or its registered assigns (the “Holder” or “ Holders”), the principal sum of Fifty
Thousand Dollars (US$50,000) (the “Principal”), on the earlier of: (i) March l, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”) or (ii) an Event of Default (as defined below), together
with interest (computed on the basis of a 365 day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum (the “Interest Rate”) from
the date hereof.

 
I. Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2.             Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of Principal

amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months.
 
3.              Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the Consent of the Holder.
 
4.             Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal

laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the-
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available.

 
5.             Facsimile Signatures. This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
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6.             Event of Default. An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:
 

(a)          The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)          The Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under this Note, and such default has not been cured

for thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)          The Company: (i) admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or

 
(d)          A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers wit11 respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition shall
not be dismissed within six (6) months.
 

7.             Remedies Following An Event Of Default.  Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default
shall, at the option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

 
8.             Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes.  The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment.to any of

the Note.
 
9.             Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder without the consent of the Company.
 
10.           Reissuance Of This Note

 
(a)          Lost. Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section l0(c) representing the outstanding principal.

 
(b)          Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations . This Note is exchangeable, upon the sun-ender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section 10(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such portion of such outstanding Principal as is designated by the Holder at the time of
such surrender.
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(c)          Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section 10(b), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the Issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.

 
11.           Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is

collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
12.           Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against

any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
 
13.           Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver.  No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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14. Notices; Payments.
 

(a)          Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the
Holder’s address set forth above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be- deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an- overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:

 
 

COMPANY:  QPAGOS
 Paseo de la Reforma 404 Pisa LS PH

CoL Juarez, Del. Cuauhtcmoc
Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600

   
with a copy to:  Gracin & Marlow, LLP
  405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor

New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.

  Facsimile: (212) 208-4657
   
HOLDER:  Cobbolo Limited
  P.O. Box 146,
  Trident Chambers

 Roadtown, Tortola, BVI
  Attention:
 

( b )          Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person
pursuant to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent
via overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing; provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.
 

15.           Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note shall automatically
be deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.

 
16.           Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s)with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision{s).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed and delivered this Note on the date and year first above written.
 

  QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
  Name: Gaston Pereira
  Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.13

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
 

QPAGOS
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED PROMISSORY NOTE
DUE: JUNE 19, 2017

 
$50,000 February 19, 2017 (the “Issuance Date”)

 
This amended and restated promissory note (this “Note”) is hereby issued by QPAGOS, a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), to GIBBS INTERNATIONAL,
INC., with an address located at 9855 Warren H. Abernathy Highway, Spartanburg, South Carolina 29301 or its registered assigns (the “Holder” or “Holders”).
This Note amends, restates-Cancels, replaces and supersedes in its entirety that certain promissory note previously issued to Holder on October 20, 2016.
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Company promises to pay to the order of the Holder or its registered assigns, the principal sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars
(US$ 50,000) (the “Principal’’), on the earlier of: (i) June 13, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”) or (ii) an Event of Default (as defined below), together with
interest(computed on the basis of a 365-day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum (the “Interest Rate”) from
the date hereof.

 
l.              Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2.             Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of Principal

amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months.
 
3 .             Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the consent of the Holder.
 
4 .             Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal

laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available.

 
5 .             Facsimile Signatures. This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
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6.             Event of Default. An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:
 

(a)          The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)         The Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under this Note, and such default has not been cured for

thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)          The Company: (i) admits. in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or

 
(d)         A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition shall
not be dismissed within six (6) months.

 
7.             Remedies Following An Event Of Default . Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default

shall, at the. option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

 
8 .             Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes.  The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment to any of

the Note.
 
9.             Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder without the consent of the Company.
 
10.           Reissuance Of This Note

 
( a )         Lost Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section 10(c) representing the outstanding principal.
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(b)         Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations. This Note is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section 10(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such. portion of such outstanding Principal as is designated by the Holder at the time
of such surrender.

 
(c)         Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue anew Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section 10(b), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the Issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.

 
11.          Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is

collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
12.           Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against

any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
 
13.           Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver.  No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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14.          Notices; Payments.

 
(a)          Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the

Holder’s, address set forth above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received i f deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:

 
COMPANY: QPAGOS

Paseo de la Reforma 404 Pisa 15 PH
Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc
Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600

  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP

405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor
New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.
Facsimile: (212) 208-4657

  
HOLDER: Gibbs International, Inc.

9855 Warren H. Abernathy Highway
Spartanburg, Soutl1 Carolina 29301
Attention: Jimmy Gibbs

 
(b)         Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person

pursuant to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent
via overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing: provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.

 
1 5 .           Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note shall automatically

be deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.
 
1 6 .           Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed and delivered this Note as of the date and year first above written.
 

 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name: Gaston Pereira
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.14

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
 

QPAGOS
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED PROMISSORY NOTE
DUE: JUNE 29, 2017

 
$50,000 March 1, 2017 (the “Issuance Date”)
 
This amended and restated promissory note (this “Note”) is hereby issued by QPAGOS, a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), to DELINVEST COMMERCIAL
LTD, with an address located at P.O. Box 3321, Drake Chambers, Roadtown, Tortola, BVI or its registered assigns (the “Holder” or “ Holders”). This Note
amends, restates cancels, replaces and supersedes in its entirety that certain promissory note previously issued to Holder on October 31 st, 2016.
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Company promises to pay to the order of the Holder or its registered assigns, the principal sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars
(US$ 50,000) (the “Principal”), on the earlier of: (i) June 13, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”) or{ii) an Event of Default (as defined below), together with interest
(computed on the basis of a 365-day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum (the “Interest Rate”) from the date
hereof.

 
1.             Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2.             Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of Principal

amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months.
 
3.             Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the consent of the Holder.
 
4.             Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal

laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available,

 
5.             Facsimile Signatures. This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
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6.             Event of Default. An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:

 
(a)          The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)          The Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under this Note, and such default has not been cured

for thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)          The Company: (i) admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with-respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or

 
(d)          A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with-respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition shall
not be dismissed within six (6) months.

 
7.             Remedies Following An Event Of Default.  Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default

shall, at the option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

 
8.             Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes.  The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment to any of

the Note.
 
9.             Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder without the consent of the Company.
 
I 0.           Reissuance Of This Note

 
(a)          Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section 10(c) representing the outstanding principal.
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(b)         Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations . This Note is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section l0(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such portion of such outstanding Principal as ls designated by the Holder at the time of
such surrender.

 
(c)          Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section l0(b), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other -new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the Issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.

 
11.           Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is

collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
12.           Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against

any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
 
13.           Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver.  No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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14.           Notices; Payments.

 
(a)          Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the

Holder’s address set forth above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:

 
COMPANY: QPAGOS

Paseo de la Rcforma 404 Pisa 15 PH
Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc
Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600

 
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP

405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor
New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.

 Facsimile: (212) 208-4657
 
HOLDER: Delinvest Commercial LTD

P.O. Box 3321
Drake Chambers,

 Roadtown, Tortola, BVI
 

(b)          Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person
pursuant to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent
via overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing; provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.

 
15.          Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note shall automatically

be deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.
 
16.          Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(S) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed and’ delivered this Note as of the date and year first above written. 
 

  QPAGOS 
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
  Name: Gaston Pereira
  Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.15

 
EXTENSION AGREEMENT

 
Reference is made to that certain Note, dated October 21, 2016 (the “Note”), in the principal amount of $50,000 of Qpagos, a Nevada corporation (the

“Company”).
 
Whereas, the Note is due on February 17, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”), and the undersigned holder desires to extend the Maturity Date until May 30,

2017;
 
Now, Therefore, in consideration of the premises, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby

acknowledged, it is agreed that:
 

1. The undersigned holder hereby agrees to extend to Maturity Date to May 30, 2017 to afford the Company more time to secure the funds to repay
the Note.

 
2. This Extension Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto regarding the subject matter set forth herein and there are no

agreements, warranties or representations which are not set forth therein or herein.
 

3. This Extension Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an instrument in writing duly signed by or on behalf of the parties hereto.
 

4. This Extension Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of
which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

 
5. This Extension Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada without giving effect to the

principles of conflicts of laws thereof.
 
Executed as of the 19 th day of May, 2017.
 
   COBBOLO LIMITED
   
 By: /s/ Victor Amirov
  Authorized Officer
   
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED:   
   
QPAGOS   
   
By: /s/ Gaston Pereira    
 Authorized Officer    
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Exhibit 4.16

 
EXTENSION AGREEMENT

 
Reference is made to that certain Note, dated October 21, 2016 (the “Note”), in the principal amount of $50,000 of Qpagos, a Nevada corporation (the

“Company”).
 
Whereas, the Note was due on February 17, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”), and the undersigned holder desired to extend the Maturity Date until May 30,
2017;
 
Whereas, the Note was due on May 30, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”), and the undersigned holder desires to further extend the Maturity Date until June
29, 2017;
 
Now, Therefore, in consideration of the premises, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby

acknowledged, it is agreed that:
 

1. The undersigned holder hereby agrees to extend to Maturity Date to June 29, 2017 to afford the Company more time to secure the funds to repay
the Note.

 
2. This Extension Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto regarding the subject matter set forth herein and there are no

agreements, warranties or representations which are not set forth therein or herein.
 

3. This Extension Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an instrument in writing duly signed by or on behalf of the parties hereto.
 

4. This Extension Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of
which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

 
5. This Extension Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada without giving effect to the

principles of conflicts of laws thereof.
 
Executed as of the 30 th day of May 2017.
 
 COBBOLO LIMITED
   
 By:/s/ Victor Amirov
  Authorized Officer
 
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED :
 
QPAGOS  
   
By: /s/ Gaston Pereira  
 Authorized Officer  
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Exhibit 4.17

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
 

QPAGOS
 

12% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE 
DUE: DECEMBER 16, 2017

 
$20,000.00 June 19, 2017 (the “Issuance Date”)

 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, QPAGOS (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, promises to pay to the order DELINVEST COMMERCIAL

LTD, with an address located at Drake Chambers, P.O. Box 3321, Roadtown, Tortola, BVI or its registered assigns (the “Holder” or “Holders”), the principal sum
of Twenty Thousand Dollars (US$20,000.00) or such lesser amount as shall equal the outstanding principal amount hereof (the “Principal”), together with interest
(computed on the basis of a 365-day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum (the “Interest Rate”) from the date
hereof on the earlier of: (i) the six month anniversary of the Issuance Date (the “Maturity Date”) or (ii) an Event of Default (as defined below),.

 
1.             Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2 .             Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of

Principal amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months.
 
3 .             Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the consent of the Holder.
 
4.             Conversion. (a) At the written election of the Holder (the “Notice of Election to Convert”) given to the Company at any time prior to ten (10)

days prior to the Maturity Date, the principal together with all accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall convert into shares of Common Stock on the Maturity
Date at a conversion rate equal to $0.20 per share.

 
(b)          Upon receipt of an executed Notice of Election to Convert within the ten day period together with this Original Note, the Company shall,

as soon as practicable after the conversion date set forth in the Notice of Election to Convert, issue and deliver to Holder a certificate or certificates for the
number of shares to which such Holder shall be entitled upon such conversion, including a check payable to Holder for any cash amounts payable as described
in Section 4(c). The Company shall send the Holder a notice via facsimile or electronic mail confirming receipt of the Notice of Election to Convert within two (2)
days of receipt thereof.
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Any certificates representing shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to this Section 4 shall bear the following legend:
 
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE

“ACT”), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF CERTAIN STATES. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM. THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY
REQUIRE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION OTHERWISE COMPLIES WITH THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THIS CERTIFICATE MUST BE
SURRENDERED TO THE COMPANY OR ITS TRANSFER AGENT AS A CONDITION PRECEDENT TO THE SALE, TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION OF ANY INTEREST IN ANY OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY.

 
(c)           Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued upon conversion of this Note. Upon the conversion of the

outstanding principal and unpaid accrued interest under this Note into Common Stock, in lieu of the Company issuing any fractional shares to the Lender, the
Company shall pay to the Holder the amount of outstanding principal and accrued interest that is not so converted.

 
5.             Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial.  This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal

laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available.

 
6.             Facsimile Signatures. This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
 
7.             Event of Default . An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:
 

(a)           The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)          The Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under this Note, and such default has not been cured

for thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)          The Company: (i) admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or
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(d)          A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition shall
not be dismissed within six (6) months.

 
8.             Remedies Following An Event Of Default . Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default

shall, at the option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

 
9.             Adjustments. The number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each conversion of this Note shall be subject to adjustments as

follows:
 

(a)           If the Company at any time subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification or otherwise)
the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder into a greater number of shares, then, after the date of record for effecting such subdivision, the Conversion
Rate in effect immediately prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced. If the Company at any time combines (by any reverse stock split,
recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder into a smaller number of shares, then, after the
date of record for effecting such combination, the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased.

 
(b)          If at any time or from time to time after the date upon which this Note was issued by the Company, the shares of Common Stock

issuable upon the conversion of this Note shall be changed into the same or a different number of shares of any class or classes of stock, whether by
recapitalization, reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets or otherwise, then, in any such event, each holder of the Notes
shall have the right thereafter to convert such stock into the kind and amount of stock and other securities and property receivable upon such recapitalization,
reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets, or otherwise by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock into which
such shares of this Note could have been converted immediately prior to such recapitalization, reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation,
sale of assets, distribution of assets or other change, or with respect to such other securities or property by the terms thereof.

 
(c)           Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion Rate as a result of the events described in this Section 9,

the Company, at its expense, shall compute such adjustment or readjustment and prepare and furnish to the Lender a certificate setting forth such adjustment or
readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. Failure to give such notice or any defect therein shall not
affect the legality or validity of the subject adjustment.

 
10.           Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes . The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment to any of

the Note.
 
11.           Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder without the consent of the Company.
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12.           Reissuance Of This Note.
 

(a)          Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,
destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section 10(c) representing the outstanding principal.

 
(b)          Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations . This Note is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section 10(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such portion of such outstanding Principal as is designated by the Holder at the time of
such surrender.

 
(c)           Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section 10(b), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the Issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.

 
13.           Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is

collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
14.           Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against

any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
 
15.           Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver . No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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16.           Notices; Payments.
 

(a)          Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the
Holder’s address set forth above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:
 
COMPANY: QPAGOS
 Paseo de la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH
 Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtémoc
 Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600
  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP

405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor
New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq. 
Facsimile: (212) 208-4657

  
HOLDER: DELINVEST COMMERCIAL LTD 

Drake Chambers, P.O. Box 3321,
Roadtown, Tortola, BVI

 
(b)          Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person

pursuant to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent
via overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing; provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.

 
17.           Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note shall automatically

be deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.
 
18.           Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Company has executed and delivered this Note on the date and year  first above written.
 

 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name: Gaston Pereira
 Title:  Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.18

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
  

QPAGOS
 

12% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE
DUE: DECEMBER 16, 2017

 
$52,493.59 June 19, 2017 (the “Issuance Date”)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, QPAGOS (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, promises to pay to the order GIBBS INTERNATIONAL,
Inc., with an address located at 9855 Warren H. Abernathy Highway, Spartanburg, South Carolina, 29301 or its registered assigns (the “Holder” or “Holders”),
the principal sum of Fifty Two Thousand Four Hundred Ninety Three Dollars and Fifty-Nine Cents (US$52,493.59) or such lesser amount as shall equal the
outstanding principal amount hereof (the “Principal”), together with interest (computed on the basis of a 365-day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the
rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum (the “Interest Rate”) from the date hereof on the earlier of: (i) the six month anniversary of the Issuance Date (the
“Maturity Date”) or (ii) an Event of Default (as defined below),.

 
1.            Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2.            Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of Principal

amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months.
 
3 .            Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the consent of the Holder.
 
4 .            Conversion. (a) At the written election of the Holder (the “Notice of Election to Convert”) given to the Company at any time prior to ten (10)

days prior to the Maturity Date, the principal together with all accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall convert into shares of Common Stock on the Maturity
Date at a conversion rate equal to $0.20 per share.

 
(b)       Upon receipt of an executed Notice of Election to Convert within the ten day period together with this Original Note, the Company shall,

as soon as practicable after the conversion date set forth in the Notice of Election to Convert, issue and deliver to Holder a certificate or certificates for the
number of shares to which such Holder shall be entitled upon such conversion, including a check payable to Holder for any cash amounts payable as described
in Section 4(c). The Company shall send the Holder a notice via facsimile or electronic mail confirming receipt of the Notice of Election to Convert within two (2)
days of receipt thereof.
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Any certificates representing shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to this Section 4 shall bear the following legend:
 
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE

“ACT”), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF CERTAIN STATES. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM. THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY
REQUIRE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION OTHERWISE COMPLIES WITH THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THIS CERTIFICATE MUST BE
SURRENDERED TO THE COMPANY OR ITS TRANSFER AGENT AS A CONDITION PRECEDENT TO THE SALE, TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION OF ANY INTEREST IN ANY OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY.

  
( c )       Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued upon conversion of this Note. Upon the conversion of the

outstanding principal and unpaid accrued interest under this Note into Common Stock, in lieu of the Company issuing any fractional shares to the Lender, the
Company shall pay to the Holder the amount of outstanding principal and accrued interest that is not so converted.

 
5 .            Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal

laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available.

  
6 .            Facsimile Signatures. This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
 
7.            Event of Default . An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:
 

(a)       The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)       The Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under this Note, and such default has not been cured for

thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)       The Company: (i) admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or
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(d)       A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition shall
not be dismissed within six (6) months.

 
8.            Remedies Following An Event Of Default . Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default

shall, at the option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

  
9 .            Adjustments. The number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each conversion of this Note shall be subject to adjustments as

follows:
  

(a)       If the Company at any time subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification or otherwise)
the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder into a greater number of shares, then, after the date of record for effecting such subdivision, the Conversion
Rate in effect immediately prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced. If the Company at any time combines (by any reverse stock split,
recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder into a smaller number of shares, then, after the
date of record for effecting such combination, the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased.

 
(b)       If at any time or from time to time after the date upon which this Note was issued by the Company, the shares of Common Stock issuable

upon the conversion of this Note shall be changed into the same or a different number of shares of any class or classes of stock, whether by recapitalization,
reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets or otherwise, then, in any such event, each holder of the Notes shall have the
right thereafter to convert such stock into the kind and amount of stock and other securities and property receivable upon such recapitalization, reclassification,
reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets, or otherwise by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock into which such shares of
this Note could have been converted immediately prior to such recapitalization, reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets,
distribution of assets or other change, or with respect to such other securities or property by the terms thereof.

 
(c)       Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion Rate as a result of the events described in this Section 9, the

Company, at its expense, shall compute such adjustment or readjustment and prepare and furnish to the Lender a certificate setting forth such adjustment or
readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. Failure to give such notice or any defect therein shall not
affect the legality or validity of the subject adjustment.

 
1 0 .          Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes . The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment to any of

the Note.
  
11.          Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder without the consent of the Company.
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12.          Reissuance Of This Note.
  

( a )       Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,
destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section 10(c) representing the outstanding principal.

  
( b )       Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations . This Note is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section 10(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such portion of such outstanding Principal as is designated by the Holder at the time of
such surrender.

 
( c )       Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section 10(b), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the Issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.

  
1 3 .          Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is

collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
1 4 .          Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against

any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
  
1 5 .          Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver . No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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16.          Notices; Payments.
  

( a )       Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the
Holder’s address set forth above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:
 
COMPANY: QPAGOS
 Paseo de la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH

Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtémoc
Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600

  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP
 405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor

New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.

 Facsimile: (212) 208-4657
  
HOLDER: GIBBS INTERNATIONAL, Inc
 9855 Warren H. Abernathy Highway,
 Spartanburg, South Carolina, 29301
 

( b )       Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person
pursuant to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent
via overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing; provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.

  
1 7 .          Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note shall automatically

be deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.
  
1 8 .          Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed and delivered this Note on the date and year first above written.
 

 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name:Gaston Pereira
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.19

 
NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE ON EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OR ANY OTHER SECURITIES LAWS (THE “ACTS”). NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
PURCHASABLE HEREUNDER MAY BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THIS WARRANT OR COMMON STOCK PURCHASABLE HEREUNDER, AS APPLICABLE, UNDER THE ACTS, OR (B)
AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE CORPORATION THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACTS.
 

QPAGOS
WARRANT

 
VOID AFTER 5:00 P.M. NEW YORK TIME, JUNE 19, 2022

 
Issue Date: June 19, 2017
 

1 .             Basic Terms. This Warrant (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, the registered holder specified below or its registered assigns
(“Holder”) is the owner of a warrant of QPAGOS, a Nevada corporation (the “Corporation”), subject to adjustments as provided herein, to purchase Two Hundred
Sixty Two Thousand Four Hundred Sixty Eight (262,468) shares of the Common Stock, $.001 par value, of the Corporation (the “Common Stock”) from the
Corporation at the price per share shown below (the “Exercise Price”).

 
 Holder: Gibbs International, Inc  
    
 Exercise Price per share: [$0.30] or [$0.20]  
 
Except as specifically provided otherwise, all references in this Warrant to the Exercise Price and the number of shares of Common Stock purchasable
hereunder shall be to the Exercise Price and number of shares after any adjustments are made thereto pursuant to this Warrant.
 

2 .             Corporation’s Representations/Covenants. The Corporation represents and covenants that the shares of Common Stock issuable upon the
exercise of this Warrant shall at delivery be fully paid and non-assessable and free from taxes, liens, encumbrances and charges with respect to their purchase.
The Corporation shall take any necessary actions to assure that the par value per share of the Common Stock is at all times equal to or less than the then
current Exercise Price per share of Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Warrant. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and hold available sufficient
shares of Common Stock to satisfy all conversion and purchase rights of outstanding convertible securities, options and warrants of the Corporation, including
this Warrant.
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3.           Method of Exercise; Fractional Shares.
 

(a) Method of Exercise. This Warrant is exercisable at the option of the Holder at any time by surrendering this Warrant, on any business day
during the period (the “Exercise Period”) beginning the business day after the issue date of this Warrant specified above and ending at 5:00 p.m. (New York time)
five (5) years after the issue date. To exercise this Warrant, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant at the principal office of the Corporation or that of the duly
authorized and acting transfer agent for its Common Stock, together with the executed exercise form (substantially in the form of that attached hereto) and
payment in cash or by wire transfer of immediately available funds of an amount equal to the Exercise Price multiplied by the number of shares of the Common
Stock being purchased under this Warrant. The principal office of the Corporation is located at the address specified in Section 1 of this Warrant; provided,
however, that the Corporation may change its principal office upon notice to the Holder. Payment shall be made by check payable to the order of the
Corporation or by wire transfer. This Warrant is not exercisable with respect to a fraction of a share of Common Stock. In lieu of issuing a fraction of a share
remaining after exercise of this Warrant as to all full shares covered by this Warrant, the Corporation shall either at its option (1) pay for the fractional share cash
equal to the same fraction at the fair market price for such share; or (2) issue scrip for the fraction in the registered or bearer form which shall entitle the Holder to
receive a certificate for a full share of Common Stock on surrender of scrip aggregating a full share.

 
4 .            Protection Against Dilution. If the Corporation, with respect to the Common Stock: (a) pays a dividend or makes a distribution on shares of

common stock that is paid in shares of common stock or in securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock (in which latter event the number of
shares of common stock initially issuable upon the conversion or exchange of such securities shall be deemed to have been distributed); (b) subdivides
outstanding shares of Common Stock; (c) combines outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares; or (d) issues by reclassification of
common stock any shares of capital stock of the Corporation, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior thereto and the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable under this Warrant shall be adjusted so that each Holder thereafter shall be entitled to receive the number and kind of shares of Common Stock or other
capital stock of the Corporation that it would have owned or been entitled to receive in respect of this Warrant immediately after the happening of any of the
events described above had this Warrant been converted immediately prior to the happening of that event. An adjustment made in accordance with this section
shall become effective immediately after the record date, in the case of a dividend, and shall become effective immediately after the effective date, in the case of
a subdivision, combination, or reclassification. If, as a result of an adjustment made in accordance with this Section 4, the Holder becomes entitled to receive
shares of two or more classes of capital stock or shares of common stock and other capital stock of the Corporation, the board of directors (whose determination
shall be conclusive) shall determine the allocation of the adjusted Exercise Rate between or among shares of such classes of capital stock or shares of Common
Stock and other capital stock.
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5 .             Adjustment for Reorganization, Consolidation, Merger, Etc. In the event of any consolidation or merger to which the Corporation is a party

other than a consolidation or merger in which the Corporation is the continuing corporation, or the sale or conveyance to another corporation of the property of
the Corporation as an entirety or substantially as an entirety or any statutory exchange of securities with another corporation (including any exchange effected in
connection with a merger of a third corporation into the Corporation) (each such transaction referred to herein as “Reorganization”), no adjustment of exercise
rights or the Exercise Price shall be made; provided, however, the Holder shall thereupon be entitled to receive and provision shall be made therefor in any
agreement relating to a Reorganization, the kind and number of securities or property (including cash) of the corporation resulting from such consolidation or
surviving such merger or to which such properties and assets shall have been sold or otherwise transferred or with whom securities have been exchanged, which
the Holder would have owned or been entitled to receive as a result of such Reorganization had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such
Reorganization (and assuming the Holder failed to make an election, if any was available, as to the kind or amount of securities, property or cash receivable by
reason of such Reorganization; provided that if the kind or amount of securities, property or cash receivable upon such Reorganization is not the same for each
share of common stock in respect of which such rights of election shall not have been exercised (“non-electing share”) then for the purpose of this section the
kind and amount of securities, property or cash receivable upon such Reorganization for each non-electing share shall be deemed to be the kind and amount so
receivable per share by a plurality of the non-electing shares). In any case, appropriate adjustment shall be made in the application of the provisions herein set
forth with respect to the rights and interests thereafter of the Holder, to the end that the provisions set forth herein (including the specified changes and other
adjustments to the conversion rate) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as reasonably may be, in relation to any shares, other securities or property
thereafter receivable upon exercise of this Warrant. The provisions of this section similarly apply to successive Reorganizations.
 

6 .             Notice of Adjustment. On the happening of an event requiring an adjustment of the Exercise Price or the shares purchasable under this
Warrant, the Corporation shall, within thirty (30) days, give written notice to the Holder stating the adjusted Exercise Price and the adjusted number and kind of
securities or other property purchasable under this Warrant resulting from the event and setting forth in reasonable detail the method of calculation and the facts
upon which the calculation is based.

  
7 .             Dissolution, Liquidation. In case of the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Corporation (other than in

connection with reorganization, consolidation, merger, or other transaction covered by paragraph 5 above) is at any time proposed; the Corporation shall give at
least thirty days prior written notice to the Holder. Such notice shall contain: (a) the date on which the transaction is to take place; (b) the record date (which shall
be at least thirty (30) days after the giving of the notice) as of which holders of Common Stock will be entitled to receive distributions as a result of the
transaction; (c) a brief description of the transaction; (d) a brief description of the distributions to be made to holders of Common Stock as a result of the
transaction; and (e) an estimate of the fair value of the distributions. On the date of the transaction, if it actually occurs, this Warrant and all rights under this
Warrant shall terminate.
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9 .             Rights of Holder. The Corporation shall deliver to the Holder all notices and other information provided to its holders of shares of Common

Stock or other securities which may be issuable hereunder concurrently with the delivery of such information to the holders. This Warrant does not entitle the
Holder to any voting rights or, except for the foregoing notice provisions, any other rights as a shareholder of the Corporation. No dividends are payable or will
accrue on this Warrant or the shares of Common Stock purchasable under this Warrant until, and except to the extent that, this Warrant is exercised. Upon the
surrender of this Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price as provided above, the person or entity entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable
upon such exercise shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder of such shares as of the close of business on the date of the surrender of this Warrant
for exercise as provided above. Upon the exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall have all of the rights of a shareholder in the Corporation.
 

10.           Exchange for Other Denominations . This Warrant is exchangeable, on its surrender by the Holder to the Corporation, for a new Warrant of like
tenor and date representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the balance of the number of shares purchasable under this Warrant in denominations and
subject to restrictions on transfer contained herein, in the names designated by the Holder at the time of surrender.

 
1 1 .           Substitution. Upon receipt by the Corporation of evidence satisfactory (in the exercise of reasonable discretion) to it of the ownership of and

the loss, theft or destruction or mutilation of the Warrant, and (in the case or loss, theft or destruction) of indemnity satisfactory (in the exercise of reasonable
discretion) to it, and (in the case of mutilation) upon the surrender and cancellation thereof, the Corporation will issue and deliver, in lieu thereof, a new Warrant
of like tenor.

  
1 2 .           Restrictions on Transfer. Neither this Warrant nor the shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of this Warrant have been registered

under the Securities Act or any other securities laws (the “Acts”). Neither this Warrant nor the shares of Common Stock purchasable hereunder may be sold,
transferred, pledged or hypothecated in the absence of (i) an effective registration statement for this Warrant or Common Stock purchasable hereunder, as
applicable, under the Acts, or (ii) an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation that registration is not required under such Acts. If the Holder
seeks an opinion as to transfer without registration from Holder’s counsel, the Corporation shall provide such factual information to Holder’s counsel as Holder’s
counsel reasonably requests for the purpose of rendering such opinion. Each certificate evidencing shares of Common Stock purchased hereunder will bear a
legend describing the restrictions on transfer contained in this paragraph unless, in the opinion of counsel reasonably acceptable to the Corporation, the shares
need no longer to be subject to the transfer restrictions.

 
1 3 .           Transfer. Except as otherwise provided in this Warrant, this Warrant is transferable only on the books of the Corporation by the Holder in

person or by attorney, on surrender of this Warrant, properly endorsed.
 
14.           Recognition of Holder. Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of this Warrant, the Corporation shall treat the Holder as the person

exclusively entitled to receive notices and otherwise to exercise rights under this Warrant. All notices required or permitted to be given to the Holder shall be in
writing and shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Holder at the address of the Holder appearing in the records of the Corporation.
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1 5 .          Payment of Taxes. The Corporation shall pay all taxes and other governmental charges, other than applicable income taxes, that may be

imposed with respect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock pursuant to the exercise of this Warrant.
  
1 6 .           Headings. The headings in this Warrant are for purposes of convenience in reference only, shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this

Warrant and shall not affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions of this Warrant.
 
1 7 .           Miscellaneous. This Warrant may not be changed, waived, discharged or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed b y the

Corporation and the Holder. This Warrant shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Corporation. Under no
circumstances may this Warrant be assigned by the Holder.

 
18.           Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada without giving effect to its

principles governing conflicts of law.
 

  QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name:Gaston Pereira
 Title: President and Chief Executive Officer 
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QPAGOS

Form of Transfer
 

(To be executed by the Holder to transfer the Warrant)
 
For value received the undersigned registered holder of the attached Warrant hereby sells, assigns, and transfers the Warrant to the Assignee(s) named below:
 

Names of 
Assignee Address  Taxpayer ID No.  

Number of shares
subject to
transferred
Warrant  

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 
The undersigned registered holder further irrevocably appoints _________________________________________________________ attorney (with full power
of substitution) to transfer this Warrant as aforesaid on the books of the Corporation.
 
Date:    
   Signature
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QPAGOS

 Exercise Form
 

(To be executed by the Holder to purchase
Common Stock pursuant to the Warrant)

  
The undersigned holder of the attached Warrant hereby irrevocably elects to exercise purchase rights represented by such Warrant for, and to
purchase,___________shares of Common Stock of QPAGOS, a Nevada corporation. The undersigned tenders payment for those shares by wire transfer or
enclosed check.
 
The undersigned requests that (1) a certificate for the shares be issued in the name of the undersigned and (2) if the number of shares with respect to which the
undersigned holder has exercised purchase rights is not all of the shares purchasable under this Warrant, that a new Warrant of like tenor for the balance of the
remaining shares purchasable under this Warrant be issued.
 
Date:    
   Signature
 

7

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
Exhibit 4.20

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
 

QPAGOS
 

12% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE 
DUE: DECEMBER 26, 2017

 
$53,438.36 June 29, 2017 (the “Issuance Date”)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, QPAGOS (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, promises to pay to the order COBBOLO LIMITED, with an
address located at Trident Chambers, P.O. Box 146, Roadtown, Tortola, BVI or its registered assigns (the “Holder” or “Holders”), the principal sum of Fifty Three
Thousand Four Hundred Thirty Eight Dollars and Thirty Six Cents (US$53,438.36) or such lesser amount as shall equal the outstanding principal amount hereof
(the “Principal”), together with interest (computed on the basis of a 365-day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per
annum (the “Interest Rate”) from the date hereof on the earlier of: (i) the six month anniversary of the Issuance Date (the “Maturity Date”) or (ii) an Event of
Default (as defined below),.
 

1.            Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2.            Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of Principal

amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months.
 
3 .            Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the consent of the Holder.
 
4 .            Conversion. (a) At the written election of the Holder (the “Notice of Election to Convert”) given to the Company at any time prior to ten (10)

days prior to the Maturity Date, the principal together with all accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall convert into shares of Common Stock on the Maturity
Date at a conversion rate equal to $0.20 per share.
 

(b)         Upon receipt of an executed Notice of Election to Convert within the ten day period together with this Original Note, the Company shall,
as soon as practicable after the conversion date set forth in the Notice of Election to Convert, issue and deliver to Holder a certificate or certificates for the
number of shares to which such Holder shall be entitled upon such conversion, including a check payable to Holder for any cash amounts payable as described
in Section 4(c). The Company shall send the Holder a notice via facsimile or electronic mail confirming receipt of the Notice of Election to Convert within two (2)
days of receipt thereof.
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Any certificates representing shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to this Section 4 shall bear the following legend:
 
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE

“ACT”), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF CERTAIN STATES. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM. THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY
REQUIRE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION OTHERWISE COMPLIES WITH THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THIS CERTIFICATE MUST BE
SURRENDERED TO THE COMPANY OR ITS TRANSFER AGENT AS A CONDITION PRECEDENT TO THE SALE, TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION OF ANY INTEREST IN ANY OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY.
 

( c )          Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued upon conversion of this Note. Upon the conversion of the
outstanding principal and unpaid accrued interest under this Note into Common Stock, in lieu of the Company issuing any fractional shares to the Lender, the
Company shall pay to the Holder the amount of outstanding principal and accrued interest that is not so converted.
 

5 .            Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial.  This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal
laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available.

 
6 .            Facsimile Signatures. This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
 
7.            Event of Default . An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:

 
(a)          The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)          The Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under this Note, and such default has not been cured

for thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)          The Company: (i) admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or
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(d)          A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition shall
not be dismissed within six (6) months.
 

8.            Remedies Following An Event Of Default . Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default
shall, at the option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

 
9 .            Adjustments. The number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each conversion of this Note shall be subject to adjustments as

follows:
 

(a)          If the Company at any time subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification or otherwise)
the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder into a greater number of shares, then, after the date of record for effecting such subdivision, the Conversion
Rate in effect immediately prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced. If the Company at any time combines (by any reverse stock split,
recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder into a smaller number of shares, then, after the
date of record for effecting such combination, the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased.

 
(b)          If at any time or from time to time after the date upon which this Note was issued by the Company, the shares of Common Stock

issuable upon the conversion of this Note shall be changed into the same or a different number of shares of any class or classes of stock, whether by
recapitalization, reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets or otherwise, then, in any such event, each holder of the Notes
shall have the right thereafter to convert such stock into the kind and amount of stock and other securities and property receivable upon such recapitalization,
reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets, or otherwise by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock into which
such shares of this Note could have been converted immediately prior to such recapitalization, reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation,
sale of assets, distribution of assets or other change, or with respect to such other securities or property by the terms thereof.

 
(c)          Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion Rate as a result of the events described in this Section 9,

the Company, at its expense, shall compute such adjustment or readjustment and prepare and furnish to the Lender a certificate setting forth such adjustment or
readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. Failure to give such notice or any defect therein shall not
affect the legality or validity of the subject adjustment.
 

1 0 .          Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes . The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment to any of
the Note.

 
11.          Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder without the consent of the Company.
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12.          Reissuance Of This Note.

 
( a )          Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section 10(c) representing the outstanding principal.

 
( b )          Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations . This Note is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section 10(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such portion of such outstanding Principal as is designated by the Holder at the time of
such surrender.

 
(c)          Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section 10(b), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the Issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.
 

1 3 .          Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is
collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
1 4 .          Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against

any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
 
1 5 .          Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver . No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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16.          Notices; Payments.

 
( a )          Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the

Holder’s address set forth above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:
 
COMPANY: QPAGOS
 Paseo de la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH
 Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtémoc
 Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600
  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP
 405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor
 New York, New York 10174
 Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.
 Facsimile: (212) 208-4657
  
HOLDER:  
   

( b )         Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person
pursuant to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent
via overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing; provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.
 

1 7 .          Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note shall automatically
be deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.

 
1 8 .          Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Company has executed and delivered this Note on the date and year first above written.

 
 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name: Gaston Pereira
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.21
 
NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE ON EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OR ANY OTHER SECURITIES LAWS (THE “ACTS”). NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
PURCHASABLE HEREUNDER MAY BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THIS WARRANT OR COMMON STOCK PURCHASABLE HEREUNDER, AS APPLICABLE, UNDER THE ACTS, OR (B)
AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE CORPORATION THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACTS.
 

QPAGOS 
WARRANT

 
VOID AFTER 5:00 P.M. NEW YORK TIME, 

JUNE 28, 2020
 

Issue Date: June 29, 2017
 

1 .            Basic Terms. This Warrant (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, the registered holder specified below or its registered assigns
(“Holder”) is the owner of a warrant of QPAGOS, a Nevada corporation (the “Corporation”), subject to adjustments as provided herein, to purchase One Hundred
Seventy Six Thousand Five Hundred Twenty Nine (176,529) shares of the Common Stock, $.001 par value, of the Corporation (the “Common Stock”) from the
Corporation at the price per share shown below (the “Exercise Price”).
 

Holder: COBBOLO LIMITED
 Trident Chambers
 P.O. Box 146
 Roadtown, Tortola, BVI
Exercise Price per share: $0.30

  
Except as specifically provided otherwise, all references in this Warrant to the Exercise Price and the number of shares of Common Stock purchasable
hereunder shall be to the Exercise Price and number of shares after any adjustments are made thereto pursuant to this Warrant.
 

2 .            Corporation’s Representations/Covenants. The Corporation represents and covenants that the shares of Common Stock issuable upon the
exercise of this Warrant shall at delivery be fully paid and non-assessable and free from taxes, liens, encumbrances and charges with respect to their purchase.
The Corporation shall take any necessary actions to assure that the par value per share of the Common Stock is at all times equal to or less than the then
current Exercise Price per share of Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Warrant. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and hold available sufficient
shares of Common Stock to satisfy all conversion and purchase rights of outstanding convertible securities, options and warrants of the Corporation, including
this Warrant.
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3.            Method of Exercise; Fractional Shares.

 
( a )          Method of Exercise. This Warrant is exercisable at the option of the Holder at any time by surrendering this Warrant, on any business

day during the period (the “Exercise Period”) beginning the business day after the issue date of this Warrant specified above and ending at 5:00 p.m. (New York
time) five (5) years after the issue date. To exercise this Warrant, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant at the principal office of the Corporation or that of the
duly authorized and acting transfer agent for its Common Stock, together with the executed exercise form (substantially in the form of that attached hereto) and
payment in cash or by wire transfer of immediately available funds of an amount equal to the Exercise Price multiplied by the number of shares of the Common
Stock being purchased under this Warrant. The principal office of the Corporation is located at the address specified in Section 1 of this Warrant; provided,
however, that the Corporation may change its principal office upon notice to the Holder. Payment shall be made by check payable to the order of the
Corporation or by wire transfer. This Warrant is not exercisable with respect to a fraction of a share of Common Stock. In lieu of issuing a fraction of a share
remaining after exercise of this Warrant as to all full shares covered by this Warrant, the Corporation shall either at its option (1) pay for the fractional share cash
equal to the same fraction at the fair market price for such share; or (2) issue scrip for the fraction in the registered or bearer form which shall entitle the Holder to
receive a certificate for a full share of Common Stock on surrender of scrip aggregating a full share.
 

4 .            Protection Against Dilution. If the Corporation, with respect to the Common Stock: (a) pays a dividend or makes a distribution on shares of
common stock that is paid in shares of common stock or in securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock (in which latter event the number of
shares of common stock initially issuable upon the conversion or exchange of such securities shall be deemed to have been distributed); (b) subdivides
outstanding shares of Common Stock; (c) combines outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares; or (d) issues by reclassification of
common stock any shares of capital stock of the Corporation, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior thereto and the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable under this Warrant shall be adjusted so that each Holder thereafter shall be entitled to receive the number and kind of shares of Common Stock or other
capital stock of the Corporation that it would have owned or been entitled to receive in respect of this Warrant immediately after the happening of any of the
events described above had this Warrant been converted immediately prior to the happening of that event. An adjustment made in accordance with this section
shall become effective immediately after the record date, in the case of a dividend, and shall become effective immediately after the effective date, in the case of
a subdivision, combination, or reclassification. If, as a result of an adjustment made in accordance with this Section 4, the Holder becomes entitled to receive
shares of two or more classes of capital stock or shares of common stock and other capital stock of the Corporation, the board of directors (whose determination
shall be conclusive) shall determine the allocation of the adjusted Exercise Rate between or among shares of such classes of capital stock or shares of Common
Stock and other capital stock.
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5.            Adjustment for Reorganization, Consolidation, Merger, Etc. In the event of any consolidation or merger to which the Corporation is a party other

than a consolidation or merger in which the Corporation is the continuing corporation, or the sale or conveyance to another corporation of the property of the
Corporation as an entirety or substantially as an entirety or any statutory exchange of securities with another corporation (including any exchange effected in
connection with a merger of a third corporation into the Corporation) (each such transaction referred to herein as “Reorganization”), no adjustment of exercise
rights or the Exercise Price shall be made; provided, however, the Holder shall thereupon be entitled to receive and provision shall be made therefor in any
agreement relating to a Reorganization, the kind and number of securities or property (including cash) of the corporation resulting from such consolidation or
surviving such merger or to which such properties and assets shall have been sold or otherwise transferred or with whom securities have been exchanged, which
the Holder would have owned or been entitled to receive as a result of such Reorganization had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such
Reorganization (and assuming the Holder failed to make an election, if any was available, as to the kind or amount of securities, property or cash receivable by
reason of such Reorganization; provided that if the kind or amount of securities, property or cash receivable upon such Reorganization is not the same for each
share of common stock in respect of which such rights of election shall not have been exercised (“non-electing share”) then for the purpose of this section the
kind and amount of securities, property or cash receivable upon such Reorganization for each non-electing share shall be deemed to be the kind and amount so
receivable per share by a plurality of the non-electing shares). In any case, appropriate adjustment shall be made in the application of the provisions herein set
forth with respect to the rights and interests thereafter of the Holder, to the end that the provisions set forth herein (including the specified changes and other
adjustments to the conversion rate) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as reasonably may be, in relation to any shares, other securities or property
thereafter receivable upon exercise of this Warrant. The provisions of this section similarly apply to successive Reorganizations.

 
6 .            Notice of Adjustment. On the happening of an event requiring an adjustment of the Exercise Price or the shares purchasable under this

Warrant, the Corporation shall, within thirty (30) days, give written notice to the Holder stating the adjusted Exercise Price and the adjusted number and kind of
securities or other property purchasable under this Warrant resulting from the event and setting forth in reasonable detail the method of calculation and the facts
upon which the calculation is based.

 
7 .            Dissolution, Liquidation. In case of the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Corporation (other than in

connection with reorganization, consolidation, merger, or other transaction covered by paragraph 5 above) is at any time proposed; the Corporation shall give at
least thirty days prior written notice to the Holder. Such notice shall contain: (a) the date on which the transaction is to take place; (b) the record date (which shall
be at least thirty (30) days after the giving of the notice) as of which holders of Common Stock will be entitled to receive distributions as a result of the
transaction; (c) a brief description of the transaction; (d) a brief description of the distributions to be made to holders of Common Stock as a result of the
transaction; and (e) an estimate of the fair value of the distributions. On the date of the transaction, if it actually occurs, this Warrant and all rights under this
Warrant shall terminate.
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9 .            Rights of Holder. The Corporation shall deliver to the Holder all notices and other information provided to its holders of shares of Common

Stock or other securities which may be issuable hereunder concurrently with the delivery of such information to the holders. This Warrant does not entitle the
Holder to any voting rights or, except for the foregoing notice provisions, any other rights as a shareholder of the Corporation. No dividends are payable or will
accrue on this Warrant or the shares of Common Stock purchasable under this Warrant until, and except to the extent that, this Warrant is exercised. Upon the
surrender of this Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price as provided above, the person or entity entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable
upon such exercise shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder of such shares as of the close of business on the date of the surrender of this Warrant
for exercise as provided above. Upon the exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall have all of the rights of a shareholder in the Corporation.

 
10.          Exchange for Other Denominations . This Warrant is exchangeable, on its surrender by the Holder to the Corporation, for a new Warrant of like

tenor and date representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the balance of the number of shares purchasable under this Warrant in denominations and
subject to restrictions on transfer contained herein, in the names designated by the Holder at the time of surrender.

 
11.          Substitution. Upon receipt by the Corporation of evidence satisfactory (in the exercise of reasonable discretion) to it of the ownership of and the

loss, theft or destruction or mutilation of the Warrant, and (in the case or loss, theft or destruction) of indemnity satisfactory (in the exercise of reasonable
discretion) to it, and (in the case of mutilation) upon the surrender and cancellation thereof, the Corporation will issue and deliver, in lieu thereof, a new Warrant
of like tenor.

 
1 2 .          Restrictions on Transfer. Neither this Warrant nor the shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of this Warrant have been registered

under the Securities Act or any other securities laws (the “Acts”). Neither this Warrant nor the shares of Common Stock purchasable hereunder may be sold,
transferred, pledged or hypothecated in the absence of (i) an effective registration statement for this Warrant or Common Stock purchasable hereunder, as
applicable, under the Acts, or (ii) an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation that registration is not required under such Acts. If the Holder
seeks an opinion as to transfer without registration from Holder’s counsel, the Corporation shall provide such factual information to Holder’s counsel as Holder’s
counsel reasonably requests for the purpose of rendering such opinion. Each certificate evidencing shares of Common Stock purchased hereunder will bear a
legend describing the restrictions on transfer contained in this paragraph unless, in the opinion of counsel reasonably acceptable to the Corporation, the shares
need no longer to be subject to the transfer restrictions.

 
1 3 .          Transfer. Except as otherwise provided in this Warrant, this Warrant is transferable only on the books of the Corporation by the Holder in

person or by attorney, on surrender of this Warrant, properly endorsed.
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14.          Recognition of Holder. Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of this Warrant, the Corporation shall treat the Holder as the person

exclusively entitled to receive notices and otherwise to exercise rights under this Warrant. All notices required or permitted to be given to the Holder shall be in
writing and shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Holder at the address of the Holder appearing in the records of the Corporation.
 

1 5 .          Payment of Taxes. The Corporation shall pay all taxes and other governmental charges, other than applicable income taxes, that may be
imposed with respect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock pursuant to the exercise of this Warrant.

 
1 6 .          Headings. The headings in this Warrant are for purposes of convenience in reference only, shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this

Warrant and shall not affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions of this Warrant.
 
1 7 .          Miscellaneous. This Warrant may not be changed, waived, discharged or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by the

Corporation and the Holder. This Warrant shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Corporation. Under no
circumstances may this Warrant be assigned by the Holder.

 
18.          Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada without giving effect to its

principles governing conflicts of law.
 
 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name: Gaston Pereira
 Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
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QPAGOS

Form of Transfer
 

(To be executed by the Holder to transfer the Warrant)
 
For value received the undersigned registered holder of the attached Warrant hereby sells, assigns, and transfers the Warrant to the Assignee(s) named below:
 

Names of
Assignee  Address  Taxpayer ID No.  

Number of shares 
subject to transferred 
Warrant

       
       
       
       
       
       
  
The undersigned registered holder further irrevocably appoints _______________________________________________attorney (with full power of
substitution) to transfer this Warrant as aforesaid on the books of the Corporation.
 
Date:    
   Signature
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QPAGOS

Exercise Form
 

(To be executed by the Holder to purchase 
Common Stock pursuant to the Warrant)

 
The undersigned holder of the attached Warrant hereby irrevocably elects to exercise purchase rights represented by such Warrant for, and to
purchase,________________shares of Common Stock of QPAGOS, a Nevada corporation. The undersigned tenders payment for those shares by wire transfer
or enclosed check.
 
The undersigned requests that (1) a certificate for the shares be issued in the name of the undersigned and (2) if the number of shares with respect to which the
undersigned holder has exercised purchase rights is not all of the shares purchasable under this Warrant, that a new Warrant of like tenor for the balance of the
remaining shares purchasable under this Warrant be issued.
 
Date:    
   Signature
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Exhibit 4.22

 
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR THE OFFER NOR SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTE HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, IN
FORM, SUBSTANCE AND SCOPE CUSTOMARY FOR OPINIONS OF COUNSEL IN COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
 

QPAGOS
 

12% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE
DUE: DECEMBER 26, 2017

 
$54,109.59 June 29, 2017 (the “Issuance Date”)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, QPAGOS (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, promises to pay to the order DELINVEST COMMERCIAL
LTD, with an address located at Drake Chambers, P.O. Box 3321, Roadtown, Tortola, BVI or its registered assigns (the “Holder” or “Holders”), the principal sum
of Fifty Four Thousand One Hundred and Nine Dollars and Fifty-Nine Cents (US$54,109.59) or such lesser amount as shall equal the outstanding principal
amount hereof (the “Principal”), together with interest (computed on the basis of a 365-day year) on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of twelve
percent (12%) per annum (the “Interest Rate”) from the date hereof on the earlier of: (i) the six month anniversary of the Issuance Date (the “Maturity Date”) or
(ii) an Event of Default (as defined below),. 

 
1.            Payment. All payments of principal of, and interest on, this Note are to be made in lawful money of the United States of America.
 
2.            Interest. Interest on this Note shall commence accruing on the Issuance Date, shall accrue daily at the Interest Rate on the amount of Principal

amount from time to time then outstanding, be computed on the basis of a 365-day year comprised of twelve (12) months.
 
3.            Prepayment. In the event the Company elects to repay the Holder in full prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may repay the Principal

Amount outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest without the consent of the Holder.
 
4.           Conversion. (a) At the written election of the Holder (the “Notice of Election to Convert”) given to the Company at any time prior to ten (10) days

prior to the Maturity Date, the principal together with all accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall convert into shares of Common Stock on the Maturity Date
at a conversion rate equal to $0.20 per share.

 
(b)       Upon receipt of an executed Notice of Election to Convert within the ten day period together with this Original Note, the Company shall,

as soon as practicable after the conversion date set forth in the Notice of Election to Convert, issue and deliver to Holder a certificate or certificates for the
number of shares to which such Holder shall be entitled upon such conversion, including a check payable to Holder for any cash amounts payable as described
in Section 4(c). The Company shall send the Holder a notice via facsimile or electronic mail confirming receipt of the Notice of Election to Convert within two (2)
days of receipt thereof.
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Any certificates representing shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to this Section 4 shall bear the following legend:
 
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE

“ACT”), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF CERTAIN STATES. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM. THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY
REQUIRE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION OTHERWISE COMPLIES WITH THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THIS CERTIFICATE MUST BE
SURRENDERED TO THE COMPANY OR ITS TRANSFER AGENT AS A CONDITION PRECEDENT TO THE SALE, TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION OF ANY INTEREST IN ANY OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY.

 
(c)       Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued upon conversion of this Note. Upon the conversion of the

outstanding principal and unpaid accrued interest under this Note into Common Stock, in lieu of the Company issuing any fractional shares to the Lender, the
Company shall pay to the Holder the amount of outstanding principal and accrued interest that is not so converted.

 
5.           Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial.  This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal

laws of the State of Nevada without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The Company consents to accept service of process by certified mail, return
receipt requested in the event of litigation. The Company further consents to accept service of process via recognized international courier in the case that the
Company is not able to accept service by the certified mail provided a receipt of delivery is available.

 
6.            Facsimile Signatures. This Note may be executed by facsimile signature which shall, for all purposes be deemed to be as legally valid and

binding upon the Company as an original signature.
 
7.           Event of Default . An “Event of Default” shall exist if any of the following conditions or events shall occur and be continuing:
 

(a)       The Company shall fail to pay in full the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued hereon when due;
 
(b)       The Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with its obligations under this Note, and such default has not been cured for

thirty (30) days after written notice of default is given to the Company;
 
(c)       The Company: (i) admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due; (ii) files, or consents by answer or otherwise to the

filing against it of, a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law of any jurisdiction; (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) consents to the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property; (v) is
adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated; or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or
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(d)       A court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters an order appointing, without consent by the Company, a custodian,

receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting an order for relief or
approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company, or any such petition shall be filed against such party and such petition shall
not be dismissed within six (6) months.

 
8.            Remedies Following An Event Of Default . Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, this Note and all accrued interest to the date of such default

shall, at the option of the Holder, immediately become due and payable without presentment, protest or notice of any kind, all of which are waived by the
Company.

 
9.           Adjustments. The number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each conversion of this Note shall be subject to adjustments as

follows:
 

(a)       If the Company at any time subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification or otherwise)
the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder into a greater number of shares, then, after the date of record for effecting such subdivision, the Conversion
Rate in effect immediately prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced. If the Company at any time combines (by any reverse stock split,
recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder into a smaller number of shares, then, after the
date of record for effecting such combination, the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased.

 
(b)       If at any time or from time to time after the date upon which this Note was issued by the Company, the shares of Common Stock issuable

upon the conversion of this Note shall be changed into the same or a different number of shares of any class or classes of stock, whether by recapitalization,
reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets or otherwise, then, in any such event, each holder of the Notes shall have the
right thereafter to convert such stock into the kind and amount of stock and other securities and property receivable upon such recapitalization, reclassification,
reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets, or otherwise by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock into which such shares of
this Note could have been converted immediately prior to such recapitalization, reclassification, reorganization, merger, exchange, consolidation, sale of assets,
distribution of assets or other change, or with respect to such other securities or property by the terms thereof.

 
(c)       Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion Rate as a result of the events described in this Section 9, the

Company, at its expense, shall compute such adjustment or readjustment and prepare and furnish to the Lender a certificate setting forth such adjustment or
readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. Failure to give such notice or any defect therein shall not
affect the legality or validity of the subject adjustment.

 
10.         Vote To Issue, Or Change The Terms Of, Notes . The written consent of the Holder shall be required for any change or amendment to any of the

Note.
 
11.         Transfer. This Note may not be offered, sold, assigned or transferred by the Holder without the consent of the Company.
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12.         Reissuance Of This Note.

 
(a)       Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Note. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction or mutilation of this Note, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Note (in accordance
with Section 10(c) representing the outstanding principal.

 
(b)       Note Exchangeable for Different Denominations . This Note is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal

office of the Company, for a new Note or Notes (in accordance with Section 10(c) and in principal amounts of at least $10,000) representing in the aggregate the
outstanding Principal of this Note, and each such new Note will represent such portion of such outstanding Principal as is designated by the Holder at the time of
such surrender.

 
(c)       Issuance of New Notes. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Note pursuant to the terms of this Note, such new Note: (i)

shall be of like tenor with this Note; (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Note, the Principal remaining outstanding (or in the case of a new
Note being issued pursuant to Section 10(b), the Principal designated by the Holder which, when added to the principal represented by the other new Notes
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the Principal remaining outstanding under this Note immediately prior to such issuance of new Notes);
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Note, which is the same as the Issuance Date of this Note; (iv) shall have the same rights
and conditions as this Note; and (v) shall represent accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal of this Note, from the Issuance Date.

 
13.         Payment of Collection, Enforcement and Other Costs . If: (a) this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection or enforcement or is

collected or enforced through any legal proceeding or the Holder otherwise takes action to collect amounts due under this Note or to enforce the provisions of
this Note or (b) there occurs any bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership of the Company or other proceedings affecting Company creditors’ rights and involving
a claim under this Note, then the Company shall pay the costs incurred by the Holder for such collection, enforcement or action or in connection with such
bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other proceeding, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and disbursements.

 
14.         Construction; Headings. This Note shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against any

Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Note are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Note.
 
15.         Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver . No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other
right, power or privilege. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.

 
16.          Notices; Payments.

 
(a)       Notices. Whenever a notice is required to be given under this Note, unless otherwise provided herein, the notice shall be given to the

Holder’s address set forth above. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given by the Company or the Holder pursuant to the terms of this
Note shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered: (i) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile transmission, unless such delivery is made on a
day that is not a business day, in which case such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day; (ii) on the next business day after
timely delivery to an overnight courier; and (iii) on the business day actually received if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid), addressed as follows:
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COMPANY: QPAGOS

Paseo de la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH
Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtémoc  
Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600
 

with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP
405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor
New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.
Facsimile: (212) 208-4657

  
HOLDER:
 

(b)       Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Note, whenever any payment of cash is to be made by the Company to any person
pursuant to this Note, such payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by a check drawn on the account of the Company and sent
via overnight courier service to such person at such address as previously provided to the Company in writing; provided, that the Holder may elect to receive a
payment of cash via wire transfer of immediately available funds by providing the Company with prior written notice setting out such request and the Holder’s
wire transfer instructions. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall
instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day.

 
17.         Cancellation. After all principal, interest and other amounts at any time owed on this Note have been paid in full, this Note shall automatically be

deemed cancelled, shall be surrendered to the Company for cancellation and shall not be reissued.
 
18.         Severability. If any provision of this Note is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent

jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be
valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Note so long as this
Note as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the
practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the
prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed and delivered this Note on the date and year first above written.
 

 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name: Gaston Pereira
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 4.23
 
NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE ON EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OR ANY OTHER SECURITIES LAWS (THE “ACTS”). NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
PURCHASABLE HEREUNDER MAY BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THIS WARRANT OR COMMON STOCK PURCHASABLE HEREUNDER, AS APPLICABLE, UNDER THE ACTS, OR (B)
AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE CORPORATION THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACTS.
 

QPAGOS
WARRANT

 
VOID AFTER 5:00 P.M. NEW YORK TIME,

JUNE 28, 2020
 
Issue Date: June 29, 2017
 

1.       Basic Terms. This Warrant (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, the registered holder specified below or its registered assigns
(“Holder”) is the owner of a warrant of QPAGOS, a Nevada corporation (the “Corporation”), subject to adjustments as provided herein, to purchase One Hundred
Eighty Thousand Three Hundred Sixty Five (180,365) shares of the Common Stock, $.001 par value, of the Corporation (the “Common Stock”) from the
Corporation at the price per share shown below (the “Exercise Price”).
 

 
Holder:
 

DELINVEST COMMERCIAL LTD 
Drake Chambers 
P.O. Box 3321 
Roadtown, Tortola, BVI 

Exercise Price per share: $0.30
  
Except as specifically provided otherwise, all references in this Warrant to the Exercise Price and the number of shares of Common Stock purchasable
hereunder shall be to the Exercise Price and number of shares after any adjustments are made thereto pursuant to this Warrant.
 

2.       Corporation’s Representations/Covenants. The Corporation represents and covenants that the shares of Common Stock issuable upon the
exercise of this Warrant shall at delivery be fully paid and non-assessable and free from taxes, liens, encumbrances and charges with respect to their purchase.
The Corporation shall take any necessary actions to assure that the par value per share of the Common Stock is at all times equal to or less than the then
current Exercise Price per share of Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Warrant. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and hold available sufficient
shares of Common Stock to satisfy all conversion and purchase rights of outstanding convertible securities, options and warrants of the Corporation, including
this Warrant.
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3.       Method of Exercise; Fractional Shares.
 

(a)       Method of Exercise. This Warrant is exercisable at the option of the Holder at any time by surrendering this Warrant, on any business day
during the period (the “Exercise Period”) beginning the business day after the issue date of this Warrant specified above and ending at 5:00 p.m. (New York time)
five (5) years after the issue date. To exercise this Warrant, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant at the principal office of the Corporation or that of the duly
authorized and acting transfer agent for its Common Stock, together with the executed exercise form (substantially in the form of that attached hereto) and
payment in cash or by wire transfer of immediately available funds of an amount equal to the Exercise Price multiplied by the number of shares of the Common
Stock being purchased under this Warrant. The principal office of the Corporation is located at the address specified in Section 1 of this Warrant; provided,
however, that the Corporation may change its principal office upon notice to the Holder. Payment shall be made by check payable to the order of the
Corporation or by wire transfer. This Warrant is not exercisable with respect to a fraction of a share of Common Stock. In lieu of issuing a fraction of a share
remaining after exercise of this Warrant as to all full shares covered by this Warrant, the Corporation shall either at its option (1) pay for the fractional share cash
equal to the same fraction at the fair market price for such share; or (2) issue scrip for the fraction in the registered or bearer form which shall entitle the Holder to
receive a certificate for a full share of Common Stock on surrender of scrip aggregating a full share.

 
4.       Protection Against Dilution. If the Corporation, with respect to the Common Stock: (a) pays a dividend or makes a distribution on shares of

common stock that is paid in shares of common stock or in securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock (in which latter event the number of
shares of common stock initially issuable upon the conversion or exchange of such securities shall be deemed to have been distributed); (b) subdivides
outstanding shares of Common Stock; (c) combines outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares; or (d) issues by reclassification of
common stock any shares of capital stock of the Corporation, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior thereto and the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable under this Warrant shall be adjusted so that each Holder thereafter shall be entitled to receive the number and kind of shares of Common Stock or other
capital stock of the Corporation that it would have owned or been entitled to receive in respect of this Warrant immediately after the happening of any of the
events described above had this Warrant been converted immediately prior to the happening of that event. An adjustment made in accordance with this section
shall become effective immediately after the record date, in the case of a dividend, and shall become effective immediately after the effective date, in the case of
a subdivision, combination, or reclassification. If, as a result of an adjustment made in accordance with this Section 4, the Holder becomes entitled to receive
shares of two or more classes of capital stock or shares of common stock and other capital stock of the Corporation, the board of directors (whose determination
shall be conclusive) shall determine the allocation of the adjusted Exercise Rate between or among shares of such classes of capital stock or shares of Common
Stock and other capital stock.
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5.       Adjustment for Reorganization, Consolidation, Merger, Etc. In the event of any consolidation or merger to which the Corporation is a party other

than a consolidation or merger in which the Corporation is the continuing corporation, or the sale or conveyance to another corporation of the property of the
Corporation as an entirety or substantially as an entirety or any statutory exchange of securities with another corporation (including any exchange effected in
connection with a merger of a third corporation into the Corporation) (each such transaction referred to herein as “Reorganization”), no adjustment of exercise
rights or the Exercise Price shall be made; provided, however, the Holder shall thereupon be entitled to receive and provision shall be made therefor in any
agreement relating to a Reorganization, the kind and number of securities or property (including cash) of the corporation resulting from such consolidation or
surviving such merger or to which such properties and assets shall have been sold or otherwise transferred or with whom securities have been exchanged, which
the Holder would have owned or been entitled to receive as a result of such Reorganization had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such
Reorganization (and assuming the Holder failed to make an election, if any was available, as to the kind or amount of securities, property or cash receivable by
reason of such Reorganization; provided that if the kind or amount of securities, property or cash receivable upon such Reorganization is not the same for each
share of common stock in respect of which such rights of election shall not have been exercised (“non-electing share”) then for the purpose of this section the
kind and amount of securities, property or cash receivable upon such Reorganization for each non-electing share shall be deemed to be the kind and amount so
receivable per share by a plurality of the non-electing shares). In any case, appropriate adjustment shall be made in the application of the provisions herein set
forth with respect to the rights and interests thereafter of the Holder, to the end that the provisions set forth herein (including the specified changes and other
adjustments to the conversion rate) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as reasonably may be, in relation to any shares, other securities or property
thereafter receivable upon exercise of this Warrant. The provisions of this section similarly apply to successive Reorganizations.

 
6.       Notice of Adjustment. On the happening of an event requiring an adjustment of the Exercise Price or the shares purchasable under this Warrant,

the Corporation shall, within thirty (30) days, give written notice to the Holder stating the adjusted Exercise Price and the adjusted number and kind of securities
or other property purchasable under this Warrant resulting from the event and setting forth in reasonable detail the method of calculation and the facts upon
which the calculation is based.

 
7.       Dissolution, Liquidation. In case of the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Corporation (other than in connection

with reorganization, consolidation, merger, or other transaction covered by paragraph 5 above) is at any time proposed; the Corporation shall give at least thirty
days prior written notice to the Holder. Such notice shall contain: (a) the date on which the transaction is to take place; (b) the record date (which shall be at least
thirty (30) days after the giving of the notice) as of which holders of Common Stock will be entitled to receive distributions as a result of the transaction; (c) a brief
description of the transaction; (d) a brief description of the distributions to be made to holders of Common Stock as a result of the transaction; and (e) an estimate
of the fair value of the distributions. On the date of the transaction, if it actually occurs, this Warrant and all rights under this Warrant shall terminate.
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9.       Rights of Holder. The Corporation shall deliver to the Holder all notices and other information provided to its holders of shares of Common Stock

or other securities which may be issuable hereunder concurrently with the delivery of such information to the holders. This Warrant does not entitle the Holder to
any voting rights or, except for the foregoing notice provisions, any other rights as a shareholder of the Corporation. No dividends are payable or will accrue on
this Warrant or the shares of Common Stock purchasable under this Warrant until, and except to the extent that, this Warrant is exercised. Upon the surrender of
this Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price as provided above, the person or entity entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such
exercise shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder of such shares as of the close of business on the date of the surrender of this Warrant for exercise
as provided above. Upon the exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall have all of the rights of a shareholder in the Corporation.

 
10.     Exchange for Other Denominations . This Warrant is exchangeable, on its surrender by the Holder to the Corporation, for a new Warrant of like

tenor and date representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the balance of the number of shares purchasable under this Warrant in denominations and
subject to restrictions on transfer contained herein, in the names designated by the Holder at the time of surrender.

 
11.     Substitution. Upon receipt by the Corporation of evidence satisfactory (in the exercise of reasonable discretion) to it of the ownership of and the

loss, theft or destruction or mutilation of the Warrant, and (in the case or loss, theft or destruction) of indemnity satisfactory (in the exercise of reasonable
discretion) to it, and (in the case of mutilation) upon the surrender and cancellation thereof, the Corporation will issue and deliver, in lieu thereof, a new Warrant
of like tenor.

 
12.     Restrictions on Transfer. Neither this Warrant nor the shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of this Warrant have been registered under

the Securities Act or any other securities laws (the “Acts”). Neither this Warrant nor the shares of Common Stock purchasable hereunder may be sold,
transferred, pledged or hypothecated in the absence of (i) an effective registration statement for this Warrant or Common Stock purchasable hereunder, as
applicable, under the Acts, or (ii) an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation that registration is not required under such Acts. If the Holder
seeks an opinion as to transfer without registration from Holder’s counsel, the Corporation shall provide such factual information to Holder’s counsel as Holder’s
counsel reasonably requests for the purpose of rendering such opinion. Each certificate evidencing shares of Common Stock purchased hereunder will bear a
legend describing the restrictions on transfer contained in this paragraph unless, in the opinion of counsel reasonably acceptable to the Corporation, the shares
need no longer to be subject to the transfer restrictions.

 
13.     Transfer. Except as otherwise provided in this Warrant, this Warrant is transferable only on the books of the Corporation by the Holder in person or

by attorney, on surrender of this Warrant, properly endorsed.
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14.     Recognition of Holder. Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of this Warrant, the Corporation shall treat the Holder as the person

exclusively entitled to receive notices and otherwise to exercise rights under this Warrant. All notices required or permitted to be given to the Holder shall be in
writing and shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Holder at the address of the Holder appearing in the records of the Corporation.
 

15.     Payment of Taxes. The Corporation shall pay all taxes and other governmental charges, other than applicable income taxes, that may be imposed
with respect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock pursuant to the exercise of this Warrant.

 
16.     Headings. The headings in this Warrant are for purposes of convenience in reference only, shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Warrant

and shall not affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions of this Warrant.
 
17.     Miscellaneous. This Warrant may not be changed, waived, discharged or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by the Corporation

and the Holder. This Warrant shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Corporation. Under no circumstances may
this Warrant be assigned by the Holder.

 
18.     Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada without giving effect to its

principles governing conflicts of law.
 

 
 QPAGOS
   
 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Name: Gaston Pereira
 Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
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QPAGOS

Form of Transfer
 

(To be executed by the Holder to transfer the Warrant)
 

For value received the undersigned registered holder of the attached Warrant hereby sells, assigns, and transfers the Warrant to the Assignee(s) named below:
 

Names of
Assignee

 
Address 

 
Taxpayer ID No. 

 
Number of shares 
subject to transferred
Warrant 

       
       
 
The undersigned registered holder further irrevocably appoints ____________________ _______________________________ attorney (with full power of
substitution) to transfer this Warrant as aforesaid on the books of the Corporation.
 
Date:  
   Signature
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QPAGOS 

Exercise Form
 

(To be executed by the Holder to purchase
Common Stock pursuant to the Warrant)

 
The undersigned holder of the attached Warrant hereby irrevocably elects to exercise purchase rights represented by such Warrant for, and to
purchase,____________shares of Common Stock of QPAGOS, a Nevada corporation. The undersigned tenders payment for those shares by wire transfer or
enclosed check.
 
The undersigned requests that (1) a certificate for the shares be issued in the name of the undersigned and (2) if the number of shares with respect to which the
undersigned holder has exercised purchase rights is not all of the shares purchasable under this Warrant, that a new Warrant of like tenor for the balance of the
remaining shares purchasable under this Warrant be issued.
  
Date:  
   Signature
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Exhibit 10.20

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

  
THIS SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT , dated as of the date of acceptance set forth below, is entered into by and between QPAGOS, a Nevada

corporation, with headquarters located at Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc, Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600 (the “Company”), and
the undersigned (the “Buyer”).

 
W I T N E S S E T H :

  
WHEREAS, the Company is offering 12% convertible notes for a minimum principal amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000);
  
WHEREAS, the Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in accordance with and in reliance upon the exemption from

securities registration afforded, inter alia, by Regulation 506 under Regulation D (“Regulation D”) as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), and/or Section 4(a)(2) of the 1933 Act; and

 
WHEREAS, the Buyer wishes to purchase, and the Company wishes to sell, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, a 12% convertible

note of the Company in the principal amount of $52,493.59, due six months after the date of issuance, in the form attached as Annex A hereto (the “Initial Note”).
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
 
1.       AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE; PURCHASE PRICE. In consideration of the Buyer’s investment of Fifty Two Thousand Four Hundred Ninety

Three Dollars and Fifty-Nine Cents ($52,493.59) in the Company, the Company hereby agrees to issue the Initial Note to the Buyer. In the Company’s sole and
absolute discretion, the Buyer further shall have the option to purchase additional 12% convertible notes of the Company due on the six (6) month anniversary of
the issuance date of such note in a principal amount of at least $10,000 at any time after the Buyer’s purchase of the Initial Note and prior to August 31, 2017
(the “Additional Notes”),; the Initial Note and any Additional Notes, and, are collectively referred to herein as the “Notes”); provided, the Company reserves the
right to not to issue and sell any of all of the Additional Notes the Buyer may request be issued to Buyer. Any such sale of the Additional Notes shall be effected
by the Buyer providing the Company with funds in the principal amount of each of the Additional Notes on or prior to August 31, 2017 and the Company
providing to the Buyer and the Buyer executing a separate securities purchase agreement between the Buyer and the Company for each additional investment,
followed by the Company’s issuance and delivery of an Additional Note for each such accepted investment. Any Notes that are purchased prior to June 30, 2017
shall have a stated conversion price of $0.20 per share. Any Notes that are purchased after June 30, 2017 and prior to July 31, 2017 shall have a stated
conversion price of $0.25 per share. Any Notes that are purchased after July 31, 2017 shall have a stated conversion rate of $0.30 per share. If the Company
elects not to issue any Additional Note(s), it shall return any funds received by it in respect thereof to the Buyer and instead of providing the Buyer with a
separate securities purchase agreement to execute, it shall provide the Buyer with a notification of its election not to issue any such Notes. If the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes purchased by Buyer hereunder is greater than or equal to Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000), upon maturity of each of the Notes or
the Buyer’s conversion of the Notes held by Buyer, the Company will issue to Buyer a warrant, in the form attached as Annex B hereto (the “Warrant”), to
purchase such number of shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.001 par value (the “Common Stock”) (representing 100% warrant coverage on the issued
Notes e.g., the number of shares of Common Stock that are equal to the quotient obtained by dividing for each issued Note (i) the principal amount of such Note
by (ii) the applicable conversion price of the Note) at an exercise price of $0.30 per share; provided if Buyer converts any of the Notes that are issued by the
Company prior to maturity, the stated exercise price for the Warrant to be issued in respect of such converted Note(s) shall be reduced to $0.20 per share from
$0.30 per share; provided, further that if the Company shall elect not to issue any Additional Notes, after receipt of funds from Buyer for such Additional Notes,
upon maturity of the Initial Note or earlier conversion date, the number of shares underlying the Warrant to be issued to the Buyer upon maturity of the Initial
Note or earlier conversion date shall be equal to an amount representing 100% warrant coverage (e.g., the number of shares of Common Stock that are equal to
the quotient obtained by dividing (i) one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount of the Notes that have been issued to such Buyer by (ii) the applicable
conversion price of each issued Note).
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2.       BUYER REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, ETC.; ACCESS TO INFORMATION; INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION.
 
The Buyer represents and warrants to, and covenants and agrees with, the Company as follows:

 
a .       The Buyer is purchasing the Notes and any underlying common stock and any warrant issued in connection therewith for its own account for

investment only and not with a view towards the public sale or distribution thereof and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof;
 
b.       The Buyer is (i) an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Rule 501 of the General Rules and Regulations under the 1933 Act by reason of

Rule 501(a)(3), and (ii) experienced in making investments of the kind described in this Agreement and the related documents, (iii) able, by reason of the
business and financial experience of its officers (if an entity) and professional advisors (who are not affiliated with or compensated in any way by the Company
or any of its affiliates or selling agents), to protect its own interests in connection with the transactions described in this Agreement, and the related documents,
and (iv) able to afford the entire loss of its investment in the Note;

 
c .       All subsequent offers and sales of the Notes, any Warrant issued hereunder or the common stock underlying the Notes and Warrants by the

Buyer shall be made pursuant to registration under the 1933 Act or pursuant to an exemption from registration;
 
d .       The Buyer understands that the Notes are being offered and sold to it in reliance on specific exemptions from the registration requirements of

United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgements and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such
exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Notes;

 
e .       The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the Company and

materials relating to the offer and sale of the Notes which have been requested by the Buyer. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been afforded the
opportunity to ask questions of the Company and have received complete and satisfactory answers to any such inquiries. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Buyer has also had the opportunity to obtain and to review the Company’s the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2017 filed with the SEC on May 22, 2017 and the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 filed with the
SEC on April, 2017 (the “SEC Documents”);

 
f.       The Buyer understands that its investment in the Notes, any Warrant that may be issued in connection therewith and the common stock underlying

the Notes or Warrants involves a high degree of risk;
 
g .       The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed on or made

any recommendation or endorsement of the Note; and
 
h .       This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer and is a valid and binding agreement of the

Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium and other
similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.
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3.       COMPANY REPRESENTATIONS, ETC.
 
The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:

 
a.       Reporting Company Status. The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of

Nevada, and has the requisite corporate power to own its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted. The Company is duly qualified as a
foreign corporation to do business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it makes such
qualification necessary other than those jurisdictions in which the failure to so qualify would not have a material and adverse effect on the business, operations,
properties, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company. The Company has registered its Common Stock pursuant to Section 12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the Common Stock is listed and traded on the OTCQB.

 
b.       Authorized Shares. The Company has authorized and reserved for issuance, free from preemptive rights, shares of its common stock equal to

the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note (“Conversion Shares”) and exercise of the Warrants (“Warrant Shares”). The Conversion Shares and
Warrant Shares have been duly authorized, and when issued, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and will not subject the holder
thereof to personal liability by reason of being such holder.

 
c.       Securities Purchase Agreement. The Note, this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by

the Company, the Note and this Agreement have been duly executed and delivered by the Company and, when executed and delivered by the Company, will
each be, a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity
and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. The Warrants, when issued, executed
and delivered by the Company, will each be, a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject as to
enforceability to general principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally.

 
d.       Non-contravention. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company, the issuance of the Note and Warrants, and the

consummation by the Company of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement do not and will not conflict with or result in a breach by the Company
of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default under (i) the articles of incorporation or by-laws of the Company, (ii) any indenture, mortgage, deed of
trust, or other material agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets are bound, (iii) to its knowledge,
any existing applicable law, rule, or regulation or any applicable decree, judgment, or (iv) to its knowledge, order of any court, United States federal or state
regulatory body, administrative agency, or other governmental body having jurisdiction over the Company or any of its properties or assets, except such conflict,
breach or default which would not have a material adverse effect on the transactions contemplated herein. The Company is not in violation of any material laws,
governmental orders, rules, regulations or ordinances to which its property, real, personal, mixed, tangible or intangible, or its businesses related to such
properties, are subject.

 
e.       Approvals. No authorization, approval or consent of any court, governmental body, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization, or stock

exchange or market is required to be obtained by the Company for the issuance and sale of the Note to the Buyer as contemplated by this Agreement, except
such authorizations, approvals and consents that have been obtained.

 
f.       SEC Documents, Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be

filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, including material filed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d). The Company has
not provided to the Buyer any information which, according to applicable law, rule or regulation, should have been disclosed publicly by the Company but which
has not been so disclosed, other than with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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4.       CERTAIN COVENANTS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.
 
a.       Restrictive Legend. The Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Note, the Warrant, the Conversion Shares and the Warrant Shares shall bear a

restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer thereof):
 
[THIS NOTE][THESE SHARES] [HAS][HAVE] NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE

“SECURITIES ACT”), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OFFERED FOR SALE, IN THE ABSENCE OF AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL OR OTHER EVIDENCE ACCEPTABLE TO THE CORPORATION THAT SUCH
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.]

 
b.       Transfer Restrictions. The Buyer acknowledges that (1) neither the Note, the Warrant, the Conversion Shares nor the Warrant Shares have been

registered under the provisions of the 1933 Act and may not be transferred unless (A) subsequently registered thereunder, or (B) the Buyer shall have delivered
to the Company an opinion of counsel, reasonably satisfactory in form, scope and substance to the Company, to the effect that the securities to be sold or
transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration; and (2) any sale of any such securities made in reliance on Rule 144
promulgated under the 1933 Act may be made only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any resale of the
securities under circumstances in which the seller, or the person through whom the sale is made, may be deemed to be an underwriter, as that term is used in
the 1933 Act, may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder.
 

c.       Filings. The Company undertakes and agrees to make all necessary filings in connection with the sale of the Note and Warrant to the Buyer
under any United States laws and regulations, or by any domestic securities exchange or trading market, and to provide a copy thereof to the Buyer promptly
after such filing.

 
5.       GOVERNING LAW: MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of

Nevada. A facsimile transmission of this signed Agreement shall be legal and binding on all parties hereto. This Agreement may be signed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect
the interpretation of, this Agreement. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement or the validity or enforceability of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction. This
Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the party to be charged with enforcement. This Agreement supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.

 
6.       NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing (unless otherwise specified herein) and shall be deemed effectively

given, (i) on the date delivered, (a) by personal delivery, or (b) if advance copy is given by fax, (ii) seven business days after deposit in the United States Postal
Service by regular or certified mail, or (iii) three business days mailing by international express courier, with postage and fees prepaid, addressed to each of the
other parties thereunto entitled at the following addresses, or at such other addresses as a party may designate by ten days advance written notice to each of
the other parties hereto.

 
 COMPANY: QPAGOS
  Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH 

Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc 
Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600

   
 with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP
  405 Lexington Avenue, 26th Floor 

New York, New York 10174 
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.

  Facsimile: (212) 208-4657
 

BUYER: At the address set forth on the signature page of this Agreement.
 

7.       SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective
successors and permitted assigns.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by the Buyer or one of its officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date set

forth below.
 
For $52,493.59 of 12% Convertible Notes due December 16 th 2017, the Buyer has tendered $52,493.59.
 

 Address: 9855 Warren H Abernathy Highway,
Spartanburg, SC 29301

 
 By: /s/ Jimmy Gibbs  Fax No.  
 (Signature of Authorized Person)    
 
 
 Gibbs International, Inc  Jurisdiction South Carolina
 Printed Name and Title  of incorporation  
 or organization    
 

57-0600473
Taxpayer identification number
or social security number,
as applicable
 
This Agreement has been accepted as of the date set forth below.
 
QPAGOS
 

 By: /s/ Gaston Pereira  
 Name: Gaston Pereira  
 Title: Chief Executive Officer  
 

Dated: June 19, 2017
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Exhibit 10.21

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

 
THIS SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT , dated as of the date of acceptance set forth below, is entered into by and between QPAGOS, a Nevada

corporation, with headquarters located at Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc, Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600 (the “Company”), and
the undersigned (the “Buyer”).

 
W I T N E S S E T H :

 
WHEREAS, the Company is offering 12% convertible notes for a minimum principal amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000);
 
WHEREAS, the Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in accordance with and in reliance upon the exemption from

securities registration afforded, inter alia, by Regulation 506 under Regulation D (“Regulation D”) as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), and/or Section 4(a)(2) of the 1933 Act; and

 
WHEREAS, the Buyer wishes to purchase, and the Company wishes to sell, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, a 12% convertible

note of the Company in the principal amount of $54,109.59, due six months after the date of issuance, in the form attached as Annex A hereto (the “Initial Note”).
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
 
1.            AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE; PURCHASE PRICE. In consideration of the Buyer’s investment of Fifty Four Thousand One Hundred and

Nine Dollars and Fifty-Nine Cents ($54,109.59) in the Company, the Company hereby agrees to issue the Initial Note to the Buyer. In the Company’s sole and
absolute discretion, the Buyer further shall have the option to purchase additional 12% convertible notes of the Company due on the six (6) month anniversary of
the issuance date of such note in a principal amount of at least $10,000 at any time after the Buyer’s purchase of the Initial Note and prior to August 31, 2017
(the “Additional Notes”),; the Initial Note and any Additional Notes, and, are collectively referred to herein as the “Notes”); provided, the Company reserves the
right to not to issue and sell any of all of the Additional Notes the Buyer may request be issued to Buyer. Any such sale of the Additional Notes shall be effected
by the Buyer providing the Company with funds in the principal amount of each of the Additional Notes on or prior to August 31, 2017 and the Company
providing to the Buyer and the Buyer executing a separate securities purchase agreement between the Buyer and the Company for each additional investment,
followed by the Company’s issuance and delivery of an Additional Note for each such accepted investment. Any Notes that are purchased prior to June 30, 2017
shall have a stated conversion price of $0.20 per share. Any Notes that are purchased after June 30, 2017 and prior to July 31, 2017 shall have a stated
conversion price of $0.25 per share. Any Notes that are purchased after July 31, 2017 shall have a stated conversion rate of $0.30 per share. If the Company
elects not to issue any Additional Note(s), it shall return any funds received by it in respect thereof to the Buyer and instead of providing the Buyer with a
separate securities purchase agreement to execute, it shall provide the Buyer with a notification of its election not to issue any such Notes. If the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes purchased by Buyer hereunder is greater than or equal to Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000), upon maturity of each of the Notes or
the Buyer’s conversion of the Notes held by Buyer, the Company will issue to Buyer a warrant, in the form attached as Annex B hereto (the “Warrant”), to
purchase such number of shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.001 par value (the “Common Stock”) (representing 100% warrant coverage on the issued
Notes e.g., the number of shares of Common Stock that are equal to the quotient obtained by dividing for each issued Note (i) the principal amount of such Note
by (ii) the applicable conversion price of the Note) at an exercise price of $0.30 per share; provided if Buyer converts any of the Notes that are issued by the
Company prior to maturity, the stated exercise price for the Warrant to be issued in respect of such converted Note(s) shall be reduced to $0.20 per share from
$0.30 per share; provided, further that if the Company shall elect not to issue any Additional Notes, after receipt of funds from Buyer for such Additional Notes,
upon maturity of the Initial Note or earlier conversion date, the number of shares underlying the Warrant to be issued to the Buyer upon maturity of the Initial
Note or earlier conversion date shall be equal to an amount representing 100% warrant coverage (e.g., the number of shares of Common Stock that are equal to
the quotient obtained by dividing (i) one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount of the Notes that have been issued to such Buyer by (ii) the applicable
conversion price of each issued Note).
 

 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
2.            BUYER REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, ETC.; ACCESS TO INFORMATION; INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION.
 
The Buyer represents and warrants to, and covenants and agrees with, the Company as follows:

 
a.             The Buyer is purchasing the Notes and any underlying common stock and any warrant issued in connection therewith for its own account for

investment only and not with a view towards the public sale or distribution thereof and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof;
 
b.             The Buyer is (i) an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Rule 501 of the General Rules and Regulations under the 1933 Act by reason

of Rule 501(a)(3), and (ii) experienced in making investments of the kind described in this Agreement and the related documents, (iii) able, by reason of the
business and financial experience of its officers (if an entity) and professional advisors (who are not affiliated with or compensated in any way by the Company
or any of its affiliates or selling agents), to protect its own interests in connection with the transactions described in this Agreement, and the related documents,
and (iv) able to afford the entire loss of its investment in the Note;

 
c.             All subsequent offers and sales of the Notes, any Warrant issued hereunder or the common stock underlying the Notes and Warrants by the

Buyer shall be made pursuant to registration under the 1933 Act or pursuant to an exemption from registration;
 
d.             The Buyer understands that the Notes are being offered and sold to it in reliance on specific exemptions from the registration requirements of

United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgements and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such
exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Notes;

 
e.             The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the Company and

materials relating to the offer and sale of the Notes which have been requested by the Buyer. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been afforded the
opportunity to ask questions of the Company and have received complete and satisfactory answers to any such inquiries. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Buyer has also had the opportunity to obtain and to review the Company’s the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2017 filed with the SEC on May 22, 2017 and the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 filed with the
SEC on April, 2017 (the “SEC Documents”);

 
f.              The Buyer understands that its investment in the Notes, any Warrant that may be issued in connection therewith and the common stock

underlying the Notes or Warrants involves a high degree of risk;
 
g.             The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed on or

made any recommendation or endorsement of the Note; and
 
h.            This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer and is a valid and binding agreement of

the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium and
other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.
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3.            COMPANY REPRESENTATIONS, ETC.

 
The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:

 
a.             Reporting Company Status. The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State

of Nevada, and has the requisite corporate power to own its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted. The Company is duly qualified as a
foreign corporation to do business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it makes such
qualification necessary other than those jurisdictions in which the failure to so qualify would not have a material and adverse effect on the business, operations,
properties, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company. The Company has registered its Common Stock pursuant to Section 12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the Common Stock is listed and traded on the OTCQB.

 
b.             Authorized Shares. The Company has authorized and reserved for issuance, free from preemptive rights, shares of its common stock equal

to the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note (“Conversion Shares”) and exercise of the Warrants (“Warrant Shares”). The Conversion Shares
and Warrant Shares have been duly authorized, and when issued, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and will not subject the holder
thereof to personal liability by reason of being such holder.

 
c.             Securities Purchase Agreement. The Note, this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized

by the Company, the Note and this Agreement have been duly executed and delivered by the Company and, when executed and delivered by the Company, will
each be, a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity
and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. The Warrants, when issued, executed
and delivered by the Company, will each be, a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject as to
enforceability to general principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally.

 
d.             Non-contravention. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company, the issuance of the Note and Warrants, and the

consummation by the Company of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement do not and will not conflict with or result in a breach by the Company
of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default under (i) the articles of incorporation or by-laws of the Company, (ii) any indenture, mortgage, deed of
trust, or other material agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets are bound, (iii) to its knowledge,
any existing applicable law, rule, or regulation or any applicable decree, judgment, or (iv) to its knowledge, order of any court, United States federal or state
regulatory body, administrative agency, or other governmental body having jurisdiction over the Company or any of its properties or assets, except such conflict,
breach or default which would not have a material adverse effect on the transactions contemplated herein. The Company is not in violation of any material laws,
governmental orders, rules, regulations or ordinances to which its property, real, personal, mixed, tangible or intangible, or its businesses related to such
properties, are subject.

 
e.            Approvals. No authorization, approval or consent of any court, governmental body, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization, or stock

exchange or market is required to be obtained by the Company for the issuance and sale of the Note to the Buyer as contemplated by this Agreement, except
such authorizations, approvals and consents that have been obtained.

 
f.             SEC Documents, Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to

be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, including material filed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d). The Company
has not provided to the Buyer any information which, according to applicable law, rule or regulation, should have been disclosed publicly by the Company but
which has not been so disclosed, other than with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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4.            CERTAIN COVENANTS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.

 
a.             Restrictive Legend. The Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Note, the Warrant, the Conversion Shares and the Warrant Shares shall

bear a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer thereof):
 
[THIS NOTE][THESE SHARES] [HAS][HAVE] NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE

“SECURITIES ACT”), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OFFERED FOR SALE, IN THE ABSENCE OF AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL OR OTHER EVIDENCE ACCEPTABLE TO THE CORPORATION THAT SUCH
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.]

 
b.             Transfer Restrictions. The Buyer acknowledges that (1) neither the Note, the Warrant, the Conversion Shares nor the Warrant Shares have

been registered under the provisions of the 1933 Act and may not be transferred unless (A) subsequently registered thereunder, or (B) the Buyer shall have
delivered to the Company an opinion of counsel, reasonably satisfactory in form, scope and substance to the Company, to the effect that the securities to be
sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration; and (2) any sale of any such securities made in reliance on Rule
144 promulgated under the 1933 Act may be made only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any resale of the
securities under circumstances in which the seller, or the person through whom the sale is made, may be deemed to be an underwriter, as that term is used in
the 1933 Act, may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder.
 

c.             Filings. The Company undertakes and agrees to make all necessary filings in connection with the sale of the Note and Warrant to the Buyer
under any United States laws and regulations, or by any domestic securities exchange or trading market, and to provide a copy thereof to the Buyer promptly
after such filing.

 
5.            GOVERNING LAW: MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of

Nevada. A facsimile transmission of this signed Agreement shall be legal and binding on all parties hereto. This Agreement may be signed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect
the interpretation of, this Agreement. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement or the validity or enforceability of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction. This
Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the party to be charged with enforcement. This Agreement supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.

 
6.            NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing (unless otherwise specified herein) and shall be deemed

effectively given, (i) on the date delivered, (a) by personal delivery, or (b) if advance copy is given by fax, (ii) seven business days after deposit in the United
States Postal Service by regular or certified mail, or (iii) three business days mailing by international express courier, with postage and fees prepaid, addressed
to each of the other parties thereunto entitled at the following addresses, or at such other addresses as a party may designate by ten days advance written
notice to each of the other parties hereto.

 
COMPANY: QPAGOS
 Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH
 Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc
 Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600
  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP

405 Lexington Avenue, 26 th Floor
New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq. 
Facsimile: (212) 208-4657

  
BUYER: At the address set forth on the signature page of this Agreement.
 
7.            SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective

successors and permitted assigns.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by the Buyer or one of its officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date set forth

below.
 
For $54,109.59 of 12% Convertible Notes due December 26, 2017, the Buyer has tendered $54,109.59. 

 
  Address: Drake Chambers
   P.O. Box 3321

Roadtown, Tortola, BVI 
 

By: /s/ Alex Motorin  Fax No.   
(Signature of Authorized Person)    
     
Delinvest Commercial LTD  Jurisdiction BVI
Alex Motorin - President  of incorporation  
Printed Name and Title or organization    
    
N/A    
Taxpayer identification number 
or social security number, 
as applicable 

   

    
This Agreement has been accepted as of the date set forth below.

  
QPAGOS  
   
By: /s/ Gaston Pereira  
Name:  Gaston Pereira  
Title:    Chief Executive Officer  

 
Dated : June 29, 2017
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Exhibit 10.22

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

 
THIS SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT , dated as of the date of acceptance set forth below, is entered into by and between QPAGOS, a Nevada

corporation, with headquarters located at Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc, Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600 (the “Company”), and
the undersigned (the “Buyer”).
 

W I T N E S S E T H :
 

WHEREAS, the Company is offering 12% convertible notes for a minimum principal amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000);
 
WHEREAS, the Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in accordance with and in reliance upon the exemption from

securities registration afforded, inter alia, by Regulation 506 under Regulation D (“Regulation D”) as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), and/or Section 4(a)(2) of the 1933 Act; and

 
WHEREAS, the Buyer wishes to purchase, and the Company wishes to sell, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, a 12% convertible

note of the Company in the principal amount of $53,452.06, due six months after the date of issuance, in the form attached as Annex A hereto (the “Initial Note”).
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
 
1.          AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE; PURCHASE PRICE. In consideration of the Buyer’s investment of Fifty Three Thousand Four Hundred Fifty

Two Dollars and Six Cents ($53,452.06) in the Company, the Company hereby agrees to issue the Initial Note to the Buyer. In the Company’s sole and absolute
discretion, the Buyer further shall have the option to purchase additional 12% convertible notes of the Company due on the six (6) month anniversary of the
issuance date of such note in a principal amount of at least $10,000 at any time after the Buyer’s purchase of the Initial Note and prior to August 31, 2017 (the
“Additional Notes”),; the Initial Note and any Additional Notes, and, are collectively referred to herein as the “Notes”); provided, the Company reserves the right
to not to issue and sell any of all of the Additional Notes the Buyer may request be issued to Buyer. Any such sale of the Additional Notes shall be effected by
the Buyer providing the Company with funds in the principal amount of each of the Additional Notes on or prior to August 31, 2017 and the Company providing
to the Buyer and the Buyer executing a separate securities purchase agreement between the Buyer and the Company for each additional investment, followed by
the Company’s issuance and delivery of an Additional Note for each such accepted investment. Any Notes that are purchased prior to June 30, 2017 shall have a
stated conversion price of $0.20 per share. Any Notes that are purchased after June 30, 2017 and prior to July 31, 2017 shall have a stated conversion price of
$0.25 per share. Any Notes that are purchased after July 31, 2017 shall have a stated conversion rate of $0.30 per share. If the Company elects not to issue any
Additional Note(s), it shall return any funds received by it in respect thereof to the Buyer and instead of providing the Buyer with a separate securities purchase
agreement to execute, it shall provide the Buyer with a notification of its election not to issue any such Notes. If the aggregate principal amount of the Notes
purchased by Buyer hereunder is greater than or equal to Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000), upon maturity of each of the Notes or the Buyer’s conversion of the
Notes held by Buyer, the Company will issue to Buyer a warrant, in the form attached as Annex B hereto (the “Warrant”), to purchase such number of shares of
the Company’s common stock, $0.001 par value (the “Common Stock”) (representing 100% warrant coverage on the issued Notes e.g., the number of shares of
Common Stock that are equal to the quotient obtained by dividing for each issued Note (i) the principal amount of such Note by (ii) the applicable conversion
price of the Note) at an exercise price of $0.30 per share; provided if Buyer converts any of the Notes that are issued by the Company prior to maturity, the
stated exercise price for the Warrant to be issued in respect of such converted Note(s) shall be reduced to $0.20 per share from $0.30 per share; provided,
further that if the Company shall elect not to issue any Additional Notes, after receipt of funds from Buyer for such Additional Notes, upon maturity of the Initial
Note or earlier conversion date, the number of shares underlying the Warrant to be issued to the Buyer upon maturity of the Initial Note or earlier conversion
date shall be equal to an amount representing 100% warrant coverage (e.g., the number of shares of Common Stock that are equal to the quotient obtained by
dividing (i) one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount of the Notes that have been issued to such Buyer by (ii) the applicable conversion price of each
issued Note).
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2.          BUYER REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, ETC.; ACCESS TO INFORMATION; INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION.
 
The Buyer represents and warrants to, and covenants and agrees with, the Company as follows:
 
a .          The Buyer is purchasing the Notes and any underlying common stock and any warrant issued in connection therewith for its own account for

investment only and not with a view towards the public sale or distribution thereof and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof;
 
b.          The Buyer is (i) an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Rule 501 of the General Rules and Regulations under the 1933 Act by reason

of Rule 501(a)(3), and (ii) experienced in making investments of the kind described in this Agreement and the related documents, (iii) able, by reason of the
business and financial experience of its officers (if an entity) and professional advisors (who are not affiliated with or compensated in any way by the Company
or any of its affiliates or selling agents), to protect its own interests in connection with the transactions described in this Agreement, and the related documents,
and (iv) able to afford the entire loss of its investment in the Note;

 
c .          All subsequent offers and sales of the Notes, any Warrant issued hereunder or the common stock underlying the Notes and Warrants by the

Buyer shall be made pursuant to registration under the 1933 Act or pursuant to an exemption from registration;
 
d .          The Buyer understands that the Notes are being offered and sold to it in reliance on specific exemptions from the registration requirements of

United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgements and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such
exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Notes;

 
e .          The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the Company and

materials relating to the offer and sale of the Notes which have been requested by the Buyer. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been afforded the
opportunity to ask questions of the Company and have received complete and satisfactory answers to any such inquiries. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Buyer has also had the opportunity to obtain and to review the Company’s the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2017 filed with the SEC on May 22, 2017 and the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 filed with the
SEC on April, 2017 (the “SEC Documents”);

 
f .           The Buyer understands that its investment in the Notes, any Warrant that may be issued in connection therewith and the common stock

underlying the Notes or Warrants involves a high degree of risk;
 
g.          The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed on or made

any recommendation or endorsement of the Note; and
 
h.          This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer and is a valid and binding agreement of the

Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium and other
similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.
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3.          COMPANY REPRESENTATIONS, ETC.
 
The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:

 
a.          Reporting Company Status. The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of

Nevada, and has the requisite corporate power to own its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted. The Company is duly qualified as a
foreign corporation to do business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it makes such
qualification necessary other than those jurisdictions in which the failure to so qualify would not have a material and adverse effect on the business, operations,
properties, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company. The Company has registered its Common Stock pursuant to Section 12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the Common Stock is listed and traded on the OTCQB.

 
b.          Authorized Shares. The Company has authorized and reserved for issuance, free from preemptive rights, shares of its common stock equal to

the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note (“Conversion Shares”) and exercise of the Warrants (“Warrant Shares”). The Conversion Shares and
Warrant Shares have been duly authorized, and when issued, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and will not subject the holder
thereof to personal liability by reason of being such holder.

 
c.          Securities Purchase Agreement. The Note, this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized

by the Company, the Note and this Agreement have been duly executed and delivered by the Company and, when executed and delivered by the Company, will
each be, a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity
and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. The Warrants, when issued, executed
and delivered by the Company, will each be, a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject as to
enforceability to general principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally.

 
d.          Non-contravention. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company, the issuance of the Note and Warrants, and the

consummation by the Company of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement do not and will not conflict with or result in a breach by the Company
of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default under (i) the articles of incorporation or by-laws of the Company, (ii) any indenture, mortgage, deed of
trust, or other material agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets are bound, (iii) to its knowledge,
any existing applicable law, rule, or regulation or any applicable decree, judgment, or (iv) to its knowledge, order of any court, United States federal or state
regulatory body, administrative agency, or other governmental body having jurisdiction over the Company or any of its properties or assets, except such conflict,
breach or default which would not have a material adverse effect on the transactions contemplated herein. The Company is not in violation of any material laws,
governmental orders, rules, regulations or ordinances to which its property, real, personal, mixed, tangible or intangible, or its businesses related to such
properties, are subject.

 
e.          Approvals. No authorization, approval or consent of any court, governmental body, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization, or stock

exchange or market is required to be obtained by the Company for the issuance and sale of the Note to the Buyer as contemplated by this Agreement, except
such authorizations, approvals and consents that have been obtained.

 
f.           SEC Documents, Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be

filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, including material filed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d). The Company has
not provided to the Buyer any information which, according to applicable law, rule or regulation, should have been disclosed publicly by the Company but which
has not been so disclosed, other than with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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4.          CERTAIN COVENANTS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.
 
a.          Restrictive Legend. The Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Note, the Warrant, the Conversion Shares and the Warrant Shares shall bear

a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer thereof):
 

[THIS NOTE][THESE SHARES] [HAS][HAVE] NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
“SECURITIES ACT”), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OFFERED FOR SALE, IN THE ABSENCE OF AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL OR OTHER EVIDENCE ACCEPTABLE TO THE CORPORATION THAT SUCH
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.]

 
b.          Transfer Restrictions. The Buyer acknowledges that (1) neither the Note, the Warrant, the Conversion Shares nor the Warrant Shares have

been registered under the provisions of the 1933 Act and may not be transferred unless (A) subsequently registered thereunder, or (B) the Buyer shall have
delivered to the Company an opinion of counsel, reasonably satisfactory in form, scope and substance to the Company, to the effect that the securities to be
sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration; and (2) any sale of any such securities made in reliance on Rule
144 promulgated under the 1933 Act may be made only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any resale of the
securities under circumstances in which the seller, or the person through whom the sale is made, may be deemed to be an underwriter, as that term is used in
the 1933 Act, may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder.

 
c.          Filings. The Company undertakes and agrees to make all necessary filings in connection with the sale of the Note and Warrant to the Buyer

under any United States laws and regulations, or by any domestic securities exchange or trading market, and to provide a copy thereof to the Buyer promptly
after such filing.

 
5.          GOVERNING LAW: MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of

Nevada. A facsimile transmission of this signed Agreement shall be legal and binding on all parties hereto. This Agreement may be signed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect
the interpretation of, this Agreement. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement or the validity or enforceability of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction. This
Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the party to be charged with enforcement. This Agreement supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.

 
6.          NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing (unless otherwise specified herein) and shall be deemed

effectively given, (i) on the date delivered, (a) by personal delivery, or (b) if advance copy is given by fax, (ii) seven business days after deposit in the United
States Postal Service by regular or certified mail, or (iii) three business days mailing by international express courier, with postage and fees prepaid, addressed
to each of the other parties thereunto entitled at the following addresses, or at such other addresses as a party may designate by ten days advance written
notice to each of the other parties hereto.
 

COMPANY: QPAGOS
 Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH
 Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc
 Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600
  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP
 405 Lexington Avenue, 26 th Floor
 New York, New York 10174
 Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq.
 Facsimile: (212) 208-4657

 
BUYER: At the address set forth on the signature page of this Agreement.

   
7.          SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective

successors and permitted assigns.
 

4

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by the Buyer or one of its officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date set forth

below.
 
For $53,452.06 of 12% Convertible Notes due December 26, 2017, the Buyer has tendered $53,452.06.

 
    Address: Trident Chambers
     P.O. Box 146 

  Roadtown, Tortola, BVI
    
By: /s/ Victor Amirov  Fax No.  
(Signature of Authorized Person)   
    
Victor Amirov – POA   
Cobbolo Limited   
    
Printed Name and Title  Jurisdiction BVI
or organization  of incorporation
    
N/A   
Taxpayer identification number 
or social security number, 
as applicable

  

 
This Agreement has been accepted as of the date set forth below.
    
QPAGOS   
   
By: /s/ Gaston Pereira  
Name: Gaston Pereira  
Title: Chief Executive Officer  

  
Dated: June 29, 2017
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Exhibit 10.23

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

 
THIS SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT , dated as of the date of acceptance set forth below, is entered into by and between QPAGOS, a Nevada

corporation, with headquarters located at Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc, Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600 (the “Company”), and
the undersigned (the “Buyer”).

 
W I T N E S S E T H :

 
WHEREAS, the Company is offering 12% convertible notes for a minimum principal amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000);
 
WHEREAS, the Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in accordance with and in reliance upon the exemption from

securities registration afforded, inter alia, by Regulation 506 under Regulation D (“Regulation D”) as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), and/or Section 4(a)(2) of the 1933 Act; and

 
WHEREAS, the Buyer wishes to purchase, and the Company wishes to sell, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, a 12% convertible

note of the Company in the principal amount of $54,109.59, due six months after the date of issuance, in the form attached as Annex A hereto (the “Initial Note”).
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
 
1.          AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE; PURCHASE PRICE. In consideration of the Buyer’s investment of Fifty Four Thousand One Hundred and Nine

Dollars and Fifty-Nine Cents ($54,109.59) in the Company, the Company hereby agrees to issue the Initial Note to the Buyer. In the Company’s sole and
absolute discretion, the Buyer further shall have the option to purchase additional 12% convertible notes of the Company due on the six (6) month anniversary of
the issuance date of such note in a principal amount of at least $10,000 at any time after the Buyer’s purchase of the Initial Note and prior to August 31, 2017
(the “Additional Notes”),; the Initial Note and any Additional Notes, and, are collectively referred to herein as the “Notes”); provided, the Company reserves the
right to not to issue and sell any of all of the Additional Notes the Buyer may request be issued to Buyer. Any such sale of the Additional Notes shall be effected
by the Buyer providing the Company with funds in the principal amount of each of the Additional Notes on or prior to August 31, 2017 and the Company
providing to the Buyer and the Buyer executing a separate securities purchase agreement between the Buyer and the Company for each additional investment,
followed by the Company’s issuance and delivery of an Additional Note for each such accepted investment. Any Notes that are purchased prior to June 30, 2017
shall have a stated conversion price of $0.20 per share. Any Notes that are purchased after June 30, 2017 and prior to July 31, 2017 shall have a stated
conversion price of $0.25 per share. Any Notes that are purchased after July 31, 2017 shall have a stated conversion rate of $0.30 per share. If the Company
elects not to issue any Additional Note(s), it shall return any funds received by it in respect thereof to the Buyer and instead of providing the Buyer with a
separate securities purchase agreement to execute, it shall provide the Buyer with a notification of its election not to issue any such Notes. If the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes purchased by Buyer hereunder is greater than or equal to Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000), upon maturity of each of the Notes or
the Buyer’s conversion of the Notes held by Buyer, the Company will issue to Buyer a warrant, in the form attached as Annex B hereto (the “Warrant”), to
purchase such number of shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.001 par value (the “Common Stock”) (representing 100% warrant coverage on the issued
Notes e.g., the number of shares of Common Stock that are equal to the quotient obtained by dividing for each issued Note (i) the principal amount of such Note
by (ii) the applicable conversion price of the Note) at an exercise price of $0.30 per share; provided if Buyer converts any of the Notes that are issued by the
Company prior to maturity, the stated exercise price for the Warrant to be issued in respect of such converted Note(s) shall be reduced to $0.20 per share from
$0.30 per share; provided, further that if the Company shall elect not to issue any Additional Notes, after receipt of funds from Buyer for such Additional Notes,
upon maturity of the Initial Note or earlier conversion date, the number of shares underlying the Warrant to be issued to the Buyer upon maturity of the Initial
Note or earlier conversion date shall be equal to an amount representing 100% warrant coverage (e.g., the number of shares of Common Stock that are equal to
the quotient obtained by dividing (i) one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount of the Notes that have been issued to such Buyer by (ii) the applicable
conversion price of each issued Note).
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2.          BUYER REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, ETC.; ACCESS TO INFORMATION; INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION.
 
The Buyer represents and warrants to, and covenants and agrees with, the Company as follows:

 
a.          The Buyer is purchasing the Notes and any underlying common stock and any warrant issued in connection therewith for its own account for

investment only and not with a view towards the public sale or distribution thereof and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof;
 
b.          The Buyer is (i) an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Rule 501 of the General Rules and Regulations under the 1933 Act by reason

of Rule 501(a)(3), and (ii) experienced in making investments of the kind described in this Agreement and the related documents, (iii) able, by reason of the
business and financial experience of its officers (if an entity) and professional advisors (who are not affiliated with or compensated in any way by the Company
or any of its affiliates or selling agents), to protect its own interests in connection with the transactions described in this Agreement, and the related documents,
and (iv) able to afford the entire loss of its investment in the Note;

 
c.          All subsequent offers and sales of the Notes, any Warrant issued hereunder or the common stock underlying the Notes and Warrants by the

Buyer shall be made pursuant to registration under the 1933 Act or pursuant to an exemption from registration;
 
d.          The Buyer understands that the Notes are being offered and sold to it in reliance on specific exemptions from the registration requirements of

United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgements and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such
exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Notes;

 
e.          The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the Company and

materials relating to the offer and sale of the Notes which have been requested by the Buyer. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been afforded the
opportunity to ask questions of the Company and have received complete and satisfactory answers to any such inquiries. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Buyer has also had the opportunity to obtain and to review the Company’s the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2017 filed with the SEC on May 22, 2017 and the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 filed with the
SEC on April, 2017 (the “SEC Documents”);

 
f.           The Buyer understands that its investment in the Notes, any Warrant that may be issued in connection therewith and the common stock

underlying the Notes or Warrants involves a high degree of risk;
 
g.          The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed on or made

any recommendation or endorsement of the Note; and
 
h.          This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer and is a valid and binding agreement of the

Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium and other
similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.
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3.          COMPANY REPRESENTATIONS, ETC.
 
The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:
 
a.          Reporting Company Status. The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of

Nevada, and has the requisite corporate power to own its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted. The Company is duly qualified as a
foreign corporation to do business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it makes such
qualification necessary other than those jurisdictions in which the failure to so qualify would not have a material and adverse effect on the business, operations,
properties, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company. The Company has registered its Common Stock pursuant to Section 12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the Common Stock is listed and traded on the OTCQB.

 
b.          Authorized Shares. The Company has authorized and reserved for issuance, free from preemptive rights, shares of its common stock equal to

the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note (“Conversion Shares”) and exercise of the Warrants (“Warrant Shares”). The Conversion Shares and
Warrant Shares have been duly authorized, and when issued, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and will not subject the holder
thereof to personal liability by reason of being such holder.

 
c.          Securities Purchase Agreement. The Note, this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized

by the Company, the Note and this Agreement have been duly executed and delivered by the Company and, when executed and delivered by the Company, will
each be, a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity
and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. The Warrants, when issued, executed
and delivered by the Company, will each be, a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject as to
enforceability to general principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally.

 
d.          Non-contravention. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company, the issuance of the Note and Warrants, and the

consummation by the Company of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement do not and will not conflict with or result in a breach by the Company
of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default under (i) the articles of incorporation or by-laws of the Company, (ii) any indenture, mortgage, deed of
trust, or other material agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets are bound, (iii) to its knowledge,
any existing applicable law, rule, or regulation or any applicable decree, judgment, or (iv) to its knowledge, order of any court, United States federal or state
regulatory body, administrative agency, or other governmental body having jurisdiction over the Company or any of its properties or assets, except such conflict,
breach or default which would not have a material adverse effect on the transactions contemplated herein. The Company is not in violation of any material laws,
governmental orders, rules, regulations or ordinances to which its property, real, personal, mixed, tangible or intangible, or its businesses related to such
properties, are subject.

 
e.          Approvals. No authorization, approval or consent of any court, governmental body, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization, or stock

exchange or market is required to be obtained by the Company for the issuance and sale of the Note to the Buyer as contemplated by this Agreement, except
such authorizations, approvals and consents that have been obtained.

 
f.           SEC Documents, Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be

filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, including material filed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d). The Company has
not provided to the Buyer any information which, according to applicable law, rule or regulation, should have been disclosed publicly by the Company but which
has not been so disclosed, other than with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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4.          CERTAIN COVENANTS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.
 
a.          Restrictive Legend. The Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Note, the Warrant, the Conversion Shares and the Warrant Shares shall bear

a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer thereof):
 
[THIS NOTE][THESE SHARES] [HAS][HAVE] NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE

“SECURITIES ACT”), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OFFERED FOR SALE, IN THE ABSENCE OF AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL OR OTHER EVIDENCE ACCEPTABLE TO THE CORPORATION THAT SUCH
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.]

 
b.          Transfer Restrictions. The Buyer acknowledges that (1) neither the Note, the Warrant, the Conversion Shares nor the Warrant Shares have

been registered under the provisions of the 1933 Act and may not be transferred unless (A) subsequently registered thereunder, or (B) the Buyer shall have
delivered to the Company an opinion of counsel, reasonably satisfactory in form, scope and substance to the Company, to the effect that the securities to be
sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration; and (2) any sale of any such securities made in reliance on Rule
144 promulgated under the 1933 Act may be made only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any resale of the
securities under circumstances in which the seller, or the person through whom the sale is made, may be deemed to be an underwriter, as that term is used in
the 1933 Act, may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder.
 

c.          Filings. The Company undertakes and agrees to make all necessary filings in connection with the sale of the Note and Warrant to the Buyer
under any United States laws and regulations, or by any domestic securities exchange or trading market, and to provide a copy thereof to the Buyer promptly
after such filing.

 
5.          GOVERNING LAW: MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of

Nevada. A facsimile transmission of this signed Agreement shall be legal and binding on all parties hereto. This Agreement may be signed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect
the interpretation of, this Agreement. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement or the validity or enforceability of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction. This
Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the party to be charged with enforcement. This Agreement supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.

 
6.          NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing (unless otherwise specified herein) and shall be deemed

effectively given, (i) on the date delivered, (a) by personal delivery, or (b) if advance copy is given by fax, (ii) seven business days after deposit in the United
States Postal Service by regular or certified mail, or (iii) three business days mailing by international express courier, with postage and fees prepaid, addressed
to each of the other parties thereunto entitled at the following addresses, or at such other addresses as a party may designate by ten days advance written
notice to each of the other parties hereto.

 
COMPANY: QPAGOS
 Paseo del la Reforma 404 Piso 15 PH
 Col. Juarez, Del. Cuauhtemoc
 Mexico, D.F. C.P. 06600
  
with a copy to: Gracin & Marlow, LLP

405 Lexington Avenue, 26 th Floor
New York, New York 10174
Attention: Leslie Marlow, Esq. 
Facsimile: (212) 208-4657

  
BUYER: At the address set forth on the signature page of this Agreement.
  
7.          SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective

successors and permitted assigns.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by the Buyer or one of its officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date set forth

below.
 
For $54,109.59 of 12% Convertible Notes due December 26, 2017, the Buyer has tendered $54,109.59.  
 
  Address: Drake Chambers
   P.O. Box 3321

Roadtown, Tortola, BVI 
 

By: /s/ Alex Motorin  Fax No.   
(Signature of Authorized Person)    
     
Delinvest Commercial LTD  Jurisdiction BVI
Alex Motorin - President.  of incorporation  
Printed Name and Title 
or organization

   

    
N/A    
Taxpayer identification number 
or social security number,
as applicable 

   

    
This Agreement has been accepted as of the date set forth below.
  
QPAGOS  
   
By: /s/ Gaston Pereira  
Name:  Gaston Pereira  
Title:    Chief Executive Officer  
  
Dated : June 29, 2017  
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EXHIBIT 21.1

  
Subsidiary State of Incorporation
QPagos Corporation Delaware
QPagos, S.A.P.I. de C.V. Mexico
Redpag Electrónicos S.A.P.I. de C.V. Mexico
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Exhibit 31.1

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14 OR RULE
 15d-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

I, Gaston Pereira, certify that:
 
I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Qpagos;
 
1. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

 
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
 b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and

 
 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of

the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
 d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to

adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.
 
Dated: April 17, 2018
 
 /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14 OR RULE
15d-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

I, Mark Korb, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Qpagos;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

 
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
 b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and

 
 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
 d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to

adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.
 
Dated: April 17, 2018
 
 /s/ Mark Korb
 Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Annual Report of Qpagos, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2017 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Gaston Pereira, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:
  

 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
 /s/ Gaston Pereira
 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
 April 17, 2018
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Exhibit 32.2

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Annual Report of Qpagos, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2017 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mark Korb, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 18
U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:
 

 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
 /s/ Mark Korb
 Chief Financial Officer
 April 17, 2018
 

 

 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.


